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Chair Mark Sullivan called the meeting to order at 1:45 p.m., with a majority of
members present constituting a quorum. The meeting was held in the Marcum
Conference Center on the Oxford campus. Roll was called; attending with Chair Sullivan
were Committee members; Trustees David Budig, Sandra Collins, Debbie Feldman, Rod
Robinson, and Mary Schell; and National Trustees Biff Bowman and Dinesh Paliwal.
Also attending were Trustees Ryan Burgess, Zachary Haines, and John Pascoe; National
Trustee Jeff Pegues; along with Student Trustees Amitoj Kaur, and Dawson Cosgrove.

In addition to the Trustees, attending for all or part of the meeting were Provost
Jason Osborne, Senior Vice Presidents David Creamer and Tom Herbert; Vice Presidents
Jayne Brownell, David Seidl, Brent Shock and Randi Thomas; along with General
Counsel Robin Parker; and Ted Pickerill, Executive Assistant to the President, and
Secretary to the Board of Trustees. Independent Auditor Matt Garvey of RSM US LLP
was present to address the Committee. Also present to address or assist the Committee
were; David Ellis, Associate Vice President for Budgeting and Analysis; and Cody
Powell, Associate Vice President for Facilities Planning and Operations; along with many
others in attendance to assist or observe.

Public Business Session

Chair Sullivan welcomed everyone and opened the meeting.
Approval of the Minutes
Trustee Schell moved, Trustee Budig seconded and by unanimous voice vote,
with all voting in favor and none opposed, the minutes from the prior meeting of the

Finance and Audit Committee were approved.

Executive Session

Following a motion by Trustee Feldman, a second by Trustee Collins, and
unanimous roll call vote, with all voting in favor and none opposed, the Committee
entered executive session to consult with counsel, for personnel matters, and pending or
threatened litigation.
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Public Business Session

Report from the Independent Auditor

Mat Garvey, of the independent auditor RSM US LLP, met with the Committee.
He reviewed the scope of services, audit team, audit status, the auditor’s professional
responsibilities, and other items required to be disclosed.

The PCASB review of RSM was discussed. The review found no items of
significance, and RSM received a passing score. Miami not a component of the audit, but
Miami will be a component of RSM’s upcoming peer review.

The Committee then met privately with RSM.
Materials from RSM are included as Attachment A.
Tuition and Fee Ordinances

The Committee considered three tuition and fee ordinances and Senior Vice
President David Creamer spoke to each of them.

The resolutions were considered in a single vote. SVP Creamer explained the
MBA tuition was unchanged from academic year 2022. The FSB fee is increased from
the level of $110 per credit hour, set in 2016, to a new level of $125; the increase will
also require approval of the Chancellor. Dean Jenny Darroch was present to address any
questions. The mental health services fee is a new fee to provide increased student mental
health support. Vice President Jayne Brownell spoke in support of the fee, stating:

We have talked about student mental health at Board meetings regularly in my
eight years here, but it has been talked about much more widely and with more urgency
on a national level in recent years.

The American Psychological Association declared a “National Mental Health
Crisis” in January of 2021, and the JED Foundation (2020) reports that 63% of college
students say their emotional health is worse than before the COVID-19 pandemic.

There is a new awareness in our culture that emotional health and well-being are
important, and seeking out help during times of distress has become normalized for our
students.

We have invested resources in these areas in recent years, particularly in Student
Counseling Services. However, even with those increases, we are not keeping pace with
need.

In addition, mental health and emotional well-being is not only addressed through
formal psychological counseling. As you heard from John Ward this morning as he
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discussed our stepped care approach, there are elements of prevention, ongoing treatment
and support, and response that work together to form a network of mental health support
for our student community. Those other pieces of our system are all strained as well, and
require new resources to adequately meet the range of student needs now and in the
future.

In order to have the financial resources to increase our capacity for assisting
students with their mental health and emotional well-being while at Miami, we propose a
new student fee of $50 per term that could be used to strengthen all areas of our system:
prevention, treatment, and response. Let me walk through a few highlights of what would
be possible with this fee.

Prevention:

e First, health education is the primary prevention strategy we can employ. Due to
limited resources, the current focus of that work is primarily on alcohol and other
drugs and on sexual and interpersonal violence prevention. Expanding our
professional and peer education team would allow them to focus on topics related
to mental health, emotional well-being, suicide prevention, and student safety.

Ongoing treatment and support:

e Beyond prevention, many students need personal, individualized support while at
Miami outside of times of crisis. Most of that support is provided by the Student
Counseling Service and by the Miller Center for Student Disability Services.

e While we doubled our counseling staff since 2013, we still saw concerningly long
wait lists this term, returning to levels we haven’t seen in at least 5 years. During
early November, students were waiting up to 10 days for an initial consultation,
and up to 4 weeks for their first counseling appointment.

¢ Inthe Miller Center, psychological disabilities and medical disabilities have
become the top two disability categories served by the Center. Overall, they are
serving a third more students than they did in 2018. Our staff to student ratio has
grown to 570:1, where the national recommendation is 150:1, leading to wait
times for service.

Response:

e Finally, turning to response, responding to student crises involves several parts of
campus (e.g. Residence Life, MUPD, SCS, and others) with ongoing and complex
follow up needs often occurring in the days and weeks after the immediate crisis
has passed.

e There are also students whose situations build and escalate over time, requiring
staff to actively follow up with these students, ideally to prevent a crisis point
from occurring. These students can be case managed for long periods of time.
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e The CARE team saw a significant increase in cases this semester, with more
reports including an element of suicidality/ideation. We’ve also seen an increase
in medical withdrawals as compared to fall 2019 (a traditional year).

e We have talked to student leaders on campus about this fee, and both ASG and
the four Greek councils are offering letters of support for the fee.

Altogether, adding resources across this range of services could be a game
changer for how we serve students at Miami. Health and wellness are student success
issues. A student who isn’t well can’t focus academically, will have a hard time making
connections, and are less likely to persist or graduate. This fee allows us to invest in this
key area to support student success.

Trustee Budig then moved, Trustee Collins seconded and by unanimous voice
vote, with all voting in favor and none opposed, the Committee recommended approval
of the three ordinances by the full Board of Trustees.

The Tuition and fee ordinances are included as Attachment B.
Capital Projects

Associate Vice President Cody Powell updated the Committee on the status of
capital projects. He reported the Clinical Health Science and Wellness building is
progressing well towards an August 2023 completion date. He stated the builders are
using a flow schedule, which, based on available supplies and materials, focuses work in
a particular location, then flows through the remainder of the building.

Dodds Hall, is experiencing some supply chain difficulties which are causing a
four to five week delay. However, much of the impact is being mitigated through
resequencing, and it is expected that the August 2022 completion date will still be met.

The Richard McVey Data Science Building is scheduled for a January 2024
completion date, with excavation to begin in two to three weeks.

The University Hall renovation is proceeding on time for a January 2022
completion date. A few items have experienced supply chain delays, but back up plans
will allow occupancy in January.

Three construction and facilities resolutions were then considered in a single vote.
It was explained that Bachelor Hall is the priority project in the capital improvements
plan and funding request. The EIm Street building renovation was also presented, as was
the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion project, which is part of a utility and facilities
master plan which once completed, will reduce carbon emissions and move the Oxford
Campus toward geothermal heating and cooling in phases.
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Trustee Collins then moved, Trustee Schell seconded, and by unanimous voice
vote, with all voting in favor and none opposed, the Committee recommended approval
of the three resolutions by the full Board of Trustees.

Capital and facilities materials, including the resolutions, are included as
Attachment C.

Report on Year-to-Date Operating Results Compared to Budget

SVP Creamer relayed that Miami University is awaiting information from the
Chancellor’s Office and that there is no new update to report on year-to-date results since
the last meeting.

State of Ohio Efficiency Report

Associate Vice President David Ellis discussed the Efficiency report. He
reminded the committee that timing with the State required the report to be previously
submitted, and it is presented today for their consideration and acceptance.

Trustee Robinson then moved, Trustee Schell seconded, and by unanimous voice
vote, with all voting in favor and none opposed, the Committee recommended approval
of the resolution by the full Board of Trustees.

The efficiency report is included as Attachment D.

Investment Subcommittee
Trustee Bowman, Chair of the Investment Subcommittee, relayed the following:

The Investment Sub-committee met in-person in Oxford on December 8th.

The Subcommittee reviewed the capital stack comprised of the endowment pool,
the University’s non-endowment investments, and its operating cash.

e Operating cash flow so far for FY22 through October 31st is ahead of this time
last year and is tracking to forecast.

e We plan to reallocate some cash to the long-term portion of the non-endowment
to finish a plan the Subcommittee started in the spring.

e The endowment/PIF was valued at $722 million as of October 31st.

The Subcommittee reviewed FY22 first quarter investment performance for both the non-
endowment and endowment.

e Returns have had a slow start to the fiscal year after the significant results from
FY21.
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e Non-endowment’s Tier Il was down about 0.4% for the quarter, though October
results brought the FY to date return to +1.6%.

e Endowment/PIF earnings were down about 1% for the quarter (still collecting
some private capital figures for June quarter), and about +1% through October.

Strategic Investment group (S1G) reviewed their strategy for investing in the real
assets asset class, which includes real estate, Treasury Inflation Protection Securities
(TIPS), and commodities. This asset class is intended to provide some inflation
protection in the portfolio. They also provided an update on their expectations for
inflation and how these views impact portfolio positioning. Fixed income duration is
underweight and hedge fund exposure is overweight.

Next, Bruce Guiot provided a retirement plan update. Assets in the Alternative
Retirement Plan and the 403(b) supplemental plan totaled over $564 million as of
September 30th.

Finally, Bruce Guiot provided a brief update on plans to refinance the
University’s Series 2012 bonds. Planning is underway and pricing is anticipated for mid-
late January.

The Investment Subcommittee minutes are included as Attachment E.

Forward Agenda

The Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system report/update is scheduled for

February. VP David Seidl and SVP David Creamer are working with consultants to

complete the report for the February meeting.

Additional Reports

The following written reports were provided for the Committee’s information and
review:

Cash and Investments, Attachment F

Internal Audit Reporting Update, Attachment G
Enrollment Update, Attachment H

Lean Project Update, Attachment |

University Advancement Update, Attachment J
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Adjournment

With no more business to come before the Committee, Trustee Schell moved,
Trustee Feldman seconded and by unanimous voice vote, with all in favor and none
opposed, the meeting was adjourned.

) /%;// -

Theodore O. Pickerill 11
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

President and Board of Trustees of Miami University

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of Miami University (the University), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the University’s basic financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2021.

This report does not extend to the Miami University Foundation due to the Foundation issuing a separate
report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Others Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated
October 15, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

JNDERSTOOD

64

RSMUSLLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

PSK LS LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
October 15, 2021

65
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Miami University
Report to the Finance and Audit Committee
October 15, 2021
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|.  Introduction
- Engagement Team
- Scope of Services
Il.  Audit of Miami University (the University)
- Auditor’s Professional Responsibilities
- Audit Status
- Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies
- Significant Matters Discussed With Management
- Management’'s Judgments and Accounting Estimates
- Other Communications Required by Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

1

©2021 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.
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Il. Audit of the University (cont.)
- Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Other Matters

- Report on Compliance, Internal Controls Over Compliance and Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards — Uniform Guidance - delayed

lll.  Other Items
- Accounting Standards Update
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Matthew Garvey

Audit Partner

Michelle Horaney

Audit Partner and Concurring Reviewer

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

Audit Senior Manager

Michael Foreman

Audit Manager

Overall Page 14 of 258

December 9, 2021

Attachment Page 7 of 125



Independent Auditor
Attachment A RSM US LLP

\/

** Specialists
= Information Technology
= Actuarial (GASB 68 and 75)

" Tax
\/

** Minority Firm Partners

= Manoranjan & Shaffer, Inc.
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Our engagement was to provide the following audit services as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2021

« Annual audit of the financial statements of the University in accordance with
Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America,
Government Auditing Standards

e Ohio Compliance Supplement

e Audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance delayed to due release of CARES
Act funding compliance supplement addendum.
- Three major programs audited in accordance with the Uniform Guidance:
* Research and Development Cluster
e Coronavirus Relief Funds — CFDA 21.019

« CFDA 84.425E and F Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security
(CARES) Act, Education Stabilization

- Student Financial Aid

6

©2021 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.
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 Agreed-upon procedures report to test compliance with the requirements outlined in the
National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) bylaw 3.2.4.16.

«  Miami University University Foundation audit
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* Financial statement audit was submitted to the Auditor of State (AOS) and Office
of Budget and Management by the required October 15, 2021 deadline

* Next Steps

- Complete testing for the annual audit of the University in accordance with Uniform
Guidance — delayed to due release of CARES Act funding compliance supplement
addendum

- Data Collection Form Submission — Federal Audit Clearinghouse website

- Complete reporting package to Auditor of State (AOS) and Office of Budget and
Management

- Completion of NCAA Agreed Upon Procedures and submitted to AOS by
November 30, 2021

9
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* Our responsibilities under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, have been described in our arrangement
letter dated May 17, 2021.

* Our responsibilities, as stated in our auditor’s report, are summarized as follows:

Our audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS.

Our audit was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected and performed are
dependent upon our professional judgment based on our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement and our consideration of internal control over financial reporting (ICFR).

Our consideration of ICFR was for the purpose of designing audit procedures and not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ICFR. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion on ICFR.

Our audit also included assessing the accounting principles used and significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

* In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
and activities of the University as of and for the June 30, 2021.

10
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Area Comments

Preferability of Accounting
Policies and Practices

Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain circumstances, management may select among alternative
accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances, management has selected the preferable accounting practice.

Adoption of, or Change in,
Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the University.
The University did not adopt any significant new accounting policies that had a significant impact on the financial
statements, nor have there been any changes in existing significant accounting policies during the current period.

Significant Accounting
Policies

We did not identify any significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Unusual
Transactions

We did not identify any significant unusual transactions.

Disagreements With
Management

We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting principles, the basis
for management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or significant disclosures to be included
in the financial statements.

Consultations With Other
Accountants

We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or auditing
matters.

Significant Issues
Discussed with
Management

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the subject of correspondence with management.

Significant Difficulties
Encountered in Performing
the Audit

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit.

11
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« Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial
statements and are based upon management’s current judgment.

* The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future
events.

* We have concluded that the methodologies management used for the significant
estimates, as outlined on the following pages, are reasonable.

12
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Estimate
Allowance for
Uncollectible
Student, Pledges

Accounting Policy
The allowance for uncollectible
accounts is based on
management’s estimate of the

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

Management’s
Estimation Process
The University calculates a specific
percent reserve on the aging of the
accounts based on historical

December 9, 2021

Basis for Our Conclusions

on Reasonableness of
Estimate
We tested the underlying information
supporting the allowance. We concluded
management’s estimate is reasonable.

and Loans collectability of identified experiences and by identifying specific

Receivable receivables, as well as aging of | accounts which are doubtful of
accounts. collection.

Investments Investments are recorded at Investments that are market traded are For market traded investments, we tested
fair value or estimated fair recorded at fair value based on quoted the fair value information provided by
value in the case of market prices, as established by the management and found it to be consistent
investments in real estate. major securities markets. The value of with fair values we obtained from another

holdings of commingled funds, not third-party source. For alternative

having a readily determined market investments, we corroborated the

value, is based on the net asset value information to documentation obtained

per share as supplied by the investment | directly from fund management of the
manager. Investments in real estate are | alternative investment funds and found it to
recorded at estimated fair value.. be appropriate and reasonable.

13
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Basis for Our Conclusions

Management’s on Reasonableness of
Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process Estimate

Depreciable Life Property and equipment are Estimated useful lives are 50 years for We believe the estimates and
recorded at cost and then buildings; 25 years for infrastructure, land| process used by the University are
depreciated over the estimated mprovements, and library books and appropriate based upon our
useful lives of the assets. publications; 20 years for improvements | testing, which included substantive

to buildings; and 5 to 7 years for and analytical procedures.
equipment, vehicles, and furniture.

Compensated Vacation and sick time is accrued for |Unused vacation and sick time are We tested the detail listing of

Absences employees based upon the term of  [determined by current rates, terms of accrued vacation and sick time at
their employment contract or years  femployment and subject to maximum June 30, 2021 and noted the
of service. accruals. amounts accrued are reasonable

based on the policy.

14
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Estimate
Net Pension
Asset/Liability

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

Accounting Policy
The University has net pension assets (liabilities)
for two retirement plans administered by the
State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio
(STRS) and the Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS). The University
relies on STRS and OPERS plan actuaries and
auditors to determine the University’s
proportionate share of the net pension asset
(liability) and its components, based on the
percentage of contributions to the retirement
plans compared to other participating employers
in the respective retirement plans.

Management’s

Estimation Process
Management relies on STRS
and OPERS actuaries and
auditors to determine the
University’s net pension
asset/liability and pension
expense. Management records
the University’s proportionate
share in the financial
statements.

December 9, 2021

Basis for Our Conclusions

on Reasonableness of

Estimate
We tested the payroll information
submitted to STRS and OPERS,
obtained the actuarial reports, and
audited pension allocation
schedules. We also utilized an
RSM actuarial specialist to review
the significant assumptions and
conclusions used by the plans’
actuaries. We concluded the
process used by management and
the estimates recorded are
reasonable.

Other Post-
Employment
Benefits (OPEB)
Asset/Liability

The University has two other post-employment
benefit plans administered by the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio (STRS) and the Ohio
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
The University relies on STRS and OPERS plan
actuaries and auditors to determine the
University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
asset (liability) and its components, based on the
percentage of contributions to the post-
employment benefit plans compared to other
participating employers in the respective post-

employment benefit plans.

Management relies on STRS
and OPERS actuaries and
auditors to determine the
University’s net OPEB asset
(liability) and OPEB (revenue)
expense. Management records
the University’s proportionate
share in the financial
statements.

We tested the payroll information
submitted to STRS and OPERS,
obtained the actuarial reports, and
audited OPEB allocation schedules.
We also utilized an RSM actuarial
specialist to review the significant
assumptions and conclusions used
by the plans’ actuaries. We
concluded the process used by
management and the estimates
recorded are reasonable

15
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« Control deficiency—A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, financial
statement misstatements on a timely basis.

- Adeficiency in design exists when a control necessary to meet the control objective is
missing, or when an existing control is not properly designed so that, even if the
control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met.

- Adeficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as
designed or when the person performing the control does not possess the necessary
authority or qualifications to perform the control effectively.

« Significant deficiency—A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of
deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

« Material weakness—A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of
deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
17
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« We did not identify any significant deficiencies or compliance matters required to
be reported in the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

18
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» As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are require to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

19
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Upcoming GASB Pronouncements

 GASB Pronouncements requiring adoption at various dates going forward.

- Adoption will likely not have a significant impact (although management continues to
evaluate)
* GASB Statement No. 87, Leases - effective for year ending June 30, 2022.
e GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations — effective for year ending June 30, 2023.
e GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 — effective for year ending June 30, 2022.

e GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements — effective
for year ending June 30, 2023.

e GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements — effective for year ending June 30,
2023.

* GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans— effective for year ending June 30, 2022.
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Senior Vice President for Finance and Business Services

M IAM I ROUDEBUSH HALL ROOM 218
U N IVE RS ITY OXFORD, OH 45056-3653

(513) 529-4226

Treasurer’s Report

Overall the University’s financial position improved at June 30, 2021. Total assets increased 13.9 percent in
fiscal year 2021 to $2.71 billion compared to $2.38 billion in fiscal year 2020. Liabilities decreased 3.1 percent
and totaled $1.09 billion.

The investment portfolios produced robust results during the fiscal year. Operational investments earned
18.8 percent, up from the previous year’s gain of 1.4 percent. The pooled investment fund, which includes
the University and Foundation endowments, posted an estimated return of 29.3 percent (pending most of
the private capital results for the last quarter), the highest return in at least the last thirty years and a
significant improvement from the 0.9 percent gain realized in the previous year.

Miami University’s financial outlook will continue to be influenced in the near term by the global pandemic,
but major economic and demographic changes are expected to have the greatest financial impact for the rest
of this decade. Negative trends such as declining numbers of high school graduates, declining college
participation rates, increased competition, and greater price sensitivity are expected to make revenue
generation less predictable throughout this decade. Except for a brief period following the end of the
Vietnam war, the current economic outlook for colleges and universities is the most challenging since World
War Il

Respectfully submitted,

\'> \ anm»\
David K. Creamer
Senior Vice President for Finance and Business Services and Treasurer
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Investment Report M

Miami University and Miami University Foundation MIAMI
JUNE 30, 2021 UNIVERSITY

INVESTMENT POOLS

Total investment assets for Miami University and Miami University Foundation reached an all-time high at fiscal year-end,
exceeding $1.5 billion. Total investment assets increased by over $336 million from the previous year, and have tripled over the
last 15 years. The University’s non-endowment pool, its working capital and reserves, rose to $842 million from $677 million.
The Pooled Investment Fund (PIF), the combined University and Foundation endowment, grew to $725 million from $555
million. The fiscal year-end asset values among the pools are as follows:

Pool Type of Funds Invested as of
June 30, 2021

University Non-Endowment Working capital and cash reserves to support operating activities $842,464,000

Pooled Investment Fund (University ~ Funds donated to the University and the Foundation to establish $725,430,000

& Foundation Endowments) endowments in perpetuity

Trusts, Annuities, and Separately Gifts managed independently of the pooled funds $ 23,321,000

Invested Assets

Total Investments $1,591,215,000

The Investment Committee of the Miami University Foundation’s Board of Directors provides governance oversight to the PIF,
while the Miami University Board of Trustees maintains oversight of the non-endowment pool. In 2018, the Boards outsourced
investment management discretion of both the PIF and non-endowment to an external firm, Strategic Investment Group (SIG).

The University’s non-endowment pool holds the working capital and cash reserves that fund the University’s operating activities.
Its balance fluctuates significantly during the course of a year based on the University’s cash flow cycle of receipts and
expenditures. June 30 typically marks the low point of this annual cycle.

The PIF invests endowed gifts from donors and quasi-endowments established by the Boards. The pool operates under the
philosophy that the funds are invested in perpetuity to provide benefits to today’s students as well as to the many generations
of Miami students yet to come. Miami invests the funds with the understanding that economic cycles will rise and fall, but
that a well-diversified portfolio will provide the long-term growth necessary to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment
across generations. The investment policy governing the endowment pool recognizes that the portfolio can tolerate year-to-
year fluctuations in returns because of its infinite time horizon, and looks beyond short-term fluctuations toward an investment

philosophy that provides the best total return

GROWTH IN TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS over very long time periods.
AS OF JUNE 30 o ]
The University and Foundation also hold assets

_ $16BILLION . given by donors in the form of trusts, annuities,

$1,600,000,000 - .
insurance policies, real estate, and other assets.
$1,400,000,000 These funds are, by necessity, managed
$1,200,000,000 separately from the PIF.
1,000,000,000
s $800,000,000 $700 MILLION Over thelast ten years, Miami’s total investment
$600000.000 assets have more than doubled, fueled by steady
U growth in both resident and non-resident
$400,000,000 student enrollment, generous donor support,
$200,000,000 g and prudent fiscal discipline. In addition, both
$0 2012 2021 managed investment pools generated significant

gains during fiscal year 2021.
Non-Endowment [l] Combined Endowments Other Investments
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY
COMBINED ENDOWMENTS GROWTH

$800,000,000
$700,000,000
$600,000,000
$500,000,000
$400,000,000
$300,000,000
$200,000,000

$100,000,000

$0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

ASSET ALLOCATION

The non-endowment pool has three components. Tier I
operating cash represents the University’s working capital and
is invested in short-term cash equivalents, with a target
balance of two to six months of average cash needs. Tier II
core cash represents short-term reserves along with funds set
aside by the Board of Trustees for special initiatives. Tier II
is invested in U.S. Treasury securities with maturities
generally under two years. Tier III long-rerm capital consists
of longer-term reserves. As the size of this pool has grown,
this portion of the pool has adopted an investment profile
similar to the PIF endowment, except for the exclusion of less
liquid asset classes. At fiscal year-end, it was invested inamix
of global public equity, various types of fixed income
securities, and absolute return hedged strategies.

Cash flow generation was positive for the year despite
continued challenges resulting from the pandemic. Federal
and state relief funds, along with reduced operating expenses,
offset sharply lower operating revenues. Tier II consisted of
$1877 million in the baseline allocation and $53.2 million in
the special initiatives fund. Rebalancing actions taken during
the year included $20 million transferred from operating cash

MIAMI UNIVERSITY NON-ENDOWMENT
ASSET ALLOCATION HISTORY
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY NON-ENDOWMENT
ASSET ALLOCATION
JUNE 30, 2021

Tier | Operating Cash,
9%

Tier Il Long-term

Capital, 63% Tier Il Core Cash,
al, % |

28%

to core cash, $5.6 million drawn from Tier II special initiatives
to operating cash, $8o million reallocated from Tier III to Tier
11 to reduce portfolio risk, and $10 million transferred from
operating cash to Tier III.

The PIF’s strategic allocation policy considers not just asset
exposure, but also the sources of risk and the interaction
among the various assets and strategies. Under the investment
policy adopted by the Foundation Board of Directors at the
end of fiscal year 2018 and implemented during fiscal year
2019, this pool’s primary strategic allocation categories are
public equity, consisting of exposures to U.S., non-U.S,, and
global equity strategies; alternatives, consisting of private
equity and absolute return hedged strategies; real assets,
comprised of timber and real estate; fixed income, consisting
of U.S. Treasury securities and public active credit strategies;
and opportunistic, consisting primarily of private credit
strategies. Each category has a long-term strategic target
weight and SIG has discretion to make tactical shifts within
approved ranges. While SIG manages a portion of the fixed
income allocation in-house, it also deploys capital with
approximately 88 sub-managers.

Duringthe year, considerable effort and discussion was devoted
to an asset allocation study conducted by SIG inlight of historic
lows for interest rates, the corresponding reduction in expected
returns, and the increase in expected volatility for fixed income
strategies. At the end of the fiscal year, the Foundation Board
adopted an updated long-term target asset allocation policy.

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
CHANGE IN ASSET ALLOCATION

2020 2021
Public Equity 51.8% 48.9%
Alternatives 23.4% 24.6%
Real Assets 71% 6.9%
Fixed Income 9.9% 1.9%
Opportunistic 4.5% 41%
_(I;;sgé ?ccruals, & Pending 3.3% 3.6%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

December 9, 2021
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POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
INVESTMENT POLICY TARGET ALLOCATION, RANGES, & BENCHMARKS
Long-Term Long-Term
Asset Category Policy Policy Ranges Benchmark Indicies
Allocation - +

Equities 43% -10% +10%

U.S. Equities 19% -10% +10%  Russell 3000 Index

Developed Non-U.S. Equities 12% -10% +10% MSCI World ex-U.S. Investible Market Index

Emerging Market Equities 12% -10% +10%  MSCI Emerging Markets Index
Alternatives (Net) 37% =12% +10%

Private Equ ties 25% -10% +5% Custom Private Equity Index

Hedge Funds (Net) 12% -12% +10%  HFRX Equal Weighted Strategies Index

Hedge Funds (Gross) 19% -19% +5%
Portable Alpha Overlay -7% -7% +10%

Real Assets 8% -8% +10%

Real Estate 3% -3% +5% NCREIF Fund Index Open End Diversified Core

Equity Index

Timber 0% 0% +6% Thomson Reuters Cambridge Timber Index

Commodities 2% -2% +6% S&P GSCI Total Return Index

TIPS 3% -3% +6% Bloomberg Barclays I-10 Year U.S. TIPS Ind
Fixed Income 12% -10% +10%

U.S. Investment Grade Bonds 12% -10% +10%  Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index

U.S. High Yield Bonds 0% -0% +10%  BofA Merrill Lynch High Yield Cash Pay Ind

Non-U.S. Fixed Income 0% -0% +10%
Opportunistic 0% -0% +10%
Cash 0% -0% +20%
TOTAL 100%

The intentionis to increase the target private equity allocation
from 20 to 25 percent, with most of the increase coming from
the fixed income allocation. This transition will take a few years
to be implemented, nd p blic equity will continue to be
elevated in the interim. At fiscal year-end, public equity related
strategies remained the largest exposure at almost 49 percent,
down slightly from last year’s level.

Liquidity measures how quickly the exposure to a particular
asset manager can be redeemed and turned into cash.
Approximately 60 percent of the portfolio could be converted
to cash within a month, while over three quarters of the
portfolio could be redeemed within a quarter.

INVESTMENT RETURNS

The unprecedented stimulus that helped make the pandemic
induced recession of 2020 the steepest but shortest recession
on record propelled global capital markets to new highs
throughout the fiscal year. U.S. equity markets were positive
in nine of the twelve months of the fiscal year ending June 30,
including each of the last five months. Global equity prices,
pover 9 erce tas easure byt e S I 1 ou try otl
Index (ACWTI), were driven by a sharp rebound in economic
activity, relaxed pandemic influenced social and business
restrictions, the rollout of a vaccination, and a corresponding

Overall Page 37 of 258

recovery of corporate earnings. Bond markets struggled in the
second half of the fiscal year as concerns over inflation,
growing deficits, and anticipated tapering of bond purchases
by central banks put pressure on historicall lo interestrates.
These risks are likely to persist for the foreseeable future.

The combined Tier IT and Tier III portions of the University’s
nen-endowment pool posted a gain of 18.8 percent for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021, up considerably from a return of 1.4
percent earned in the previous year. The non-endowment retum
was carried by the long-term capital portion, up 28.6 percent
and driven by global public equity investments. Annualized
performance for the trailing ten years was 4.1 percent, providing
annualized added return over the go-day Treasury bill during
that period of over three and one-half percentage points.

The PIF enjoyed an estimarted return of +31.2 percent, the
highest return in at least the last thirty years (please note the
FY2021 return is incomplete, since we do not yet have returns
for all private capital investments which have a significant
reporting delay). This result wasa significant turnaround from
the 0.9 percent gain posted in the previous year. Strong global
public equity returns of nearly 46 percent enabled PIF to
outperform its portfolio custom benchmark for the year by
about 2.7 percentage points. PIF’s estimated annualized
performance for the trailing ten years was 6.8 percent.

December 9, 2021
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COMBINED RATES OF RETURN The combined endowment distribution for Fiscal Year 2021
FY2012-FY2021 was almost $19.8 million, the most ever distributed in one
35% 3 year and nearly $2 million more than the previous year.

Over the last ten years, the cumulative distributions have
totaled close to $179 million and have provided an important
source of funding to help make a Miami education more
affordable for our students and to help offset reductions in
state support. The following chart shows the proportion of
programs supported by the 2021 distributions.

30%
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0% PROGRAMS SUPPORTED BY ENDOWMENT
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PROGRAM SUPPORT SCHOLARSHIPS

Endowments provide a lasting legacy for Miami because their R
principalis invested in perpetuity and an annual distribution PROFESSORSHIPS.
from earnings is made to support a variety of activities of the RESEARCH, ACADEMIC

38%

University. The spending policies of the University and
Foundation are intended to achieve a balance between the
need to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment
principal in perpetuity and the need to utilize current
distribution of endowment earnings. Fulfilling these dual
objectives is often referred to as achieving “intergenerational
equity,” in which no generaticn of students and faculty is Though the broader economy has rebounded, higher
advantaged in relation to other generations. education continues to face many challenges. Issues
impacting the operating environment such as unfavorable
demographic trends, stagnant state support, staffing
difficulties, and increasing sensitivity to tuition cost are
expected to persist. Miami’s students, faculty, and staff
appreciate the generous support from our alumni and friends
that has helped to strengthen the institution’s position as
we confront these obstacles. This backing, combined with
the continued innovative leadership of our boards and
administration, will guide the thriving path forward.

The endowment spending policies for both the University and
Foundation, adopted by the Boards in fiscal year 2017,
distribute four percent of the average of the previous twelve
quarterly market values as of March 31st of each fiscal year.
The policies are intended to provide consistent, predictable,
and sustainable annual distributions, while maintaining
intergenerational equity and preserving the purchasing power
of the endowed principal.

ANNUAL UNIVERSITY & FOUNDATION ENDOWMENT
ACTUAL EARNINGS DISTRIBUTIONS

$25,000,000

$20,000,000
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UNIVERSITY ENDOWMENT B FOUNDATION

4 Miami University: Equal opportunity in education and employment.
PRODUCED BY UNIVERSITY COMMUNICATIONS AND MARKETING 0.5K1021
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Independent Auditor's Report

President and Board of Trustees of Miami University

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component unit of Miami University (the University), a component unit of the State of Ohio, as
of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of
Miami University, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT [ TAX | CONSULTING
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3-12 as well as required supplementary information for certain
retirement plan data and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) data on pages 60-63 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

PSKH VS LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
October 15, 2021
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Miami University

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of
Miami University for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and footnotes.

The University’s annual report consists of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Statements of
Net Position, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, the Statements of
Cash Flows, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. The financial statements of the University have
been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earmed and
expenses are recorded when the related liability has been incurred. The financial activity of the Miami
University Foundation, a component unit of the University, is included through a discrete presentation as
part of the University’s financial statements.

The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion have been prepared by and are the responsibility
of University management.

Financial Highlights

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a “Public Health
Emergency of International Concern” and, on March 11, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions
taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of coronavirus (COVID-19) include restrictions on
travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses.
The coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had, and are expected to continue to have, an
adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries. The extent to which the
coronavirus impacts the University’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows will depend
on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information
which may emerge concerning the severity of the coronavirus and actions taken to contain the
coronavirus or its impact, among others.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the University was awarded approximately $31.3 million in various
federal grants during fiscal year 2021. The Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) were
authorized under the following congressional acts: The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental
Appropriations Act, 2021 (CRRSAA) (HEEREF Il) and The American Rescue Plan (ARP) (HEERF lll). The
purpose of these funds was to assist colleges and universities in preparing for, preventing, and
responding to the coronavirus. A portion of the funds received under HEERF | and HEERF Il were
required to be allocated as emergency financial aid grants to students. The student aid portion was
intended to provide temporary emergency financial assistance to eligible students who were experiencing
financial hardship due to the COVID-19 pandemic. HEERF Il and HEEF Ill funds also included an
institutional allocation that was intended to assist in covering lost revenue and provide relief for University
operations that were negatively impacted as a result of the pandemic.

For further information on federal pandemic funding received, see Note 14.
Despite the effects of the pandemic, the University reported favorable year-end results for the twelfth

consecutive year. Investment gains, a modest tuition increase and a continued focus on controlling
operating costs have been important contributing factors to these successful results.
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Miami University

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Financial Highlights (Continued)

Overall the University’s financial position improved at June 30, 2021. Total assets increased 13.9 percent
in fiscal year 2021 to $2.71 billion compared to $2.38 billion in fiscal year 2020. Liabilities decreased 3.1
percent and totaled $1.09 billion. Significant financial events during fiscal year 2021 were:

e The University's fall 2020 cohort, at a confirmed size of 3,824 first-year resident undergraduate
students, was the fifth enrolled cohort under the Miami Tuition Promise program. Each year of their
enroliment, the incoming cohort of first-year first-time undergraduate resident students at the Oxford
campus will have a guaranteed tuition amount due each year of their full-time enroliment for the four
years of the guarantee. Total undergraduate enroliment decreased 4.1 percent to 20,580 students for
fall 2020 compared to 21,612 total undergraduate students in the fall 2019 class. Graduate enrollment
for fall 2020 decreased by 4.3 percent to a total of 2,337 compared to 2,442 graduate students in the
fall 2019 class.

e For the fall 2020 cohort, the University shifted from emphasizing test score measures such as an
average ACT and switched to “test optional admissions”. The University's commitment to increase
selectivity, diversity, and maintain quality with strong academic credentials in enrollment
goals was evidenced by a GPA average of 3.77 for the fall 2020 class. The profile of the incoming
class for fall 2020 consisted of 39.5 percent non-resident, and 15.1 percent students of color. The fall
2020 categories of transfer students and relocation students stayed consistent year-over-year. The
Hamilton campus incoming class size decreased from 559 students from fall 2019 to 472 for fall
2020, and the Middletown campus decreased from 306 students to 246 first-time incoming students
for the fall 2020 class.

e The investment portfolios produced robust results during the fiscal year. Operational investments
earned 18.8 percent, up from the previous year's gain of 1.4 percent. The pooled investment fund,
which includes the University and Foundation endowments, posted an estimated return of 29.3
percent (pending most of the private capital results for the last quarter), the highest return in at least
the last thirty years and a significant improvement from the 0.9 percent gain realized in the previous
year. The unprecedented stimulus that helped make the pandemic induced recession of 2020 the
steepest but shortest recession on record propelled global capital markets to new highs throughout
the fiscal year. U.S. equity markets were positive in nine of the twelve months of the fiscal year
ending June 30, including the last five months. Globally, equity prices were driven by a sharp
rebound in economic activity aided by relaxed restrictions and the rollout of a vaccination,
accompanied by a corresponding recovery of corporate earnings. Bond markets struggled in the
second half of the fiscal year as concerns over inflation, growing deficits, and anticipated tapering of
bond purchases by central banks put pressure on historically low interest rates. These risks are likely
to persist for the foreseeable future.

Statements of Net Position

The Statements of Net Position presents the assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and
net position of the University as of the end of the fiscal year. The difference between total assets and
deferred outflows and total liabilities and deferred inflows, or net position, is one indicator of the overall
strength of the institution. Also, the increase or decrease in total net position indicates whether the
financial position of the institution is improving or declining. Except for capital assets, all other assets and
liabilities are measured at a point in time using current values. Capital assets are recorded at historical
cost less an allowance for depreciation.

Overall Page 43 of 258 Attachment Page 36 of 125



Attachment A

Attachment A

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

Miami University

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

December 9, 2021

Statements of Net Position (Continued)

The net position is classified into three major categories. The first category, net investment in capital
assets, reports the institution's net equity in property, plant, and equipment. The second major category,
restricted net position, reports assets that are owned by the institution, but the use or purpose of the

funds is restricted by an external source or entity. This category is subdivided into two types:

nonexpendable and expendable. Nonexpendable restricted net position is primarily endowment funds that
may be invested for income and capital gains, but the endowed principal may not be spent. Expendable
restricted net position may be spent by the institution, but only for the purpose specified by the donor,
grantor, or other externat entity. The third category, unrestricted net position, is separated into two types:
allocated and unallocated. Allocated unrestricted net position is available to the institution, but is set aside
for a specific purpose by University policy, management, or the governing board. Unallocated unrestricted

net position is available to be used for any lawful purpose of the institution.

(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020 2019
Assets:
Current assets $ 1,025,834 § 740,365 & 742,064
Capital assets, net 1,350,257 1,390,163 1,406,278
Long-term investments 282,732 224,219 227,443
Other assets 46,220 20,917 16,064
Total assets 2,705,043 2,375,664 2,391,849
Deferred outflows of resources 50,940 97,563 104,215
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 3 2,755,983 $ 2,473,227 $ 2,496,064
Liabilities:
Current liabiliies $ 116,116 % 103,681 $ 121,668
Noncurrent liabilities 972,298 1,019,461 1,066,770
Total liabilities 1,088,414 1,123,142 1,188,438
Deferred inflows of resources 121,250 86,274 49,326
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 737,246 764,897 748,383
Restricted — nonexpendable 114,233 95,382 98,579
Restricted — expendable 104,299 74,825 62,283
Unrestricted — allocated 579,291 309,622 338,042
Unrestricted — unallocated 11,250 19,085 11,0183
Total net position 1,546,319 1,263,811 1,258,300
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $ 2755983 3§ 2473227 % 2,496,064

Total assets of the institution increased 13.9 percent or $329.4 million in fiscal year 2021. This increase
was primarily a result of an increase in investments. Detail of the increase in investments is provided in

the Financial Highlights section of this report.

Total liabilities decreased 3.1 percent or $34.7 million in fiscal year 2021. This decrease was primarily
the result of a change in actuarial assumptions decrease of the net pension liability and net OPEB liability
totaling $133.4 million. The decrease was partially offset by an additional $204.4 million in general
receipts revenue bonds that were issued during fiscal year 2021. Details of the bond issuance is

provided in the Capital Assets and Debt Administration section of this report.

Total assets of the institution decreased 0.7 percent or $16.2 million in fiscal year 2020. This decrease
was primarily a result of a decrease in net capital assets due to the retirement of certain equipment with a

net book value of $7.7 million that occurred during the year,
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Statements of Net Position (Continued)

Total liabilities decreased 5.5 percent or $65.3 million in fiscal year 2020. This decrease was due to net

Debt principal payments of $32.0 million, plus decreases in Accounts Payable of $22.0 million, due to
timing.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the University’s results of
operations for the fiscal year. The revenues and expenses are generally reported as either operating or
non-operating. Operating revenues are generated by providing goods and services to customers and
constituencies of the institution. Operating expenses are incurred when goods and services are provided
by vendors and employees for the overall operations of the University. Non-operating revenues include
the student instructional subsidy from the State of Chio, while other revenues include the State’s capital
appropriation. Investment losses and returns are also included in non-operating revenue. interest on debt
is the primary component of non-operating expense.

In fiscal year 2021, total revenues of the institution from all sources were approximately $813.3 million,
which represents a $124.3 million or 18.0 percent increase from the prior year. Approximately 53.1
percent of revenues were classified as operating, and 46.9 percent were classified as non-operating or
other revenues.

In fiscal year 2020, total revenues of the institution from all sources were approximately $689.0 million,
which represents a $45.2 million or 6.2 percent decrease from the prior year. Approximately 76.8 percent
of revenues were classified as operating, and 23.2 percent were classified as non-operating or other

revenues.
(Doltars in Thousands)
2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues 3 431,810 $ 529,031 $ 557,561
Non-operating revenues 378,973 149,166 146,784
Other revenues 2,515 10,843 29,893

Total revenues 813,298 689,040 734,238
Operating expenses (503,125) (658,186) (626,094}
Non-operating expenses (27,665) {25,343) (26,172)

Total expenses (530,790) (683,529) (652,266)

Change in net position $ 282,508 § 5511 % 81,872
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

The University revenue base is shown in the accompanying chart. Student tuition and fees make up the
largest percentage of revenues at 41.1 percent. Net endowment and investment income account for the
second highest amount at 22.7 percent. Auxiliary enterprises such as residence and dining halls, several
student recreational facilities, and the bookstore contributed 8.4 percent to the total. State

appropriations are 9.9 percent of the total. Gifts, grants, and contracts represent 16.5 percent, and State
capital appropriations are less than 1 percent.

Student Fees |

Auxiliary Enterprises |

State Appropriations

Gifts, Grants and Contracts |

Endowment and Other Investment

Income/(Loss)

State Capital Appropriation |

Other |

Total Revenues ($ in Millions)

$0 $100 $200 $300 3400
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

The University continues to expand the scholarship packages for in-state and out-of-state students in
order to recognize student achievement and to continue making a high-quality education more affordable
for parents and students. In fiscal year 2021, Miami-funded financial aid increased by $9.2 million of 7.1
percent. In total, financial aid awards were $269.4 million.

Student Financial Aid
2021 Total = $269.4
($ in millions)

@ Federal Loans

@ Private Loans

@ Miami - annually budgeted $114.9
scholarships

O Federal Grants & Work Study $29.2

Miami - donor designated  $14.8
scholarships

0O Miami - athletic scholarships $9.5

B Ohio Grants

B Federal Cares Act/HEERF (Student
Financial Aid portion only) ~ $8.1
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

In fiscal year 2020, Miami-funded financial aid increased by $14.4 million or 12.5 percent. In total,
financial aid awards were $268.2 million.

Student Financial Aid
2020 Total = $268.2

($ in millions)

1% 2%

@ Federal Loans  $78.9

@ Private Loans  $22.8

@ Miami - annually budgeted $105.1
scholarships

O Federal Grants & Work Study $28.1

Miami - donor designated  $13.7
scholarships

0 Miami - athletic scholarships $10.8

@ Ohio Grants $3.9

@ Federal Cares Act (Student  $4.9
Financial Aid portion only)
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

During fiscal year 2021, the University completed and capitalized several projects. These projects were
funded by a combination of bond proceeds, state capital appropriations, gifts and local funding. Major
projects capitalized in 2021 include renovation projects to Marcum Conference Center, Stanton Hall, the
Soccer Stadium Complex, Yager Stadium, Saddle Barn Indoor Arena and the Middletown Campus
Regional Book Depository. Other infrastructure improvements included the South Quad Hot Water
Conversion.

During fiscal year 2020, the University completed and capitalized several projects. These projects were
funded by a combination of bond proceeds, state capital appropriations, gifts and local funding. Major
projects capitalized in 2020 include renovation projects to MacCracken Hall, Richard Hall, Maplestreet
Station, Minnich Hall, Scott Hall, Porter Hall, and Pearson Hall. Other infrastructure improvements
included Central Quad Utility Improvements.

See Note 4 for additional information concerning capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

The University's bond rating remained the same in fiscal years 2021 and 2020 with a rating of Aa3 from
Moody's Investors Services and a rating of AA from Fitch Ratings.

On June 9, 2021, the University issued $75,930 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds (2021A) with an
interest rate of 5.00 percent and maturities from 2022 to 2037. The proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds
were used to refund the Miami University Series 2011 General Receipts Revenue and Refunding Bonds.

On July 18, 2020, the University issued $128,470 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds with interest rates
ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2021 to 2045. A portion of the proceeds of
the Series 2020A were used to refund the mandatary sinking fund redemption for years 2035 through
2037 for the Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2012 and the mandatory sinking fund
redemption for years 2035 and 2036 for the Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2014.

For more detailed information on current outstanding debt, see Note 5 and 6.

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future

Miami University's financial outlook will continue to be influenced in the near term by the global pandemic,
but major economic and demographic changes are expected to have the greatest financial impact for the
rest of this decade. Negative economic trends such as declining numbers of high school graduates,
declining college participation rates, increased competition, and greater price sensitivity are expected to
make revenue generation less predictable throughout this decade. Except for a brief period following the
end of the Vietnam war, the current economic outlook for colleges and universities is the most challenging
since World War Il.

For fall 2021, Miami University's Oxford campus enrolled its largest ever first-time student cohort of 4,612
students, up from 3,883 in the prior year. Total enrollment on the first day of classes for the Oxford campus
grew from 18,885 to 19,153. Overall, first day enrollment at the University declined from 23,438 to 23,359
as enrollments at Miami's regional sites in Hamilton and Middletown declined from 4,320 to 3,907. Following
a shift to “test optional admissions,” the incoming first-time student GPA for Oxford campus students grew
from 3.76 to 3.77.
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Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future (Continued)

While the new student cohort on the Oxford campus grew by almost 18.8 percent from fall 2020, tuition
revenue from this cohort, after student scholarships, is estimated to rise by only 4.2 percent even after a 3
percent increase in Ohio resident tuition. The nonresident composition of the new class fell from 39.7
percent to 36.3 percent as students chose to remain closer to home. The rising tuition discount rate is
partially due to the drop in the percentage of nonresident students enrolling, especially international
students, but it is also influenced by the previously mentioned economic and demographic changes.
Declining numbers of high school graduates in the regions of the country where Miami primarily recruits
students and an increase in the number and size of educational institutions competing for this shrinking
pool of students is resulting in a significantly more competitive environment for students and rising tuition
discount rates.

Additionally, Ohio’s aging population trend is expected to have a negative impact on the state’s tax
revenues going forward as well as the growth in the proportion of the state’s population eligible to retire.
This will likely lead to a greater demand for social service programs and fewer citizens in the workforce
paying taxes. Miami's state funding for fiscal year 2022 is over 4 percent less than what the University
received in fiscal year 2021, and these current population trends suggest that a reversal of the past trend
in state support is unlikely given Ohio's own economic outlook and demographic issues.

In light of these economic realities, a university-wide strategic planning committee was commissioned by
Miami’s president resulting in a new strategic plan that was adopted by Miami's Board of Trustees on
June 28, 2019. The plan is designed to provide a blueprint for adapting to today’s economic and
demographic changes and sustaining the University’s long history of academic excellence and strong
financial performance.

The need for faster and greater change by Miami University is the focus of the new strategic plan as
reflected in the plan’s opening statement:

“We know that Miami University is living in a new era of financial accountability. As you will read
throughout this report, Miami cannot afford every program or service we might wish to provide. Every
decision we make must be fully informed by the financial implications. It is imperative that we manage our
resources wisely, develop diversified revenue streams to reduce dependence on tuition and align every
resource with the University’s broader strategic initiatives. In today’s world of higher education, this is the
job of every Miami division, department and administrative unit.”

In addition to adopting a new strategic plan, the University's Board of Trustees authorized a $50 million
investment fund to help initiate new academic programs that better align with student and employer
interests. Additionally, $128.5 million in new tax-exempt bonds (2020A Series) were issued to fund facility
improvements to align with new or expanded programs in clinical health, data science, engineering, and
technology. A new clinical health building is already under construction while the new data science
building, partially funded by a $20 million naming gift, will commence construction before the end of
calendar year 2021. In total, 15 new or expanded academic programs have been implemented in the last
two years consistent with the strategic plan.

At the same time, a study was completed in the spring of 2021 of existing academic programs and majors
with 25 programs to be sunset to allow for the reallocation of financial resources between academic
programs. Miami's admissions and marketing team will begin to execute a new marketing plan later this
year to expand marketing and recruitment efforts in more regions in the United States and internationally.
The most important measure of the success of these new recruitment strategies will be whether
applications for admission and selectivity grow sufficiently in the future to enable a flat or lower discount
rate and not necessarily larger undergraduate student cohorts.
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Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future (Continued)

While the number of traditional age undergraduate students enrolling in higher education is expected to
decline, the number of working professionals seeking advanced degrees or specialized certificates is
expected to rise. Historically, this population has been hard to attract to Miami's campuses given their
physical locations. However, technology is allowing for some growth and expansion in these markets
with some of the previously mentioned degree programs focused on this audience as well as
undergraduate students. While professional graduate education is a growing focus for Miami, the
University will continue to focus primarily on undergraduate students and programs.

For decades Miami and other public colleges and universities could rely on tuition increases and/or
growing enroliments to provide the financial resources needed to replace the loss of state support, offset
rising costs, and provide for growth and expansion of the University. That economic model is evaporating
as major shifts in the underlying elements of supply and demand for higher education create a very
different set of economic factors. Miami is on a path to respond to these new trends, but it must execute
these new initiatives timely and effectively to continue to keep pace with this new and rapidly changing
higher education environment.
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts, pledges and notes receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Pledges and notes receivable, net
Net pension asset
Net OPEB asset
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred loss on debt refunding
Pensions
OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Bonds payable, net
Capital leases payable
Federal Perkins loan program
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred gains on debt refunding
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust
Pensions
OPEB
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable - permanent endowments
Expendable - gift and grant programs
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

See notes to financial statements.

Miami University

University Foundation

2021 2020 2021 2020
$ 209247 § 115130 24835 § 19,751
732,561 551,287 - -
74,950 66,708 5,646 7377
1,946 3,008 - -
7,130 4232 - -
1,025,834 740,365 30481 27.128
- - 30,388 32,619
282,732 224219 683,989 507,642
19,535 6,449 23,529 33,667
2,083 1,706 - .
24,632 12,762 - -
47,004 66,453 - -
1,303,253 1,323,710 - -
1,679,209 1,635,209 737,906 573,928
2,705,043 2375664 768,387 601,056
453 . - -
40,400 70,081 - -
10,087 26,582 - -
50,940 97,563 - -
$ 2755983 § 2473207 768387 _§ 601,056
$ 32881 § 23,524 18554 § 16,253
19,698 17,854 . -
1,367 1,286 - -
14,484 15,583 - -
9,274 11,336 - -
37,772 33,328 - .
640 770 720 545
116,116 103681 19,274 16,798
18,342 16,940 - .
673,810 589,872 - -
3,109 1,638 - .
1,319 1,860 - -
275,718 309,786 - -
- 99,365 - .
- - 287,415 228746
972,298 1,019,461 287,415 228,746
1,088,414 1,123,142 306,689 245544
5,771 816 - -
2,260 1,946 - -
55,775 48,058 - -
57,444 35,454 - -
121,250 86,274 - -
737,246 764,897 - -
114,233 95,382 276,129 247,138
104,209 74,825 180,644 104,571
590,541 328,707 4925 3,803
1,546,319 1,263,811 461,698 355,512
$ 2755983 § 2473227 768387 $ 601,056
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
{Dollars in Thousands)

Miami University University Foundation

Attachment A

2021 2020 2021 2020
Operating revenues:
Tuition, fees, and other student charges 3 476,155 § 488,549 § - $ -
Less allowance for student scholarships {141,958) (107,745) - -
Net tuition, fees, and other student charges 334,197 380,804 - -
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 73,776 123,059 - -
Less allowance far student scholarships (5,158) (5,009) - -
Net sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 68,618 118,050 - -
Federal grants 12,298 14,587 - -
Gifts - - (4,304) 697
Sales and services of educational activities 865 1,528 - -
Private grants 4,210 2662 - -
State grants 2,576 1,067 - -
Local grants 83 125 - -
Other 8,963 10,218 - -
Total operating revenues 431,810 529,031 {4,304) 697
Operating expenses:
Education and general:
Instruction and departmental research 193,715 193,920 - -
Separately budgeted research 11,608 13,066 - -
Public service 6,281 1.979 - -
Academic support 52,538 61,664 - -
Student services 22,760 29,910 - -
Institutional support 61,796 61,607 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 27,230 29,300 - -
Scholarships and fellowships 43,708 45,880 - -
Auxiliary enterprises 70,739 100,158 - -
Depreciation 73,794 69,782 - -
Pension and other postemployment benefit (revenue) expense (68.867) 32,156 - -
Other 7,823 18,764 - -
Total operating expenses 503,125 658,186 - -
Net operating (loss) income (71,315) {129,155) (4,304) 697
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations 80,405 75,959 - -
Gifts, including those from the University Foundation 47,240 31,766 - -
Federal grants 64,221 28,078 - -
Net investment income (loss), net of investment expense of
$2,261 for the University and $2,911 for the Foundation in FY 21
$2,257 for the University and $2,742 for the Foundation in FY 20 184,017 8,884 93,891 (366)
State grants 2,028 2,043 - -
Interest on debt (27,665} (25,343) - -
Payments to Miami University - - {15,884) (15,559)
Other non-operating revenues {(expenses) 1,061 2,436 2,043 (1,013)
Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 351,308 123,823 80,050 {16,938)
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses,
gains or losses 279,993 (5.332) 75,746 (16,241)
Other revenues, expenses, gains or losses:
State capital appropriation 247 8,204 - -
Capital grants and gifts 1,578 1,880 - -
Additions to permanent endowments 690 759 30,440 16,771
Total other revenues, expenses, gains or losses 2,515 10,843 30,440 16,771
Change in net position 282,508 5511 106,186 530
Total net position at beginning of year 1,263,811 1,258,300 355,512 354,982
Total net position at end of year 3 1546319 % 1,263,811 $ 461698 § 355,512

See notes to financial statements.
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Miami University

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
{Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Tuition, fees, and other student charges $ 476,975 § 487,766
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 73,403 124,286
Contracts 3,119 12,400
Other operating receipts 8,752 12,006
Payments for employee compensation and benefits (349,569) (376,116)
Payments to vendors for services and materials (98,235) (123,182)
Student scholarships (190,824) (158,634)
Loans issued to students and employees (1,288) (1,927)
Collection of loans from students and employees 1,191 1,270
Net cash flows used in operating activities (76,476) (22,131)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State share of instruction funds 82,374 77,999
Grants for noncapital purposes 49,336 23,675
Gifts 47,157 32,627
Net cash flows provided by noncapital financing activities 178,867 134,301
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
State capital appropriation 247 8,204
Grants for capital purposes 902 1,622
Other capital and related receipts 3,888 679
Proceeds from debt obligations 253,939 -
Payments to construct, renovate, or purchase capital assets (24,583) (82,175)
Principal paid on outstanding debt (159,027) (31,965)
Interest paid on outstanding debt (37,510) (28,713)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 37,856 (132,348)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments 397,769 176,728
Purchases of investments (446,515) (166,693)
Endowment fees (1,306) (883)
Other investment income 3,922 5,393
Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities (46,130) 14,545
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 94,117 (5,633)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 115,130 120,763
Ending $ 209,247 $ 115,130
(Continued)
15

Attachment A Overall Page 54 of 258 Attachment Page 47 of 125



Attachment A

Attachment A

Miami University

Statements of Cash Flows {Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

December 9, 2021

2021 2020
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:
Operating loss (71,315) (129,155)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash flows used in
operating activities:
Depreciation expense 73,794 69,782
Net loss on retirements of capita! assets 3,076 7,728
Accounts receivable bad debt adjustments 634 178
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net cash used in
operating acitivities:
Accounts receivable (14,594) (7.455)
Inventories 1,062 (137)
Prepaid expenses (2,110) 2,533
Notes receivable 1,008 968
Net pension asset (347) (951)
Net OPEB asset (11,870) (283)
Defemred outflows of pension resources 30,581 24,717
Deferred outflows of OPEB resources 16,495 (18,065)
Accounts payable 1,341 (152)
Accrued salaries and wages 1,844 396
Accrued compensated absences 1,483 827
Unearned revenue and deposits (3,161) 2,166
Federal Perkins loans (671) (1,667)
Net pension liability (34,068) (28,584)
Net OPEB liability {99,365) 18,219
Deferred inflows of pension resources 7,717 27,828
Deferred inflows of OPEB resources 21,990 9,276
Net cash flows used in operating activities (76,476) (22,131)
Supplemental disclosures of noncash information:
Capital assets inciuded in accounts payable 11,588 2,990
Capital assets acquired by gifts in kind 6566 258

See notes to financial statements.
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Miami University (the University) is a land grant institution chartered by the State of Ohio in 1809 and
govemned by a Board of Trustees (the Board). The Board consists of up to 17 members, including two
student members and up to six non-voting national trustees. Voting members are appointed one each
year for nine-year terms by the governor with the advice and consent of the state senate. The two student
non-voting members are appointed for two-year staggered terms by the governor with the advice and
consent of the senate, and the national trustees are appointed by the voting members and can serve for
no more than two consecutive three-year terms.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 2100:
Defining the Financial Reporting Entity, the University's financial statements are included as a discretely
presented component unit in the State of Ohio's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Furthermore, in accordance with GASB Codification Section 2600: Reporting Entily and Component Unit
Presentation and Disclosure, the Miami University Foundation (the Foundation) is included as a discretely
presented component unit in a separate column in the University’s financial statements to emphasize that
it is legally separate from the University. The Foundation, which is a separate not-for-profit foundation,
meets this criteria set forth in the Codification Section 2600 due to the significance of its operational and
financial relationship with the University. Note 10 provides additional information on the Foundation.
Certain disclosures concerning the Foundation are not included because it has been audited separately
and reports have been issued under separate cover. Copies of these reports may be obtained from
Treasury Services, 107 Roudebush Hall, Miami University, Oxford, Ohio, 45056.

Basis for presentation: The financial statements of the University have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when
the related liability has been incurred. For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a
special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities as defined by GASB Statement
Nos. 34 and 35.

Recent and pending accounting pronouncements: Effective July 1, 2020, the University adopted
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance
regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how
those activities should be reported. The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities
and the focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether the government is controlling the assets of the
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. There was no material
impact on the University’s financial statements due to the adoption of Statement No. §4.

Effective July 1, 2020, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost
Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting
period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized
as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the
current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting
principles. There was no material impact on the University's financial statements due to the adoption of
Statement No. 89.
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Effective July 1, 2020, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — An
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61, The primary objectives of this Statement are to
improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a
legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity
interest meets the definition of an investment. There was no material impact on the University's financial
statements due to the adoption of Statement No. 90.

in June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee
is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 and all reporting periods thereafter. The University
does not anticipate the adoption of this standard will have a significant impact on the financial statements.

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives
by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation
is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The requirements of this Statement were
originally effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. GASB Statement No. 95
postponed the effective date to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The University has
not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial statements.

In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement is to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. The requirements of this Statement are effective at various
dates as outlined in the Statement. The University does not anticipate the adoption of this standard will
have a significant impact on the financial statements.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor)
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) fo provide public services by
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. The University has not yet determined the impact this statement will have
on the financial statements.
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Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. The University has not yet determined the impact this statement will have on
the financial statements.

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The primary
objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of
fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a
governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than
pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary
fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans. This Statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government is
financially accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a
defined contribution pension plan, a defined contribution OPEB plan, or an other employee benefit plan
(for example, certain Section 457 plans), the absence of a governing board should be treated the same
as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the
duties that a governing board typically would perform. The requirements of this Statement are effective at
various dates as outlined in the Statement. The University does not anticipate the adoption of this
standard will have a significant impact on the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash consists primarily of cash in banks and money market accounts.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash, with an original
maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Investments: Investments that are market traded are recorded at fair value. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The value of holdings of commingled or non-publicly traded funds
is based on the funds’ net asset value as supplied by the investment manager. Investments in real estate
are recorded at estimated fair value.

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases and sales of investments are
recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment transactions occurring on or before June 30 that settle after
such date are recorded as receivables or payables.

Accounts, pledges and notes receivable allowance: The allowance for doubtful accounts is
determined based on management's judgment of potential uncollectible amounts, based on historical

experience, analysis of the aging of payment schedules, type of receivable and other known facts and
circumstances.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories: The University reports inventories at the lower of first-in, first out cost or market.

Capital assets: Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. In the
case of gifts or other donated capital assets, they are recorded at acquisition value, Acquisition value is
the price that would be paid to acquire an asset in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date.
Acquisition value is a market-based entry price. Intangible assets include patents, trademarks, land rights
and computer software. Land, collections of works of art and historical treasures are capitalized but not
depreciated. Any collection that is not capitalized is charged to operations at the time of purchase.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Estimated useful lives are 50 years for buildings; 25 years for infrastructure, land improvements,
and library books and publications; 20 years for improvements to buildings; and 5 to 7 years for
equipment, vehicles, and furniture. Intangible assets are depreciated based on the estimated life of each
asset. The University's capitalization threshold is the lower of 5 percent of the original building cost or
$100 for building renovations and $5 for other capitalized items. The capitalization threshold for intangible
assets is $100 except for internally generated computer software which has a threshold of $500.

Unearned revenue: Tuition and fees relating to summer sessions that are conducted in July and August
are recorded in the accompanying Statements of Net Position as unearned revenue. Unearned revenue
also includes the amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned and
amounts received from a tuition payment service for payments received for the next fiscal year. These will
be recorded as revenue in the following fiscal year.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability or asset, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information about the
fiduciary net position of the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) Traditional and
Combined Plans as well as the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio Retirement Plan (STRS Ohio)
{collectively referred to as, the Pension Plans) any additions to/deductions from the Pension Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Pension
Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment henefits other than pensions (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability
or asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to healthcare costs,
and employer OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPERS QPEB Plan as
well as the STRS Ohio OPEB Plan (collectively referred to as, the OPEB Plans) and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the OPEB Plans. For this purpose, health care costs are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the health care terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Operating and non-operating revenue: The University defines operating activities, for purposes of
reporting on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, as those activities
that generally result from exchange transactions such as payments received for providing services and
payments made for services or goods received. Substantially all of the University's expenses are from
exchange transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied upan for operations are recorded as
non-operating revenues, as defined by GASB Cadification 2200: Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, including state appropriations, gifts, and investment income.

Revenue recognition: The University recognizes tuition, fees and other student charges as goods and
services are provided to customers and constituencies of the institution. State appropriations are
recognized when received or made available. Restricted funds are recognized as revenue as
expenditures are incurred for cost reimbursement grants and contracts when earned. Gifts are recognized
when received.
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Allowance for student scholarships: Allowances for student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other
revenues from students, are reported in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position. Scholarship allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services
provided by the University, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments
on the students’ behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other Federal, state or
nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in the
University's financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy
tuition and fees and other student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship allowance.

Bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs: Bond premiums and discounts costs are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are
recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net
positions by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources of
the University consist of certain changes in the deferred loss on debt refunding, net pension asset/liability
and net OPEB asset/liability not included in pension expense and OPEB expense, respectively.

Employer contributions to the pension plan and OPEB plan subsequent to the measurement date of the
net pension liability and OPEB liability, respectively, are also required to be reported as a deferred outflow
of resources of the University. Deferred inflows of resources are an acquisition of net positions by the
University that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources consist of deferred
gains on debt refunding, the University’s share of beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, and certain
changes in net pension asset/liability not included in pension expense and net OPEB asset/liability not
included in OPEB expense.

Compensated absences: Full-time unclassified staff earn vacation at rates of 18 to 22 days per year,
based on the term of their employment contract, with a maximum accrual of 52 days. Classified
employees earn vacation at rates up to 25 days per year, based on years of service and hours reported,
with a maximum accrual equivalent to the amount earned in three years. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, the employee is compensated at the final rate of pay for unused vacation up to a maximum of

40 days. Faculty accrue no vacation benefits.

Full-time faculty, unclassified staff, and classified staff earn 15 days of sick leave per year and individuals
who work less than full-time earn sick leave on a pro-rata basis. There is no limit on the number of sick
leave hours that can be accumulated. Upon retirement, a staff member with 10 or more years of Ohio
public service is paid for one-fourth the value of earned but unused sick leave not to exceed 30 days,
based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement. The termination payment method is used to
compute the liability for sick leave. Employees transferring to or from another State of Ohio agency may
transfer any unused accumulated sick leave entitlement to/from the new agency. Persons leaving
employment for reasons other than retirement are not compensated for unused sick leave.
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Net position: Net positions are divided into three major categories. The first category, net investment in
capital assets include property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and net of capital
related debt and capital related deferred inflows of resources. Capital related debt is offset by unspent
bond proceeds, if any. The second major category is restricted net position. This category contains
assets that are owned by the institution (offset by liabilities payable from those assets, if any), but the use
or purpose of the funds is restricted by an external source or entity. The corpus of the nonexpendable
restricted assets is available for investment purposes only. The expendable restricted assets may be
expended by the institution, but must be spent only for the purpose as determined by a donor or external
entity. The income generated from the nonexpendable restricted investmenis and the expendable
restricted funds may be used for student loans, scholarships and fellowships, instruction, research, and
other needs to support the operation of the University. The third category is unrestricted net position and
is separated into two types: allocated and unallocated. Allocated unrestricted assets are available to the
institution, but are allocated for a specific purpose within the institution by University policy, management,
or the governing board. The allocated unrestricted net position was $579,291 and $309,622 as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is to be used for loans, scholarships, investments and capital
projects. Unallocated unrestricted net positions are available to be used far any lawful purpose of the
institution. Generally, it is the University’s policy to consider restricted resources to have been spent first
when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.

Tax status: The University is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal
Revenue Code. As such, the University is subject to federal income taxes only on unrelated business
income, if any, under the provisions of Section 511 in the Internal Revenue Code.

Estimates: Management has made, where necessary, estimates and judgments that affect certain
amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and judgments are based on current
available information, and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events: The University has evaluated subsequent events occurring between the end of our
most recent fiscal year and October 15, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The University’s cash and investment activities are governed by policies adopted by the Board in
accordance with authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code. Such policies are implemented by the
treasurer and overseen by the Board's finance and audit committee.

The University's investment strategy incorporates financial instruments that involve varying elements of
risk including market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and custodial credit risk. The University’s
investment policies and procedures establish risk guidelines for each of the two primary investment pools,
the non-endowment pool and endowment pool. Diversification is a fundamental risk management strategy
for both pools.
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents: At year-end, the carrying amount of the University’s cash and cash
equivalents was approximately $209,247 and $115,130 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash and cash
equivalents consist primarily of cash in banks, money market accounts and the State Treasury Asset
Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) that include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to
cash, with an original maturity of three months or less. STAR Ohio is a statewide fund managed by the
State Treasurer of Ohio with the carrying amount of the assets reported at amortized cost. There are no
limitations or restrictions on any STAR Qhio participant withdrawls due to redemption notice periods,
liquidity fees, or redemption gates. However, notice must be given to STAR Ohio 24 hours in advance of
all deposits and withdrawls exceeding $25 million.

Approximately $5,507 and $11,730 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents was
covered by federal depository insurance; $81,175 and $45,394 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, was
covered by collateral held by third-party trustees pursuant to paragraph 135.181 of the Ohio Revised
Code in collateral pools securing all public funds on deposit with specific depository institutions; and the
remaining $122,565 and $58,006 was not collateralized or insured for the years ending June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively, leaving it exposed to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the University may not be able to recover its
deposits or collateral securities. The University maintains active relationships with muitiple cash
equivalent accounts to reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any single institution.

Investments: Investments held by the University at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are presented below,
categorized by investment type and credit quality rating. Credit quality ratings provide information about
the investments’ credit risk, which is the risk that an issuer or other caunterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. Beginning in fiscal year 2019, management of the University's investments has been
delegated by the Board to an external investment firm. The external investment firm has discretion to
manage the University's investments within the framework of the investment policy statement. The
University's formal investment policy does not specifically address interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial
credit risk, or concentration risk, though these risks are monitored and managed by the external
investment firm as part of their management and due diligence process. The external investment firm
has implemented a combination of internally and externally managed investment vehicles, including
separate accounts, limited partnerships, and commingled funds. The University's investment
management policy establishes guidelines for average credit quality ratings in the portfolios. Investments
in Tier Il of the policy include U.S. Treasury and government agency securities generally with an average
weighted maturity of between zero and two years for the baseline allocation. Investments in Tier lll of the
policy include diversified global equity and fixed income securities, along with absolute return

strategies. Moody's Investors Services and Fitch Ratings have assigned AAA credit ratings to U.S.
Treasury obligations. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the University will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The University’'s investments are held in trust of
by a custodian in the University’s name or directly held in the University's name. The University has
credit risk associated with counterparty nonperformance. However, credit risk associated with exchange-
traded contracts are typically perceived to be less because exchanges typically provide clearinghouse
arrangements in which the collective credit of the managers of the exchange is pledged to support the
financial integrity of the exchange. Margins, which may be subject to loss in the event of a default, are
generally required in exchange trading and further mitigate credit risk. All of the future contracts held by
the University at June 30, 2021 were exchange traded contracts.
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The credit ratings of investments in debt securities are based on Moody’s investor services and are
summarized as follows as of June 30:

2021

Not AA A, Below

Investment Type Fair Value Applicable AAA and BBB BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 86,703 $ - $ 86,703 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury notes 177,329 - 177,329 - -
U.S. Treasury strips 1,687 - 1,687 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities 27,125 - 27,125 - -
Common and preferred stocks 909 909 - - -
Exchanged traded funds 18,042 18,042 - - -
Commingled funds 703,129 703,129 - - -
Other 369 369 - - -
Total investments $ 1015293 § 722449  § 292844 $ - $ -

2020

Not AA A, Below

Investment Type Fair Value Applicable AAA and BBB BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 142,541  § - $ 142,541 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury strips 1,685 - 1,685 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities 22,850 - 22,850 - -
Common and preferred stocks 815 815 - - -
Exchanged traded funds 18,990 18,990 - - -
Commingled funds 588,275 588,275 - - -
Real estate and other 350 350 - - -
Total investments $ 775506 $ 608,430 § 167,076 § - $ -

The University’s bond investments are exposed to interest rate risk, which is the risk that changes in
interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Interest rate risk is managed primarily
by adjusting portfolio duration.

Bond investments by length of maturity as of June 30 are summarized as follows:

2021
Less than More than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1to 5 Years 6 to 10 Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 86,703 $ 42,610 $ 19,782 $ 17,281 $ 7,030
U.S. Treasury notes 177,329 117,474 59,855 - -
U.S. Treasury strips 1,687 - 1,687 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities 27,125 4,996 10,940 11,189 -
Total bonds $ 292844 § 165080 8 92264 § 28470 $ 7,030
2020
Less than More than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1to 5 Years 6 to 10 Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 142,541 $ 66,584 $ 59,829 $ 16,128 § -
U.S. Treasury strips 1,685 - 1,685 - -
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities 22,850 - 12,574 10,276 -
Total bonds $ 167,076 §$ 66,584 $ 74,088 $ 26404 8 -
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments: Fair value is defined in the accounting standards as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Management utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs (Levels 1 and 2) and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (Level 3) within the fair
value hierarchy established by GASB. Assets carried at fair value are required to be classified and

disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets as of the report date. The quoted market
prices are from those securities traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock

Exchange, NASDAQ or an active over-the-counter

market.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs including prices quoted in active markets for similar

assets.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable including the University’s own assumptions in determining the
fair value of investments. If the inputs used to measure the financial instruments fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. The University values its
investment in the Miami University Foundation Investment Pool at fair value which is based
on its proportionate share of the investment pool. Additional information regarding the nature
and values of investments held in the investment pool can be found in Note 10.

The following table presents the investments by fair value hierarchy as of June 30:

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment assets:
U.S. Treasury bonds $ - $ 86,703 § - $ 86,703
U.S. Treasury notes - 177,329 - 177,329
U.S. Treasury strips - 1,687 - 1,687
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities - 27,125 - 27,125
Common and preferred stocks 864 - 45 909
Exchanged traded funds 18,042 - - 18,042
Other - - 369 369
Miami University Foundation investment pool - - 281,500 281,500
$ 18,906  § 292844 § 281,914  § 593,664
Funds reported at fair value based on net asset value per share:

Non-publicly traded funds
Cintrifuse Syndicate Fund II, LLC @ $ 480
Harrison Street Core Property LP Fund ® 2,227
Morgan Stanley Prime Property Fund © 5,344
Strategic Active Credit Trust ¥ 41,053
Strategic Developed Markets ex-U.S. Equity Trust ¢! 88,086
Strategic Emerging Markets Equity Trust 33,894
Strategic Global Equity Trust 41,535
Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Portfolio ™ 124,116
Strategic U.S. Equity Trust @ 82,301
PRISA LP ® 2,198
Hedge funds 395
Total investment assets $ 1015293
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2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment assets:
U.S. Treasury bonds $ - $ 142541  § - $ 142,541
U.S. Treasury strips - 1,685 - 1,685
U.S. Treasury inflation protection securities - 22,850 - 22,850
Common and preferred stocks 765 - 50 815
Exchanged traded funds 18,990 - - 18,990
Real estate and other - - 350 350
Miami University Foundation investment pool - - 223,104 223,104

$ 19755  § 167076 $ 223504 § 410,335

Funds reported at fair value based on net asset value per share:
Non-publicly traded funds:

Cintrifuse Syndicate Fund Il, LLC @ $ 204
Harrison Street Core Property LP Fund ® 2,103
Morgan Stanley Prime Property Fund © 4,975
Strategic Active Credit Trust @ 39,003
Strategic Developed Markets ex-U.S. Equity Trust © 80,545
Strategic Emerging Markets Equity Trust @ 35,593
Strategic Global Equity Trust @ 38,489
Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Portfolio ® 91,227
Strategic U.S. Equity Trust ® 67,089
PRISALP ® 2,046
Hedge funds ¥ 3,917
Tatal investment assets 3 775,506

The redemption frequency, if eligible, ranges from monthly to quarterly for the various funds reported at
fair value based on net asset value per share at June 30, 2021, with a redemption notice period, if
applicable, ranging from 30 day to 90 days. As of June 30, 2021, the University has made commitments
to limited partnerships of approximately $580 that have not yet been funded.

Certain investments that are measured at net asset value per share (or its equivalent) have not been
classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in these tables are intended to
permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the Statements of Net
Position.

@  This class includes primarily investments in limited partnerships. These funds are illiquid that, in
general, do not offer access to redemptions during the life of the partnership. Capital is periodically
called, invested, and then returned over time. Typically, these partnerships have a life exceeding ten
years and may take up to twenty years before they have fully returned called capital.

®  This fund is an open-ended commingled fund that invests in commercial real estate.

©  This fund is a real estate investment trust.

@  This fund invests primarily in long-only investments in publicly traded bonds and other debt securities
generally with below investment grade credit ratings as well as futures and options on such securities
and certain bond indices.

& This fund generally invests in long positions in publicly traded equity securities focusing in developed
economies outside of the United States including Western Europe and Asia, as well as futures and
options in such securities and certain stock indices.

This fund generally invests in long positions in a diversified equity portfolio of publicly traded
securities focusing in markets outside of the United States and Western Europe, including Asia and
Latin America as well as Eastern Europe, Africa and the less developed Mediterranean economies.
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@ This fund generally invests in long positions in global publicly traded equity securities as well as
futures and options on such securities and certain stock indices.

™ This fund generally invests in hedge funds that invest in both long and short positions in publicly
traded equity and debt securities on a global basis. Most debt securities are sub-investment grade
and may be hard to price due to thin trading volumes. The various strategies collectively target a
market neutral position.

" This fund generally invests in long positions in domestic publicly traded equity securities as well as
futures and options in such securities and certain stock indices.

0 This class includes primarily investments in hedge funds that invest in both long and short positions in
publicly traded equity and debt securities on a global basis.

All of the University's investments in publicly traded securities are subject to market risk. As a result, a
significant downturn in the securities markets could adversely affect the market value of University assets.
Investments include globally oriented strategies that include exposure to non-U.S. equity and debt
securities. While providing a potential diversification benefit, such international investments are exposed
to foreign currency risk. All direct investments and investment vehicles in the portfolios are denominated
in U.S. dollars. The University’s investments that are exposed to concentration risk consist of its holdings
in Strategic Developed Markets ex-U.S. Equity Trust fund, Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Securities
fund and Strategic U.S. Equity Trust fund which represent 8.7 percent, 12.2 percent and 8.1 percent of
the total investment assets at June 30, 2021, respectively (10.4 percent, 11.8 percent and 8.6 percent at
June 30, 2020). Exposure to individual diversified commingled funds does exceed five percent of
investments. Commingled funds held by the University include a wide range of investments, including
hedge funds. The University’s objective for investing in these hedge funds is to provide stable, absolute
returns that are uncorrelated to fluctuations in the stock and bond markets. Specific investments are also
reviewed and aggregated, as available from each fund manager, on a regular basis to ensure that the
portfolio does not maintain unwarranted concentration risks with respect to any single factor or security at
the fund manager's level, asset class level and portfolio level. Foreign currency risk is the risk that
changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or deposit. At June 30,
2021 and 2020, the University had no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Endowment funds: The Miami University Foundation (Foundation) manages the Foundation and
University endowment and quasi-endowment funds in a single investment pool (Pooled Fund). The
University investment is maintained as a separate fund in the financial system of the Foundation and
receives a proportionate share of the Pooled Fund's activity. The Foundation owns the assets of the
Pooled Fund; the University has an interest in the Pooled Fund. The Foundation’s Pooled Fund is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. The Foundation’s
Board of Directors appoints an Investment Committee, which is responsible for oversight of the Pooled
Fund in accordance with Foundation policies. University investments include $281,500 and $223,104
managed by the Foundation as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The assets held on behalf of the
University are included in other noncurrent liabilities on the Statements of Net Position of the Foundation.
The fair value of the University's position in the Pooled Fund is based on the University’s proportional
share of the Pooled Fund, which is marked-to-market at year-end. Note 10 provides additional information
on the Foundation and the Pooled Fund.

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as adopted by the State of Ohio
provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and expenditure of donor-restricted
endowment funds held by charitable organizations. The University’s interpretation of its fiduciary
responsibilities for donor-restricted endowments under UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence of
any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to
produce maximum total return without assuming inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing
these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that
provides the best total return over very long time periods.
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Note 2.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

The University employs a total return policy which defines the total amount of dividends, interest and
realized gains to be distributed from the endowment assets. The policy distributes four percent of the

average of the previous twelve quarterly market values as of March 31 of each fiscal year. The

authorized spending amount was $8,909 and $8,740 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. In accordance with
donors’ stipulations, a portion of the earnings was returned to endowment principal and the balance of
$7,531 and $7,277 was distributed for expenditure for 2021 and 2020, respectively. Donor restricted
endowments with insufficient accumulated earnings made a partial distribution.

Note 3.

The accounts, pledges and notes receivable as of June 30 are summarized as follows:

Accounts receivable:

Student receivables

University Foundation

Grants and contracts

Investment trade receivables

Other receivables
Total accounts receivable

Less allowances for doubtful accounts
Net accounts receivable

Pledges receivable:
Pledges receivable
Less allowance for doubtful pledges
Net pledges receivable

Notes receivable:
Federal loan programs
University loan programs
Total notes receivable
Less allowance for doubtful notes
Net notes receivable

Total

Accounts, Pledges and Notes Receivable, Net
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2021 2020

8,674 11,051
17,019 16,246
27,649 11,216
7,503 17,467
4,905 4,367
65,750 60,347
(1,250) (1,285)
64,500 59,062
25,692 8,596
(806) (606)
24,886 7,990
3,510 4,185
3,463 3,794
6,973 7,979
(1,874) (1,874)
5,099 6,105
94,485 73,157
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Note 4.  Capital Assets
The capital assets and accumulated depreciation as of June 30 are summarized as follows:

2021
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Transfers Balance
Capital assets:
Land $ 6025 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,025
Collections of works of art and historical
treasures 10,437 253 - - 10,690
Construction in progress 49,991 23,445 - (43,147) 30,289
Total nondepreciable capital assets 66,453 23,698 - (43,147) 47,004
Land improvements 67,128 3,641 - 2,098 72,867
Buildings 1,742,286 3,094 (5,534) 20,808 1,760,654
Infrastructure 180,294 1,752 - 20,241 202,287
Machinery and equipment 88,744 3,128 (4,333) - 87,539
Library books and publications 74,444 1,599 - - 76,043
Vehicles 6,682 52 (740) - 5,994
Intangible assets 12,061 - (5) - 12,056
Total depreciable capital assets 2,171,639 13,266 (10,612) 43,147 2,217,440
Total capital assets 2,238,092 36,964 (10,612) - 2,264,444
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 619,862 57,507 (2,455) - 674,914
Infrastructure 93,390 6,945 - - 100,335
Land improvements 26,496 2,509 - - 29,005
Machinery and equipment 33,697 4,717 (4,332) - 34,082
Library books and publications 56,497 1,818 - - 58,315
Vehicles 6,035 267 (743) - 5,559
Intangible assets 11,952 31 (6) - 11,977
Total accumulated depreciation 847,929 73,794 (7,536) - 914,187
Total capital assets, net $ 1,390,163  § (36,830) $ (3,076) $ - $ 1,350,257
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2020
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Transfers Balance
Capital assets:
Land $ 60256 $ - $ . $ - 6,025
Collections of works of art and historical
treasures 10,160 277 - 10,437
Construction in progress 173,878 49,442 - (173,329) 49,991
Total nondepreciable capital assets 190,063 49,719 - (173,329) 66,453
Land improvements 63,098 2,410 - 1,620 67,128
Buildings 1,584,247 - (13,670) 171,709 1,742,286
Infrastructure 179,132 1,162 - - 180,294
Machinery and equipment 85,212 6,203 (2,671) - 88,744
Library books and publications 72,882 1,562 - - 74,444
Vehicles 6,735 339 (392) - 6,682
Intangible assets 12,660 - (599) - 12,061
Total depreciable capital assets 2,003,966 11,676 (17,332) 173,329 2,171,639
Total capital assets 2,194,029 61,395 (17,332) - 2,238,092
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 572,130 53,674 (5,942) - 619,862
Infrastructure 86,883 6,507 - - 93,390
Land improvements 24,155 2,341 - - 26,496
Machinery and equipment 31,279 5,089 (2,671) - 33,697
Library books and publications 54,636 1,861 - - 56,497
Vehicles 6,148 279 (392) - 6,035
Intangible assets 12,520 31 (599) - 11,952
Total accumulated depreciation 787,751 69,782 (9,604) - 847,929
Total capital assets, net $ 1,406,278 $ (8,387) $ (7,728) % - 1,390,163
Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities
The long-term liabilities as of June 30 are summarized as follows:
2021
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Bonds and leases payable:
Bonds payable $ 578,519 § 204,400 $ (158,145) $ 624,774 36,885
Capital leases payable 1,761 3,118 (882) 3,996 887
Premiums 44,558 49,539 (8,176) 85,921 -
Total bonds and leases payable 624,838 257,057 (167,203) 714,691 37,772
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 18,226 10,774 (9.291) 19,709 1,367
Federal Perkins loans 2,630 232 (903) 1,959 640
Total other liabilities 20,856 11,006 (10,194) 21,668 2,007
Total 3 645694 $ 268063 § (177397) $ 736,359 39,779
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)
2020

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Bonds and leases payable:
Bonds payable $ 610,365 § - $ (31,846) $ 578,519 § 33,205
Capital leases payable 1,880 - (119) 1,761 123
Premiums 46,883 - (2,325) 44 558 -
Total bonds and leases payable 659,128 - (34,290) 624,838 33,328
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 17,698 8,140 (7,612) 18,226 1,286
Federal Perkins loans 4,297 270 (1,937) 2,630 770
Total other liabilities 21,995 8,410 (9,549) 20,856 2,056
Total $ 681,123 § 8410 § (43,839) 8 645694 § 35,384

Miami University's General Receipts Revenue Bonds (Series 2010A, 2011, 2012, 2014, 2017, 2020A and
2021A) relate to the multi-phase effort to renovate all campus student housing and dining facilities as well
as general educational facilities, contain subjective acceleration clauses. In the event of default, the
Trustee, upon the written request of the bondholders of not less than 25 percent (in aggregate) principal
amount of the obligations outstanding shall, declare the principal of all obligation with accrued interest
thereon, to be immediately due and payable on the announced accelerated maturity date.

Additional information regarding the bonds and capital leases is included in Note 6.

Note 6. Indebtedness

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the University issued $75,930 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds
(2021A) with an interest rate of 5.00 percent and maturities from 2022 to 2037. The proceeds were used
to refund the Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2011, which were callable on

September 1, 2021. The net change in cash flows related to the refunding was approximately $26,169
and the net present value savings was approximately $23,205. In 2021, the University defeased the
Series 2011 bonds by placing the proceeds from the Series 2021A bonds into an escrow to provide for
future debt service. The outstanding balance of the defeased bonds was $75,930 as of June 30, 2021.

The June 9, 2021 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the net carrying amount of the old debt
and the reacquisition price of $5,430. The unamortized difference of $5,402 at June 30, 2021 is reported
in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred inflow of resources and is being amortized
through the year 2037.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the University also issued $128,470 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2021 to 2046. A
part of the proceeds of the 2020A Series were used to refund the mandatory sinking fund redemption for
years 2035 through 2037 for the Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2012, and the
mandatory sinking fund redemption for years 2035 and 2036 for the Miami University General Receipts
Bonds, Series 2014. The balance of the proceeds are for all or a portion of the cost of the acquisition,
construction, equipping and/or furnishing of certain facilities on the main campus of the University,
including a new health sciences building and a new digital innovation multidisciplinary building.

The July 16, 2020 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the net carrying amount of the old debt
and the reacquisition price of $278. The unamortized difference of $263 at June 30, 2021 is reported in

the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized through
the year 2035 for the refunding of Series 2012 Bonds.
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The July 16, 2020 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the net carrying amount of the old debt
and the reacquisition price of $199. The unamortized difference of $190 at June 30, 2021 is reported in
the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized through
the year 2035 for the refunding of Series 2014 Bonds.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the University issued $154,635 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2017 to 2042. A
part of the proceeds were used to refund a portion of the remaining Miami University General Receipts
Bonds, Series 2007. The net change in cash flows related to the refunding was approximately $5,800 and
the net present value savings was approximately $5,000. In 2017, the University defeased a portion of the
Series 2007 bonds by placing some of the proceeds from the Series 2017 bonds into an escrow account
to provide for future debt service. The outstanding balance of defeased bonds were $32,250 and $36,765
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The February 14, 2017 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the net carrying amount of the old
debt and the reacquisition price of $599. The unamortized difference of $369 and $429 at June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively, is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred inflow of
resources and is being amortized through the year 2028.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the University issued $52,335 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds
with a 1.88 percent coupon and maturities from 2016 to 2025. The proceeds were used to retire the
existing Series 2005 bonds.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the University issued $135,035 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2015 to 2040.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the University issued $116,065 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2014 to 2038.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the University issued $148,775 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2012 to 2037. A
part of the proceeds were used to refund a portion of the remaining Miami University General Receipts
Bonds, Series 2003. The net change in cash flows related to the refunding was approximately $2,100 and
the net present value savings was approximately $1,600. In fiscal year 2012, the University defeased a
portion of the Series 2003 bonds by placing some of the proceeds from the Series 2011 bonds into an
escrow account to provide for all future debt service. The outstanding balance of defeased bonds were
$11,070 and $14,400 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The December 21, 2011 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the net carrying amount of the
old debt and the reacquisition price of $1,209. The unamortized difference of $387 at June 30, 2020 is
reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred inflow of resources and was amortized
in full during the year ending June 30, 2021.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the University issued $125,000 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds consisting of $105,445 Series 2010A (Federally Taxable Build America Bonds - Direct Payment)
and $19,555 Series 2010B (Tax-Exempt Bonds). Interest rates range from 4.81 percent to 6.77 percent
for the Series 2010A bonds and 5.00 percent for the Series 2010B bonds. Maturities range from 2017 to
2036 for the Series 2010A bonds with a final payment in 2017 for the Series 2010B bonds. The Series
2010 bond proceeds were used to provide funding for the first phase of planned improvements to student
housing and dining facilities and the first phase of construction of the Armstrong Student Center.
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Note 6.

The proceeds of the 2021A issuance was to refund the 2011 issuance, which was primarily used to
refund the 2003 issuance. The proceeds from the 2020A issuance refunded the mandatory sinking fund
for both the 2012 and 2014 issuances, in addition to financing the cost of certain facilities on the main
campus of the University, including a new health sciences building and a new digital innovation
multidisciplinary building. The proceeds from the 2017, 2014, 2013, and 2012 issuances have been and
will continue to be used to fund the multi-phase effort to renovate all campus student housing and dining
facilities as well as to retire outstanding indebtedness of the University for more favorable borrowing
terms as described in the proceeding paragraphs. The 2015 issuance was to refinance the 2005 issuance
that was used to fund the campus student housing and dining facilities as well as the Farmer School of
Business and infrastructure projects. The 2010A issuance was used to fund the Armstrong Student
Center as well as campus student housing and dining facilities.

Indebtedness (Continued)

The indebtedness created through the issuance of General Receipts’ bonds is collateralized by a pledge
of all general receipts, excluding state appropriations and monies received for restricted purposes.

The University incurred total interest costs of $27,665 and $25,343 for the years ending June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively. The interest costs that were capitalized during the year ending June 30, 2020
totaled $409. As a result of the adoption of GASB Statement No. 89, no interest costs were capitalized on
or after June 30, 2020.

The maturity dates, interest rates, and outstanding principal balances as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Maturity Interest Outstanding
Dates Rates Debt

Bonds payable:
Series 2021A general receipts 2022 - 2037 5.00% $ 75,930
Series 2020A general receipts 2022 - 2046 4.00% - 5.00% 128,470
Series 2017 general receipts 2022 - 2042 4.00% - 5.00% 132,115
Series 2015 general receipts 2022 - 2025 1.88% 21,815
Series 2014 general receipts 2022 - 2040 3.50% - 5.00% 102,225
Series 2012 general receipts 2022 - 2038 3.00% - 5.00% 67,474
Series 2011 general receipts 2022 - 2037 5.00% 7,270
Series 2010A general receipts 2022 - 2036 5.76% - 6.77% 88,475
Total bonds payable 624,774
Bond premiums 85,921
Total bonds payable, net $ 710,695

The maturity dates, interest rates, and outstanding principal balances as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Maturity Interest Outstanding
Dates Rates Debt

Bonds payable:
Series 2017 general receipts 2021 - 2042 4.00%-5.00% § 139,260
Series 2015 general receipts 2021 - 2025 1.88% 27,020
Series 2014 general receipts 2021 - 2040 3.50% - 5.00% 116,895
Series 2012 general receipts 2021 - 2038 3.00% - 5.00% 93,844
Series 2011 general receipts 2021 - 2037 4.00% - 5.00% 107,820
Series 2010A general receipts 2021 - 2036 5.56% -6.77% 93,680
Total bonds payable 578,519
Bond premiums 44,558
Total bonds payable, net $ 623,077
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Note 6. Indebtedness (Continued)

The principal and interest payments for the bonds in future years are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 36,885 § 29,962 $ 66,847
2023 37,585 27,229 64,814
2024 39,265 25,432 64,697
2025 34,674 23,801 58,475
2026 30,470 22,231 52,701
2027 - 2031 144,800 88,544 233,344
2032 - 2036 160,240 48,449 208,689
2037 - 2041 102,805 16,204 119,009
2042 - 2046 38,050 2,812 40,862

Total $ 624,774 3 284664 $ 909,438

The University has $3,996 in capitalized lease obligations that have varying maturity dates through 2032
and carry implicit interest rates ranging from 2.65 percent to 6.38 percent. The scheduled maturities of

these leases as of June 30, 2021 are:

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027 - 2031
2032
Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Net minimum lease payments

770
768
768
769
178
888
178

4,319
(323)

$

3,996

Certain buildings are financed with capital leases. The carrying amount of the buildings related to these
capital leases as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is $2,086 and $2,138, respectively.

Note 7.  Net Pension Liability / Asset

Substantially all non-student employees are covered by one of three retirement plans. The University
faculty is covered by the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). Non-faculty employees
are covered by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (OPERS). Employees may opt out

of STRS Ohio and OPERS and patrticipate in the Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP).

OPERS offers three separate retirement plans: the defined benefit plan (traditional plan), the defined
contribution plan, and a combined plan. The defined contribution plan is excluded as it is not material to

the financial statements for reporting purposes.

Defined benefit plans: Both STRS Ohio and OPERS (traditional and combined plans) are cost-sharing
multiple-employer statewide retirement systems. Both plans provide retirement, disability, postretirement
health care coverage, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and

amend benefits is provided by state statute.
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STRS Ohio and OPERS issue stand-alone financial reports. Copies of these reports may be obtained by
visiting the STRS website at www.strsoh.org, or visiting the OPERS website at www.opers.org.

Benefits provided: STRS Ohio plan benefits are established under Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised
Code (ORC), as amended by Substitute Senate Bill 342 in 2012, which gives the Retirement Board the
authority to make future adjustments to the member contribution rate, retirement age and service
requirements, and the cost-of-living adjustment as the need or opportunity arises, depending on the
retirement system’s funding progress.

Any member in the STRS Ohio plan may retire who has (1) five years of service credit and attained age
60; (2) 26 years of service credit and attained age 55; or (3) 31 years of service credit regardless of age.
Beginning August 1, 2015, eligibility requirements for an unreduced benefit changed. The maximum
annual retirement allowance, payable for life, considers years of credited service, final average salary (3-
5 years) and multiplying by a factor ranging from 2.2 percent to 2.6 percent with 0.1 percent incremental
increases for years greater than 30-31, depending on retirement age. Additionally, there are no cost-of-
living adjustments.

A plan member with five or more years of credited service who is determined to be disabled (iliness or
injury preventing individual's ability to perform regular job duties for at least 12 months) may receive a
disability benefit. Additionally, eligible survivors of members who die before service retirement may qualify
for monthly benefits. New members on or after July 1, 2013, must have at least 10 years of qualifying
service credit to apply for disability benefits.

A death benefit of $1,000 is payable to the beneficiary of each deceased retired member who participated
in the plan. Death benefit coverage up to $2,000 can be purchased by participants in all three of the
plans. Various other benefits are available to members’ beneficiaries.

OPERS plan benefits are established under Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code, as amended by
Substitute Senate Bill 343 in 2012. The requirements to retire depend on years of service (15 to 30 years)
and from attaining the age of 48 to 62, depending on when the employee became a member. Members
retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of service credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit.
Member retirement benefits are calculated on a formula that considers years of service (15-30 years), age
(48-62 years) and final average salary, using a factor ranging from 1.0 percent to 2.5 percent.

A plan member who becomes disabled before age 60 or at any age, depending on when the member
entered the plan, and has completed 60 contributing months is eligible for a disability benefit.

A death benefit of $500 - $2,500 is determined by the number of years of service credit of the retiree.
Benefits may transfer to a beneficiary upon death with 1.5 years of service credits with the plan obtained
within the last 2.5 years, except for law enforcement and public safety personnel, who are eligible
immediately upon employment.

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee’s retirement allowance
subsequent to the employee’s retirement date. The annual adjustment, if applicable, is 3 percent.

Contribution requirements: Employer and member contribution rates are established by the State
Teachers Retirement Board and limited by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. The statutory
employer rate and member contribution rate is 14.0 percent of covered payroll (for both pension and
OPEB and the Plan determines how much to allocate to OPEB each year). For STRS Ohio, the University
contributed $9,553 and $10,736 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Note 7.  Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)

OPERS plan contributions are established under Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code, as amended by
Substitute Senate Bill 343 in 2012, During calendar years 2020 and 2019 and forward, employees
covered by the OPERS system were required by state statute to contribute 10.0 percent of their salary to
the plan. The University was required to contribute 14.0 percent of covered payroll, and the Plans
determine how much to allocate to OPEB each year. Law enforcement employees who are a part of the
OPERS law enforcement division contribute 13.0 percent of their salary to the plan for the calendar years
2020 and 2019, For these employees, the University was required to contribute 18.1 percent of covered
payroll for the same years. The member contribution rate for all other employees and the University's
contribution rate remained unchanged. The University contributed $13,032 and $14,261 for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. For 2021, no portion of employer contributions to OPERS
were allocated to health care (OPEB) for members in the Traditional Plan.

The payroll for employees covered by STRS Ohio for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was
approximately $68,234 and $76,683, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by OPERS for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $92,496 and $101,097, respectively.

Pension liabilities and assets, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions: At June 30, 2021, the University reported a liability of
$275,718 forits proportionate share of the net pension liability for the OPERS Traditional plan and the
STRS Ohio plan, in the amounts of $92,084 and $183,634, respectively. The net pension liability was
measured as of December 31, 2020 for the OPERS traditional plan and June 30, 2020 for the STRS Ohio
plan. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of the same date for each plan. The amount used to allocate the net pension liability,
deferred inflows/outflows and pension expense was based on the contributions during the measurement
period which was determined by the OPERS Traditional plan and STRS Ohio plan to be a reliable
approximation of long term contribution effort to the two plans. At the measurement date, the University's
proportion was .621864 percent for OPERS Traditional, which was a decrease of .082589 from its
proportion measured as of December 31, 2019 and .758928 percent for STRS Ohio, which was a
decrease of .012028 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

At June 30, 2020, the University reported a liability of $309,786 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability for the OPERS Traditional plan and the STRS Ohio plan, in the amounts of $139,294 and
$170,492, respectively. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018 for the OPERS
traditional plan and June 30, 2019 for the STRS Ohio plan. The total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the same date for each plan. The
amount used to allocate the net pension liability, deferred inflows/outflows and pension expense was
based on the contributions during the measurement period which was determined by the OPERS
Traditional plan and STRS Ohio plan to be a reliable approximation of long term contribution effort to the
two plans. At the measurement date, the University’s proportion was .704723 percent for OPERS
Traditional, which was an increase of .00093 from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018 and
770956 percent for STRS Ohio, which was a decrease of .00006 from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018.

At June 30, 2021, the University reported an asset of $2,053 for its proportionate share of the net pension
asset for the OPERS Combined plan. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2020.
The method used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The amount used to allocate the net pension asset, deferred inflows/outflows and pension expense
was based on the contributions during the measurement period which was determined by the OPERS
Combined plan and to be a reliable approximation of long term contribution effort to the plan. At the
measurement date, the University's proportion was .711364 percent for OPERS Combined plan, which
was a decrease of .106741 from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2019.
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Note 7. Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)

At June 30, 2020, the University reported an asset of $1,706 for its proportionate share of the net pension
asset for the OPERS Combined plan. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2019.
The method used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The amount used to allocate the net pension asset, deferred inflows/outflows and pension expense
was based on the contributions during the measurement period which was determined by the OPERS
Combined plan and to be a reliable approximation of long term contribution effort to the plan. At the
measurement date, the University’s proportion was .818105 percent for OPERS Combined plan, which
was an increase of .00144 from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the University recognized pension expense of approximately $27,459
consisting of pension of approximately $3,544 for the OPERS Traditional plan, approximately $23,863 for
the STRS Ohio plan and an expense of $52 for the OPERS Combined plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the University recognized pension expense of approximately $50,680
consisting of pension expense of approximately $23,871 for the OPERS Traditional plan, approximately
$26,703 for the STRS Ohio plan and an expense of $106 for the OPERS Combined plan.

At June 30, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

2021
STRS Ohio OPERS Total
Deferred outflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience  $ 412  $ - $ 412
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 8,930 - 8,930
Changes in assumptions 9,858 128 9,986
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 877 4,514 5,391
University contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 9,553 6,128 15,681
Total $ 29630 % 10,770 $ 40,400
Deferred inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience  $ 1174  § 4239 $ 5,413
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments - 36,197 36,197
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,620 11,545 14,165
Total $ 3794 § 51,981 § 55,775
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Note 7.  Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)

Deferred outflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
University contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
Total

Deferred inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

2020

STRS Ohio OPERS Total
$ 1,381 § - $ 1,381
20,059 6,605 26,664
3,115 22,350 25,465
10,736 6,735 17,471
$ 35291 § 35690 § 70,981
$ 739§ 2011 § 2,750
8,483 31,659 40,142
994 4,172 5,166
$ 10216 $ 37,842 § 48,058

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments are amortized over five years. The remaining deferred inflows and
outflows of resources are amortized over the average remaining service lives of the active and inactive
participants in the plan. Deferred outflows of resources includes $15,681 and $17,471, for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, for University contributions subsequent to the measurement
dates of the Plans and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent
fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
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STRS Ohio OPERS Total
$ 6,038 $ (18503) $ (12,465)
2,342 (9,001) (6,659)
4,341 (14,795) (10,454)
3,562 (4.971) (1,409)
- (33) (33)
- (36) (36)
$ 16283 $  (47,339) $ (31,056)
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Note 7.  Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)
Actuarial assumptions used for the year-ended June 30, 2021

For STRS Ohio, the total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

STRS Ohio

Inflation 2.50 percent

Projected salary increases 12.50 percent at age 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
Investment rate of return 7.45 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation
Discount rate of return 7.45 percent

Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) 0.00 percent

For OPERS, the total pension liability/asset in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

OPERS Traditional Pension Plan Combined Plan

Wage Inflation 3.25 percent 3.25 percent

Projected salary increases 3.25 percent to 10.75 percent (includes 3.25 percent to 8.25 percent (includes wage
wage inflation at 3.25 percent) inflation at 3.25 percent)

:jr:\slgztjnr:te :;treate of return and 7.20 percent 7.20 percent

Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA)  Pre January 7, 2013 retirees: 3.00 percent Pre January 7, 2013 retirees: 3.00 percent
simple simple
Post January 7, 2013 retirees: .5 percent ~ Post January 7, 2013 retirees: .5 percent
simple through 2021, then 2.15 percent simple through 2021, then 2.15 percent
simple simple

Mortality rates: STRS Ohio post-retirement mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Annuitant Mortality
Table with 50% of rates through age 69, 70% of rates between ages 70 and 79, 90% of rates between
ages 80 and 84, and 100% of rates thereafter, projected forward generationally using mortality
improvement scale MP-2016. Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employee Mortality
Tables, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016. Post-retirement
disabled mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table with 90% of rates for males
and 100% of rates for females, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-
2016.

OPERS pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employees mortality table for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base
year for males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement
mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality tables for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality
rates for disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Mortality rates for a
particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to all of the
above described tables.
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Note 7.  Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)

Experience studies: STRS actuarial assumption used in the June 30, 2020 valuation are based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. OPERS
actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation are based on the results of an actual
experience study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2015.

Investment return assumptions: STRS Chio utilizes investment consultants to develop an estimated
range for the investment return assumption based on the target allocation adopted by the respective
Retirement Board of STRS Ohio.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPERS defined benefit investment assets was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return were
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage,
adjusted for inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

STRS Ohio OPERS
Long-Term Long-Term

Expected Real Target Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation  Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic equities 2800 % 735 % 21.00 % 5.64 %
Internaticnal equities 23.00 7.55 23.00 7.36
Alternative investments 17.00 7.09 12.00 10.42
Fixed income 21.00 3.00 25.00 1.32
Real estate 10.00 6.00 10.00 5.39
Other 1.00 2.25 9.00 4.75

Total 100.00 % 100.00 %

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.45 percent for STRS
Ohio as of the measurement date (June 30, 2020). The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumes that member and employer contributions will be made at the statutorily required
rates and that all of the contributions would be made to the pension plan, with none of the future
contributions paid to the OPEB plan. Based on those assumptions, the STRS Ohio’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.45 percent was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability (asset) was 7.20 percent for OPERS as of
the measurement date (December 31, 2020). The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employer contributions will be made at
the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability (asset).
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Note 7.

Net Pension Liability / Asset (Continued)

Sensitivity of net pension liability (asset) to changes in discount rate: The following presents the
University's proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net pension liability (asset) calculated
using a discount rate 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’ current rate.

STRS Ohio

OPERS - Traditional Plan
OPERS - Combined Plan

2021
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.45%) (7.45%) (8.45%)
$ 261,462 $ 183,634 $ 117,680
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)
$ 175652 $ 92,084 $ 22,599
(1,430) (2,053) (2,518)

Actuarial assumptions used for the year-ended June 30, 2020

For STRS Ohio, the total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

STRS Ohio

Inflation

Projected salary increases
Investment rate of return

Discount rate of return
Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA)

2.50 percent

12.50 percent at age 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
7.45 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation

7.45 percent
0.00 percent

For OPERS, the total pension liability/asset in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

OPERS

Traditional Pension Plan

Combined Plan

Wage Inflation
Projected salary increases

Investment rate of return and
discount rate

Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA)

Attachment A

3.25 percent

3.25 percent to 10.75 percent (includes
wage inflation at 3.25 percent)

7.20 percent

Pre January 7, 2013 retirees: 3.00 percent
simple

Post January 7, 2013 retirees: 1.40 percent
simple through 2020, then 2.15 percent
simple
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3.25 percent

3.25 percent to 8.25 percent (includes wage
inflation at 3.25 percent)

7.20 percent

Pre January 7, 2013 retirees: 3.00 percent
simple

Post January 7, 2013 retirees: 1.40 percent
simple through 2020, then 2.15 percent
simple
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Mortality rates: STRS Ohio post-retirement mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Annuitant
Mortality Table with 50% of rates through age 69, 70% of rates between ages 70 and 79, 90% of rates
between ages 80 and 84, and 100% of rates thereafter, projected forward generationally using mortality
improvement scale MP-2016. Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employee Mortality
Table, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016, Post-retirement
disabled mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table with 90% of rates for males
and 100% of rates for females, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-
2016.

OPERS pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employees mortality table for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base
year for males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement
mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality tables for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality
rates for disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Mortality rates for a
particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to all of the
above described tables.

Experience studies: STRS actuarial assumption used in the July 1, 2019 valuation are based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. OPERS
actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation are based on the results of an actual
experience study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2015.

Investment return assumptions: STRS Ohio utilizes investment consultants to develop an estimated
range for the investment return assumption based on the target allocation adopted by the respective
Retirement Board of STRS Ohio.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPERS defined benefit investment assets was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return were
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage,
adjusted for inflation,

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the foliowing table:

STRS Ohio OPERS
Long-Term Long-Term

Expected Real Target Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation  Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic equities 28.00 % 7.35 1900 % 5.75 %
International equities 23.00 7.55 21.00 7.66
Alternative investments 17.00 7.09 12.00 10.70
Fixed income 21.00 3.00 25.00 1.83
Real estate 10.00 6.00 10.00 5.20
QOther 1.00 2.25 13.00 4.98

Total 100.00 % 100.00 %
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Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.45 percent for STRS
Ohio as of the measurement date (June 30, 2019). The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumes that member and employer contributions will be made at the statutorily required
rates and that all contributions would be made to the pension plan with more of the future contributions
paid to the OPEB plan. Based on those assumptions, the STRS Chio's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.45% was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability (asset) was 7.20 percent for OPERS as of
the measurement date (December 31, 2019). The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employer contributions will be made at
the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability (asset).

Sensitivity of net pension liability (asset) to changes in discount rate: The following presents the
University’s proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net pension liability (asset) calculated
using a discount rate 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’ current rate.

2020
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.45%) (7.45%) (8.45%)
STRS Ohio $ 249156 $ 170,492 $ 103,900
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)
OPERS - Traditional Plan $ 229,740 $ 139,294 $ 57,985
OPERS - Combined Plan (1,031) (1,706) (2,192)
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Note 8. Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

Full-time faculty and unclassified employees are eligible to participate in the Alternative Retirement Plan
(ARP) offered by STRS Ohio and OPERS. Full-time faculty and unclassified employees are eligible to
choose a provider, in lieu of STRS Ohio or OPERS, from the list of six providers currently approved by the
Ohio Department of Insurance and who hold agreements with the University. The University’s Board of
Trustees has established the employer and employee contributions requirements, which are noted below.

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to participate in
the ARP. Under this plan, employees who would have otherwise been required to be in STRS Ohio or
OPERS, and who elect to participate in the ARP, must contribute the employee’s share of retirement
contributions to one of seven private providers approved by the Ohio Department of Insurance. The
legislation mandates that the employer must contribute an amount to the state retirement system to which
the employee would have otherwise belonged, based on an independent actuarial study commissioned
by the Ohio Retirement Study Council and submitted to the Ohio Board of Regents. The required
contribution was 4.47 percent for STRS Ohio and 2.44 percent for OPERS of covered payroll for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The employer also contributes what would have been the
employer’s contribution under STRS Ohio or OPERS, less the aforementioned percentages, to the private
provider selected by the employee. The University plan provides these employees with vesting after one
year. The pension expense for the ARP was $7,600 and $7,976 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement health care
benefits, or death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits consist of the sum of contributions
and investment returns earned by each participant’s choice of investment options.

The payroll for employees electing the alternative retirement program for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020 was approximately $75,362 and $78,891, respectively.

Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

OPEB plans: STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing multiple employer statewide retirement plan. STRS Ohio
provides access to health care coverage for eligible retirees who participated in the Defined Benefit or
Combined Plans and their eligible dependents. Coverage under the current program includes
hospitalization, physicians’ fees and prescription drugs and reimbursement of a portion of the monthly
Medicare Part B premiums. Pursuant to the ORC, the State Teachers Retirement Board has discretionary
authority over how much, if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed by the plan. All
benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care costs in the form of a monthly premium. Benefit
recipients contributed $295.8 million or 60% and $312.8 million or 64% of the total health care costs in
fiscal 2021 and 2020, respectively (excluding deductibles, coinsurance and copayments).

Medicare Part D is a federal program to help cover the costs of prescription drugs for Medicare
beneficiaries. This program allows STRS Ohio to recover part of the cost for providing prescription
coverage since all eligible STRS Ohio health care plans include creditable prescription drug coverage.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, STRS Ohio received $81.9 million in Medicare Part D
reimbursements.

44

Attachment A Overall Page 83 of 258 Attachment Page 76 of 125



Independent Auditor
Attachment A RSM US LLP December 9, 2021

Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

The ORC permits, but does not require, OPERS to offer post-employment health care coverage.
Authority to establish and amend health care coverage is provided in Chapter 145 of the ORC. The ORC
allows a portion of the employers’ contributions to be used to fund health care coverage. The health care
portion of the employer contribution rate for the Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Plan is
comparable, as the same coverage options are provided to participants in both plans. Beginning
January 1, 2015, the service eligibility criteria for health care coverage increased from 10 years to 20
years with a minimum age of 60, or 30 years of qualifying service at any age. Beginning with January
2016 premiums, Medicare-eligible retirees could select supplemental coverage, and may be eligible for
monthly allowances deposited to an HRA to be used for reimbursement of eligible health care expenses.
Coverage for non-Medicare retirees includes hospitalization, medical expenses and prescription drugs.
The System determines the amount, if any, of the associated health care costs that will be absorbed by
the System and attempts to control costs by using managed care, case management, and other
programs. Additional details on health care coverage can be found in the Plan Statement in the OPERS
2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The OPERS funding policy provides for periaodic member and employer contributions at rates established
by the Board, subject to limits set in statute, With assistance of the System’s actuary and Board approval,
a portion of each employer contribution to OPERS may be set aside for the funding of post-employment
health care coverage. All contribution rates were within the limits authorized by the ORC. The portion of
Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Plan employer contributions allocated to health care was zero for
2020.

STRS Ohio and OPERS issue stand-alone financial reports. Copies of these reports may be obtained by
visiting the STRS website at www.strsoh.org, or visiting the OPERS website at www.opers.org.

The payroll for employees covered by STRS Ohio for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was
approximately $68,234 and $76,683, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by OPERS for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $92,496 and $101,097, respectively. There
were no employer contributions made to fund post-employment benefits for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020.

OPEB asset, OPEB liabilities, OPEB expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB: At June 30, 2021, the University reported an asset of $11,294
for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for the OPERS plan. The net OPEB asset was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019, rolled forward to the measurement date of
December 31, 2020. The amount used to allocate the net OPEB asset, deferred inflows/outflows and
OPEB expense was based on the total employer (pension and OPEB) contributions during the
measurement period which was determined by the OPERS plan to be a reliable approximation of long
term contribution effort to the plan. At the measurement date, the University's proportion was .633933
percent for OPERS, which was an decrease of .085446 from its proportion measured as of December 31,
2019.

At June 30, 2020, the University reported a liability of $99,365 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability for the OPERS plan. The net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2018, rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2019. The amount used to
allocate the net OPEB liability, deferred inflows/outflows and OPEB expense was based on the total
employer {pension and OPEB) contributions during the measurement period which was determined by
the OPERS plan to be a reliable approximation of long term contribution effort to the plan. At the
measurement date, the University’s proportion was .719379 percent for OPERS, which was an increase
of .00097 from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018.
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

At June 30, 2021, the University reported an asset of $13,338 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
asset for the STRS Ohio plan. The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2020 for the STRS
Ohio plan. The total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date for the plan. The amount used to allocate the net OPEB asset, deferred
inflows/outflows and OPEB expense was based on the total employer (pension and OPEB) contributions
during the measurement period which was determined by the STRS Ohio plan to be a reliable
approximation of long term contribution effort to the plan. At the measurement date, the University's
proportion was .758928 percent for STRS Ohio, which was a decrease of .012028 from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2019.

At June 30, 2020, the University reported an asset of $12,762 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
asset for the STRS Ohio plan. The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2019 for the STRS
Ohio plan. The total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date for the plan. The amount used to allocate the net OPEB asset, deferred
inflows/outflows and OPEB expense was based on the total employer (pension and OPEB) contributions
during the measurement period which was determined by the STRS Ohio plan to be a reliable
approximation of long term contribution effort to the plan. At the measurement date, the University’s
proportion was .770956 percent for STRS Ohio, which was a decrease of .00006 from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the University recognized OPEB (income) of approximately $(72,750)
consisting of OPEB income of approximately $(72,741) for the OPERS plan and ($9) for the STRS Ohio
plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the University recognized OPEB expense of approximately $13,057

consisting of OPEB expense of approximately $13,057 for the OPERS plan and $0 for the STRS Ohio
plan.
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)
At June 30, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred outflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

Deferred inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

Deferred outflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

Deferred inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between University
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

47

2021

STRS Ohio OPERS Total
$ 855 - 855
467 - 467
220 5,552 5,772
- 2,993 2,993
$ 1,542 8,545 10,087
$ 2,657 10,193 12,850
- 6,015 6,015
12,669 18,300 30,969
350 7,260 7,610
3 15,676 41,768 57444

2020

STRS Ohio OPERS Total
$ 1,160 2 1,162
260 15,708 15,968
579 8,873 9,452
$ 1,999 24,583 _ 26,582
$ 653 9,070 9,723
804 5,745 6,549
14,093 - 14,093
15 5,074 5,089
$ 15,565 19,889 35454
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments is amortized over five years. The remaining deferred inflows and
outflows of resources are amortized over the average remaining service lives of the active and inactive
participants in the plan. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense (benefit) as follows:

STRS Ohio OPERS Total
Year ended June 30:

2022 $ (3,545) $ (16,588) $ (20,133)
2023 (3,229) (13,312) (16,541)
2024 (3,118) (2,614) (5,732)
2025 (2,978) (709) (3,687)
2026 (617) - (617)
Thereafter (647) - (647)

$ (14,134) § (33,223) § (47,357)

Actuarial assumptions used for the year-ended June 30, 2021

For STRS Ohio, the total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

STRS Ohio
Projected salary increases 12.50 percent at age 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
Projected payroll increases 3.00 percent
Investment rate of return 7.45 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation
Discount rate 7.45 percent
Health care cost trends
Medical
Pre-Medicare 5.00 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Medicare -6.69 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Prescription Drug
Pre-Medicare 6.5 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Medicare 11.87 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate

For OPERS, the total OPEB liability at the December 31, 2020 measurement date was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

OPERS

Single discount rate 6.00 percent

Investment rate of return 6.00 percent

Municipal bond rate 2.00 percent

Inflation 3.25 percent

Projected salary increases 3.25 percent to 10.75 percent (includes wage inflation)
Health care cost trends 8.5 percent initial, 3.50 percent ultimate in 2035
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

Mortality rates: For STRS Ohio healthy retirees, the mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Annuitant
Maortality Table with 50 percent of rates through age 69, 70 percent of rates between ages 70 and 79, 20
percent of rates between ages 80 and 84, and 100 percent of rates, thereafter, projected forward
generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016. For disabled retirees, mortality rates are
based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table with 90 percent of rates for males and 100 percent of
rates for females, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016.

OPERS pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employees mortality table for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation pericd base of 2006. The base year
for males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality
rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality tables for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality rates for
disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Mortality rates for a particular calendar
year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to all of the above described
tables.

Experience Studies: STRS actuarial assumption used in the June 30, 2020 valuation are based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. OPERS
actuarial assumption used in the December 31, 2020 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2015.

Investment return assumptions: STRS Ohio utilizes investment consultants to develop an estimated
range for the investment return assumption based on the target allocation determined by the respective
Retirement Board of STRS Ohio.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPERS health care investment assets was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return were
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage,
adjusted for inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

STRS Ohio QPERS
Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Real Rate Target Expected Real Rate

Asset Class Target Allocation of Return Allocation of Return
Domestic equities 28.00 % 735 % 25.00 % 564 %
International equities 23.00 7.55 25.00 7.36
Alternative investments 17.00 7.09 - -

Fixed income 21.00 3.00 34.00 1.07

Real estate 10.00 6.00 - -
REITs - - 7.00 6.48
Other 1.00 2.25 9.00 4,02

Total 100.00 % 100.00 %
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

Discount rate: For STRS Ohio, the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.45
percent as of the measurement date, June 30, 2020. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumes STRS Ohio continues to allocate no employer contributions to the health care
fund. Based on those assumptions, the STRS Ohio’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members as of June 30, 2020. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on health care plan investments of 7.45 percent was used to
measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021.

For OPERS, a single discount rate of 6.00 percent was used to measure the OPEB liability on the
measurement date of December 31, 2020, which is an increase of 2.84 percent since the prior
measurement date. This single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return of the health care
investment portfolio of 6.00 percent and a municipal bond rate of 2.00 percent based on an index of 20-
year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating. The projection of cash flows used to
determine this single discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the OPERS health care fiduciary
net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance health care costs through 2120. As a
result, the long-term expected rate of return on health care investments was applied to projected costs
through the year 2120, and the duration of the projection period through which projected health care
payments are fully funded.

The following presents the University's proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net OPEB
(asset) liability calculated using a discount rate 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’
current rate:

2021
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.45%) (7.45%) (8.45%)
STRS Ohio $ (11,605) $ (13,338) $ (14,809)
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)
OPERS $ (2,808) $ (11,294) $ (18,270)

Sensitivity of net OPEB (asset) liability to changes in healthcare cost trend rates: The following
presents the University’s proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net OPEB (asset) liability
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’ current
rate:

2021
Current Health
Care Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
STRS Ohio $ 14,717)  $ (13,338) $ (11,658)
OPERS $ (11,569) $ (11,294) $ (10,986)
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

OPEB plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued STRS Ohio and OPERS financial report.

Actuarial assumptions used for the year-ended June 30, 2020

For STRS Ohio the total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

STRS Ohio
Projected salary increases 12.50 percent at age 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
Projected payroll increases 3.00 percent
Investment rate of return 7.45 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation
Discount rate 7.45 percent
Health care cost trends
Medical
Pre-Medicare 5.87 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Medicare 4.93 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Prescription Drug
Pre-Medicare 7.73 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate
Medicare 9.62 percent initial, 4.00 percent ultimate

For OPERS the total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

OPERS

Single discount rate 3.16 percent

Investment rate of return 6.00 percent

Municipal bond rate 2.75 percent

Inflation 3.25 percent

Projected salary increases 3.25 percent to 10.75 percent (includes wage inflation)
Health care cost trends 10.5 percent initial, 3.50 percent ultimate in 2030

Mortality rates: For STRS Ohio healthy retirees, the mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Annuitant
Mortality Table with 50 percent of rates through age 69, 70 percent of rates between ages 70 and 79, 90
percent of rates between ages 80 and 84, and 100 percent of rates, thereafter, projected forward
generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016. For disabled retirees, mortality rates are
based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table with 90 percent of rates for males and 100 percent of
rates for females, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016.

OPERS pre-retirement mortality rates are based on RP-2014 Employees mortality table for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base of 2006. The base year
for males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality
rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality tables for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality rates for
disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Mortality rates for a particular calendar
year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to all of the above described
tables.
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Note 8. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

Experience Studies: STRS actuarial assumption used in the July 1, 2019 valuation are based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. OPERS
actuarial assumption used in the December 31, 2019 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2015.

Investment return assumptions: STRS Ohio utilizes investment consultants to develop an estimated
range for the investment return assumption based on the target allocation determined by the respeciive
Retirement Board of STRS Ohio.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPERS health care investment assets was determined using a
building-block methad in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return were
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage,
adjusted for inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

STRS Ohio OPERS
Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Real Rate Target Expected Real Rate
Asset Class _Target Allocation of Return Allocation of Return
Domestic equities 28.00 % 735 % 2100 % 575 %
International equities 23.00 7.55 23.00 7.66
Alternative investments 17.00 7.09 - -
Fixed income 21.00 3.00 36.00 1.53
Real estate 10.00 6.00 - -
REITs - - 6.00 5.69
Other 1.00 2.25 14.00 4.90
Total 100.00 % 100.00 %

Discount rate: For STRS Ohio, the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was

7.45 percent as of the measurement date, June 30, 2019. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumes STRS Ohio continues to allocate no employer contributions to the health care
fund. Based on those assumptions, the STRS Ohio’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on health care plan investments of 7.45 percent was used to measure the total OPEB
liability as of June 30, 2020.

For OPERS, a single discount rate of 3.16 percent was used to measure the OPEB liability on the
measurement date of December 31, 2019, which is a decrease of .0080 percent since the prior
measurement date. This single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return of the health care
investment portfolio of 6.00 percent and a municipal bond rate of 3.71 percent based on an index of 20-
year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating. The projection of cash flows used to
determine this single discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the OPERS health care fiduciary
net pasition and future contributions were sufficient to finance health care costs through 2034. As a
result, the long-term expected rate of return on health care investments was applied to projected costs
through the year 2034, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all health care costs after that date.
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Note 9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) (Continued)

The following presents the University’s proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net OPEB
asset/liability calculated using a discount rate 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’ current

rate:
2020
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.45%) (7.45%) (8.45%)
STRS Ohio $ (10,890) $ (12,762) $ (14,336)
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.16%) (3.16%) (4.16%)
OPERS $ 130,035 $ 99,365 $ 74,808

Sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in healthcare cost trend rates: The following presents
the University’s proportionate share of the STRS Ohio and OPERS net OPEB asset/liability calculated
using healthcare cost trend rates 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the plans’ current rate:

2020
Current Health
Care Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
STRS Ohio $ (14,472) $ (12,762) $ (10,668)
OPERS $ 96,433 §$ 99,365 $ 102,260

OPEB plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued STRS Ohio and OPERS financial report.

Note 10. Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Miami University Foundation (the Foundation) is a separate not-for-profit entity organized for the
purpose of promoting educational and research activities of the University. Since the resources held by
the Foundation can be used only by and for the benefit of the University, the Foundation is considered a
component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements.

The Foundation board (Board) is comprised of at least fifteen directors that are elected by the Board and
eight directors that are appointed by Miami University. At least two-thirds of the elected directors are
required to be alumni or former students of Miami University. The Foundation issues reports using
standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts received by the University from the Foundation are restricted and are included in gifts in the
accompanying financial statements. The Foundation values its investments at fair value.
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Note 10. Discretely Presented Component Unit (Continued)

Summary financial information for the Foundation as of June 30, the date of its most recent audited
financial report, is as follows:

2021
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Net assets at end of year $ 4,925 % 456,773 $ 461,698
Change in net assets for the year 1,122 105,064 106,186
Distributions to Miami University 15,884 - 15,884
2020
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Net assets at end of year $ 3803 $ 351,709 § 355,512
Change in net assets for the year 813 (283) 530
Distributions to Miami University 15,559 - 15,559

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of cash in banks, money
market accounts, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio and STAR Plus) that
include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash, with an original maturity of three
months or less. The Foundation maintains active relationships with multiple cash equivalent accounts to
reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any single institution. The carrying amounts of these items
are a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Investments: Investments that are market traded are recorded at fair value based primarily on quoted
market prices, as established by the major securities markets.

The value of holdings of non-publicly traded funds that do not have a readily determined market value is
based on the funds’ estimated net asset value as supplied by the investment manager. The values are
reviewed and evaluated by Foundation management. Market prices are not available for certain
investments. These investments are carried at estimated fair value provided by the funds’ management.
Some valuations are determined as of June 30, while the remaining valuations are determined based on
March 31 information when June 30 information is not yet available and adjusted by cash receipts, cash
disbursements, and securities distributions and unrealized gains and losses through June 30. The
Foundation believes that the carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value as of year-end.
Because these investments are not readily marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and,
therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for the investments
existed. Such differences could be material.

The issuing insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the life insurance policies
annually. Investments in real estate are recorded at appraised value at the date of donation.

All donor-restricted endowment investments and board-designated endowments are managed in a
unitized investment pool (Pooled Funds), unless donor-restricted endowment gift agreements require that
they be held separately. For the Pooled Funds, the fair value of the investments is determined at the end
of each month and the incremental fair value increase or decrease is allocated to the individual fund
accounts based on the number of shares the fund owns at the beginning of the month.
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Note 10. Discretely Presented Component Unit (Continued)

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases and sales of investments are
recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment transactions occurring on or before June 30, which settle after
such date, are recorded as receivables or payables. Net dividend and interest income as well as
gains/losses are allocated based on the number of shares owned.

Long-term investments: Investments held by the Foundation as of June 30 were:

Fair Value
2021 2020
Investment description:

Pooled Investment Fund (PIF):
Strategic Investment Management, LLC funds $ 483,317 $ 355,868
Government bonds 56,751 25,120
Hedge funds 7,880 2,154
Various private capital investments 117,593 102,863
Exchange traded funds 415 6,702
Other 2,813 2,649

Split-interest funds:

Charitable remainder trusts 12,583 9,817
Charitable gift annuities 2,063 1,903
Pooled income funds 574 566
Total $ 683,989 $ 507,642

The Foundation maintains a diversified investment portfolio for the Pooled Investment Fund (PIF)
intended to reduce market risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk with a strategy designed to take
advantage of market inefficiencies. Beginning in fiscal year 2019, management of the PIF has been
delegated by the Board to an external investment firm, Strategic Investment Management, LLC. The
external investment firm has discretion to manage the PIF within the framework of the investment policy
statement. Additionally, the external investment firm has implemented a combination of internally and
externally managed investment vehicles, including separate accounts, limited partnerships, and
commingled funds. The Foundation's investment portfolio also includes publicly traded securities and the
underlying holdings for certain non-publicly traded funds includes publicly traded securities. As a result, a
significant downturn in the securities markets could adversely affect the market value of Foundation
assets. As of June 30, 2021, the Foundation has made commitments to limited partnerships of
approximately $99,000 that have not yet been funded, some of which management expects may not be
called by the partnerships due to the life-cycle of the respective partnerships.

For the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 dividend and interest income of $1,303 and $1,930,
respectively, is net of fees from external investment managers totaling $7 and $15 for June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Fair value measurements: The Foundation uses fair value measurements to record fair value

adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. Subsequent changes
in fair value are recorded as an adjustment to earnings.
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Note 10. Discretely Presented Component Unit {Continued)

Pledges receivable: As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, contributors to the Foundation have made
unconditional pledges totaling $21,056 and $28,884, respectively, with one pledge accounting for over 47
percent of that total. Net pledges receivable have been discounted using rates commensurate with the
risks involved to a net present value of $19,968 and $27,271 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Discount rates ranged from 0.6 percent to 3.40 percent. Management has set up an allowance for
uncollectible pledges of $1,114 and $1,118 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. All pledges have
been classified as restricted expendable net positions since they will be fulfilled within a specified period
of time or meet donor imposed stipulations.

The Foundation had also been notified of revocable pledges, bequests, and other indications of intentions
to give. These potential contributions are not permitted to be recorded as they are deemed intentions to
give and not promises to give.

Split-interest agreements: The Foundation’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of
charitable gift annuities, pooled income funds and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which the
Foundation serves as trustee. Assets are invested and payments are made to donors and/or other
beneficiaries in accordance with the respective agreements. Assets held for these agreements are
included in investments.

Endowment: UPMIFA provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and
expenditure of donor-restricted endowment funds held by charitable organizations.

The Foundation's interpretation of its fiduciary responsibilities for donor-restricted endowments under
UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence of any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve
intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to produce maximum total return without assuming
inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in
economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that provides the best total return over very long time
periods.

UPMIFA specifies that unless stated otherwise in the gift agreement, donor-restricted assets in an
endowment fund are restricted assets until appropriated for expenditure by the institution. Barring the
existence of specific donor instruction, the Foundation's policy is to classify as net assets with donor
restrictions the historical value of donor-restricted endowment funds, which includes (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c)
changes to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument.
Also included in net assets with donor restrictions is accumulated appreciation on donor restricted
endowment funds which are available for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by UPMIFA, and deficiencies associated with funds where the value of the fund has
fallen below the original value of the gift.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may fall
below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual

duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are reported in restricted - expendable net
positions. There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2021.
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Note 10. Discretely Presented Component Unit (Continued)

Net position classification: Resources of the Foundation are classified for reporting purposes into net
positions based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions and state law. Net positions
unrestricted represent the portion of funds over which the Foundation has discretionary control as there
are no donor-imposed purposes or time restrictions on how the funds may be spent. Restricted
expendable net positions include gifts and grants for which donor imposed restrictions have not been met
(primarily future capital projects or gifts for educational purposes), earnings from long term investments
which are donor restricted, and time restricted trust activity. Restricted nonexpendable net positions
include gifts which generally require, by donor restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity. The
donors generally permit the use of a portion of the income earned to be utilized for specific purposes
based on their restrictions.

Note 11. Commitments

At June 30, the University is committed to future contractual obligations for capital expenditures of
approximately $107,499 and $35,107, respectively. These commitments are being funded from the
following sources:

2021 2020
Contractual obligations:
Approved state appropriations not expended $ 153 § 220
University funds and bond proceeds 107,346 34,887
Total $ 107,499 § 35,107

Note 12. Risk Management

The University's employee health insurance program is a self-insured plan. Administration of the plan is
provided by Community Insurance Company, doing business as Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield
(Anthem). Employees are offered two plan options, a Traditional PPO Plan or a High Deductible Health
Plan with a Health Savings Account.

Health insurance claims are accrued based upon estimates of the claims liabilities. These estimates are
based on past experience, current claims outstanding, and medical inflation trends. As a result, the actual
claims experience may differ from the estimate. An estimate of claims incurred but not reported in the
amount of $2,513 and $3,094 is included in the accrued salaries and wages as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively. The change in the total liability for actual and estimated claims is summarized below

at June 30:
2021 2020 2019
Liability at beginning of year $ 3094 § 2908 § 2,970
Claims incurred 41,371 40,042 42,197
Claims paid (41,127) (39,768) (42,316)
Change in estimated claims incurred but not reported (825) (88) 57
Liability at end of year $ 2513 % 3094 § 2,908
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Note 12. Risk Management (Continued)

To reduce potential loss exposure, the University has established a reserve for health insurance
stabilization of $20,000.

The University participates in a consortium with all other Ohio state-assisted universities (excluding The
Ohio State University) for the acquisition of “All-Risk” Property and Casualty insurance. The name of the
consortium is the IUC-Risk Management & Insurance Consortium (Consortium). Due to various reasons,
the Consortium and its members were presented with many renewal challenges this past year, which
resulted in some changes to the programs effective July 1, 2021. In summary:

The “All-Risk” Property Program, which has been in place for 27 years, has a loss limit of approximately
$1,483,000. The Group Casualty Program, which has been in place for 22 years and includes general
liability, automobile liability and educator’s legal liability, has loss limit of $35,000. The University has a
dedicated policy for the first $10,000 of any covered property claims and the first $15,000 of any covered
casuaity claims. Additional limits for both the “All-Risk” Property and Casualty Programs are shared with
the members of the Consortium. The Consortium continues to identify opportunities for additional excess
limits; however, coverage is often limited with costs being prohibitive.

In both coverages, the University's base deductible is $100,000 with a few other deductibles appiying
such as for flood, windstorm, and sexual assault. The next layer of coverage is the Consortium's self-
insurance pools whereby all members fund this layer per the agreed-to contribution and allocation
methodology. For the “All-Risk” Property Program, the next $250,000 of a covered claim is paid from the
self-insurance pool. For the Group Casualty Program, the next $900,000 of a covered claim is paid from
the self-insurance pool. To date, the University has had two (2) property claims and three (3) casualty
claims that have exceeded the base deductible and has either been paid by the self-insurance pool or a
combination of the pool and insurance. Currently, there are a few claims reserved in excess of the
University’s base deductible.

Further, the University identifies opportunities to transfer additional University risks through the
participation in other group purchase insurance programs with its peers, such programs include cyber
liability, terrorism including limited coverage for active assailant, fine arts, foreign liability including access
to security, medical and political evacuation services, special accident, medical malpractice, crime,
excess social engineering, fiduciary liability and pollution liability.

The State of Ohio self-insures worker's compensation benefits for all state employees, including
University employees. Under the direction of the Ohio Bureau of Worker's Compensation and the
University, Careworks and Sheakley UniComp, Inc. assist in the administration and disposition of worker's
compensation claims.

Note 13. Contingencies

The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal, state, and local agencies to fund
research and other activities. The costs, both direct and indirect, that have been charged to the grants or
contracts are subject to examination and approval by the granting agency. It is the opinion of the
University's administration that any disallowance or adjustment of such costs would not have a material
effect on the financial statements.

The University is presently involved as a defendant or codefendant in various matters of litigation. The
University's administration believes that the ultimate disposition of any of these matters would not have a
material adverse effect upon the financial condition of the University.
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Note 14. Pandemic

On January 30, 2020 the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a “Public Health
Emergency of International Concern” and, on March 11, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions
taken around the word to help mitigate the spread of coronavirus include restrictions on travel,
quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses. The
coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had, and are expected to continue to have, an adverse
impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries. The extent to which the coronavirus
impacts the University’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may
emerge concerning the severity of the coronavirus and actions taken to contain the coronavirus or its
impact, among others.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act was signed into
law. The CARES Act legislation is intended to provide relief for organizations that have been negatively
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. During fiscal year 2020, the University received approximately
$10,100 from the CARES Provider Relief Fund

In the fall of 2020, the University was awarded approximately $14,700 from the Ohio Department of
Higher Education Coronavirus Relief Funds (ODHE CRF). The funds were awarded to provide economic
relief to support the costs of remote learning, grants to students, technology and other purposes related to
the disruption of campus operations due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

On December 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021
{CRRSAA) was signed into law. The Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund Il (HEERF 1) funding
authorized under the CRRSSA is intended to ensure leamning continues for students during the COVID-19
pandemic and to provide relief for organizations that have been negatively impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. During the year ending June 30, 2021, the University was awarded approximately $20,000
from the HEERF |I Fund.

On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan (ARP) was signed into law. The Higher Education
Emergency Relief Fund lll (HEERF Ill) funding authorized under the ARP is funding provided in addition
to those under the CRRSSA. The funds are intended to provide support to institutions of higher
education to serve students and ensure learning continues for students during the COVID-19 pandemic.
During the year ending June 30, 2021, the University was awarded approximately $36,800 in HEERF 11

59

Attachment A Overall Page 98 of 258 Attachment Page 91 of 125



Independent Auditor
Attachment A RSM US LLP December 9, 2021

Required Supplementary Information

Attachment A Overall Page 99 of 258 Attachment Page 92 of 125



Independent Auditor
Attachment A RSM US LLP December 9, 2021

Miami University

Retirement Plan Data
Years Ended June 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015
(In Thousands)

STRS OPERS OPERS
Ohio Traditional Combined
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.758928% 0.621864% 0.711364%
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) s 183634 § 02084 § (2.053)
University's covered payroll 68,234 84935 4,632
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 269.12% 108.42% 44.32%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 75.50% 86.88% 157.67%
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.770956% 0.704723% 0.818105%

University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

$ 170492 § 139294 § (1,706)
University's covered payroll 76,683 92,833 3,201
University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 222.33% 150.05% 53.30%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 77.40% 8217% 145.28%
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.776608% 0.611989% 0.674437%
University's proportionat t ion liabili t)
it ity's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) s 170,759 s 167,611 s (755)
University's covered payroll 76,102 91,506 3,155
Universif rtionate sh: f the net ion liabilif t) f i d
Iniversity's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 224.38% 183.17% 23.93%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 77.30% 74.70% 126.64%
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.772173% 0.663383% 0.684872%
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 183,431 $ 104,072 §$ (932)
University's covered payroll 74,262 89,066 2,774
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll
247.01% 116.85% -33.60%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
75.30% 84.66% 137.28%
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.762848% 0.664940% 0.665441%
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

's prop P ty{ ) $ 255,348 3 150,997 § {370}
University's covered payroll 71,889 86,004 2679
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

355.20% 175.57% -13.81
Plan fiduci t positi ita, f the total ion liabili
lan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the pension liability 66.80% 77.25% 116.55%
or the Year Ended June 30, 2016
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.750872% 0.651198% 0.664254%
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

s prop P ity ) $ 207519 § 112,796  $ (323)
University's covered payroll 67,969 83,037 2,475
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

305.31% 135.84% -13.05%
Pl iducis t it nta ion liabilif
an fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 72.10% 81.08% 116.90%
Eor the Year Ended June 30, 2015
University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.718940% 0.662272% 0.650661%
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

s prop P ty (asset) $ 174871 S 79877 S (251)
University's covered payroll 67,064 80,131 2,327
University's proportionate share of the net pension liabili set) as a percentage of its covered payroll

s prop pension izbity (asset) as a percentag payr 260.75% 99.68% 10.79%
Plan fiduci ion liabili

lan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 74.70% 86.45% 114.83%

Note: The University has presented as many years as information is available.

(Continued)
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Miami University

Retirement Plan Data (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021
(In Thousands)

STRS Ohio
Contributions in
Relation to the
C ly c Contributi University's  Contributions as a
qui qui Deficiency Covered Percentage of
Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2011 $ 8415 § 8415 § - $ 64,727 13.0%
2012 8,195 8,195 - 63,038 13.0%
2013 8,095 8,095 - 62,272 13.0%
2014 8,218 8,218 - 63,215 13.0%
2015 8,718 8,718 - 67,064 13.0%
2016 9,516 9,516 - 67,969 14.0%
2017 10,064 10,084 - 71,889 14.0%
2018 10,397 10,397 - 74,262 14.0%
2019 10,654 10,654 - 76,102 14.0%
2020 10,736 10,736 - 76,683 14.0%
2021 9,553 9,553 - 68,234 14.0%
OPERS Traditional, Combined and Member-Directed
Contributions in
Relation to the
Contractually Contractually Contribution University's  Contributions as a
qui qui Deficiency Covered Percentage of
Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2011 $ 8,035 § 8,035 § - $ 84,585 9.5%
2012 8,492 8,492 - 84,266 10.1%
2013 9,853 9,853 - 85,101 11.6%
2014 11,458 11,458 - 87,598 13.1%
2015 10,825 10,925 - 86,845 126%
2016 10,877 10,877 - 90,034 12.1%
2017 11,778 11,778 - 93,543 12.6%
2018 13,180 13,180 - 96,874 13.6%
2019 14,046 14,046 - 99,651 14.1%
2020 14,261 14,261 - 101,097 14.1%
2021 13,032 13,032 - 92,496 14.1%
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STRS Ohio OPERS
For the year ended June 30, 2021
University's proportion of the net OPEB (asset) liability 0.758928% 0.633933%
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability $ (13338 § (11,294)
University's covered payroll 68,234 92,496
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of its covered payroll -19.55% -12.21%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB (assets) liability 182.13% 115.57%
Eorthe year ended June 30, 2020
University's proportion of the net OPEB (asset) liability 0.770956% 0.718379%
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability $ (12762) § 99,365
University's covered payroll 76,683 101,097
iversity' -
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of its covered payro 16.64% 98.29%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB (assets) liability 174.74% 47.80%
Frth rn n 1
University's proportion of the net OPEB (asset) liability 0.776608% 0.622400%
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability (12479) $ 81,146
University's covered payroll 76,102 99,651
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of its covered payro
-16.40% 81.43%
Plan fiduci t positi a percentage of the total OPEB ts) liabilit
uciary net position as a per: ge e total (assets) liability 176.00% 46.33%
Frth rne u 1
University's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.772173% 0.672220%
University' proportionate share of the net OPEB liabili
v prop v 30127 $ 72989
University's covered payroll 74,262 96874
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a percentage of its covered ]
Ve propes " fityasap o red payre 4057% 75.35%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
47.10% 54.14%
Note. The University has presented as many years as information is available.
STRS Ohio
Conttributians in
Relation to the
Contractually Contraciually Contribution Cantributions s 8.
Required Required Deficiency University's Percantage of
Contributis Contribiution Excess) Covered Payrell  Covered Payroll
2011 § 647 % 647 § - 8 64,727 1.0%
2012 630 830 - 63,038 1.0%
2013 623 623 - 82,272 1.0%
2014 632 632 - 63,215 1.0%
2015 87 &71 - 67,064 1.0%
2016 - - - 67,369 0.0%
2017 - - - 71,889 0.0%
2018 - - - 74,262 0.0%
2019 - - - 76,102 0.0%
2020 - - - 76,683 0.0%
2021 - - - 68,234 0.0%
OPERS Traditional, Combined and Member-Diracted
Cantributians in
Reslation to the
G [« G Contributions se &
Required Required Deficiency Universi Percentage of
Contribution Contribution Excess) Covered Payroll  Coveted Payroll
2011 5 3807 % 3807 S - 8 84,585 4.5%
2012 33N 3,371 - 84,266 4.0%
2013 2,129 2,129 - 85,104 2.5%
2014 B76 876 - 87,598 1.0%
2015 1,302 1,302 - 86,845 1.5%
2016 1,801 1,801 - 90,034 2.0%
2017 1,403 1,403 - 93,543 1.5%
2018 474 474 - 96.874 Q0.5%
2019 - - - 99.651 0.0%
2020 - - - 99,365 0.0%
2021 - - - 92,496 0.0%
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Miami University

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2021

For the year ended June 30, 2021
Changes in assumptions (Pension): The Retirement Boards of OPERS and STRS Ohio made no

changes in assumptions as compared to the prior year.

Changes in assumptions (OPEB): The Retirement Board of OPERS approved one change to the actuarial
assumptions in 2020. The discount rate was increased from 3.16 percent to 6.00 percent. There were no
other changes in assumptions compared to the prior year for OPERS. The Retirement Board of STRS
Ohio made no changes in assumptions in 2020 compared to the prior year.

Changes to benefit terms (Pension): The Retirement Board of OPERS and the Retirement Board of
STRS Ohio made no changes to retirement benefits compared to the prior year.

Changes to benefit terms (OPEB): For STRS Ohio, there was no change to the claims costs process.
Claim curves were updated to reflect the projected fiscal year ending 2021 premium based on June 30,
2020 enroliment distribution. The non-Medicare subsidy percentage was increased effective January 1,
2021 from 1.984 percent to 2.055 percent per year of service. The non-Medicare frozen subsidy base
premium was increased effective January 1, 2021. The Medicare subsidy percentages were adjusted
effective January 1, 2021 to 2.1 percent for the AMA Medicare plan. The Medicare Part B monthly
reimbursement elimination date was postponed indefinitely.

For the year ended June 30, 2020
Changes in assumptions (Pension): The Retirement Boards of OPERS and STRS Ohio made no
changes in assumptions as compared to the prior year.

Changes in assumptions (OPEB): The Retirement Board of OPERS approved one change to the actuarial
assumptions in 2019. The discount rate was reduced from 3.96 percent to 3.16 percent. There were no
other changes in assumptions compared to the prior year for OPERS. The Retirement Board of STRS
Ohio made no changes in assumptions in 2019 compared to the prior year,

Changes to benefit terms (Pension): The Retirement Board of OPERS and the Retirement Board of
STRS Ohio made no changes to retirement benefits compared to the prior year.

Changes to benefit terms (OPEB): For STRS Ohio, there was no change to the claims costs process.
Claim curves were trended to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 to reflect the current price renewals.
The non-Medicare subsidy percentage was increased effective January 1, 2020 from 1.944% to 1.984%
per year of service. The non-Medicare frozen subsidy base premium was increased effective January 1,
2020. The Medicare subsidy percentages were adjusted effective January 1, 2021 to 2.1% for the
Medicare plan. The Medicare Part B monthly reimbursement elimination date was postponed to
January 1, 2021.

On January 15, 2020, the Board of OPERS approved several changes to the health care plan offered to
Medicare and pre-Medicare retirees in efforts to decrease costs and increase the solvency of the

health care plan. These changes are effective January 1, 2022, and include changes to base
allowances and eligibility for Medicare retirees, as well as replacing OPERS-sponsored medical plans
for pre-Medicare retirees with monthly allowances, similar to the program for Medicare retirees.

These changes are not reflected in the current year financial statements but are expected to

decrease the associated OPEB liability.
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Trustees and Officers as of JUNE 30, 2021

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Miami University Board of Trustees
Date listed is expiration of term.

David H. Budig, Chair
February 28, 2022

Sandra D. Collins, Secretary
February 28, 2025

Rod Robinson, Treasurer
February 28, 2026

Debbie Feldman
February 28, 2029

Zachary T. Haines
February 28, 2027

John C. Pascoe
February 28, 2024

Mary Schell
February 28, 2028

National Trustees (non-voting)

Biff Bowman
April 30, 2023

Jeff Pegues
January 31, 2023

Mark Sullivan
September 18, 2022

Student Trustees (non-voting)

Dawson Cosgrove
February 28, 2023

Amitoj Kaur
February 28, 2022
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Administrative Officers

Gregory Crawford
President

Jason Osborne
Provost and Executive Vice President
for Academic Affairs

David K. Creamer
Senior Vice President for Finance and Business
Services{Treasurer

Robin Parker
General Councel

Ted Pickerill
Secretary, Board of Trustees and
Executive Assistant to the President

Financial Services Staff
The 2021 financial report and investments report were
prepared by Miami University.

Jennifer B. Morrison
Chief Accounting Officer

Bruce A. Guiot
Associate Treasurer
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Statement of Nondiscrimination

Miami University is committed to providing equal opportunity and an educational and work environment free from discrimination on the basis of
sex, race, color, religion, national origin, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, military status, or veteran status. Miami shall adhere to all
applicable state and federal equal opportunity/affirmative action statutes and regulations.

The university is dedicated to ensuring access and equal opportunity in its educational programs, related activities, and employment. Retaliation
against an individual who
has raised claims of illegal discrimination or cooperated with an investigation of such claims is prohibited.

Students and employees should bring questions or concerns to the attention of the Office of Equity and Equal Opportunity, Hanna House, 529-7157
(V/TTY) and
529-7158 (fax). Students and employees with disabilities may contact the Office of Disability Resources, 19 Nellie Craig Walker Hall, 529-1541 (V/TTY) and
529-8595 (fax).

EthicsPoint
EthicsPoint is an anonymous method for reporting illegal, unethical, or other conduct that violates Miami’s policies. Miami (along with many other
universities) has contracted with EthicsPoint to provide this service. Reports may be filed at www.EthicsPoint.com
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Miami University Foundation

Financial Report
June 30, 2021
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Investment Report M

Miami University and Miami University Foundation MIAMI
JUNE 30, 2021 UNIVERSITY

INVESTMENT POOLS

Total investment assets for Miami University and Miami University Foundation reached an all-time high at fiscal year-end,
exceeding $1.5 billion. Total investment assets increased by over $336 million from the previous year, and have tripled over the
last 15 years. The University’s non-endowment pool, its working capital and reserves, rose to $842 million from $677 million.
The Pooled Investment Fund (PIF), the combined University and Foundation endowment, grew to $725 million from $555
million. The fiscal year-end asset values among the pools are as follows:

Pool Type of Funds Invested as of
June 30, 2021

University Non-Endowment Working capital and cash reserves to support operating activities $842,464,000

Pooled Investment Fund (University  Funds donated to the University and the Foundation to establish $725,430,000

& Foundation Endowments) endowments in perpetuity

Trusts, Annuities, and Separately Gifts managed independently of the pooled funds $ 23,321,000

Invested Assets

Total Investments $1,591,215,000

The Investment Committee of the Miami University Foundation’s Board of Directors provides governance oversight to the PIF,
while the Miami University Board of Trustees maintains oversight of the non-endowment pool. In 2018, the Boards outsourced
investment management discretion of both the PIF and non-endowment to an external firm, Strategic Investment Group (SIG).

The University’s non-endowment pool holds the working capital and cash reserves that fund the University’s operating activities.
Its balance fluctuates significantly during the course of a year based on the University’s cash flow cycle of receipts and
expenditures. June 30 typically marks the low point of this annual cycle.

The PIF invests endowed gifts from donors and quasi-endowments established by the Boards. The pool operates under the
philosophy that the funds are invested in perpetuity to provide benefits to today’s students as well as to the many generations
of Miami students yet to come. Miami invests the funds with the understanding that economic cycles will rise and fall, but
that a well-diversified portfolio will provide the long-term growth necessary to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment
across generations. The investment policy governing the endowment pool recognizes that the portfolio can tolerate year-to-
year fluctuations in returns because of its infinite time horizon, and looks beyond short-term fluctuations toward an investment

philosophy that provides the best total return

GROWTH IN TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS over very long time periods.

AS OF JUNE 30
The University and Foundation also hold assets

$1,600,000,000 S1SIBLION given by dono'rs.in the form of trusts, annuities,

insurance policies, real estate, and other assets.

$1400,000,000 These funds are, by necessity, managed
$1,200,000,000 separately from the PIF.

1,000,000,000

’ $800,000,000 $700 MILLION Over the last ten years, Miami’s total investment

$600,000,000 assets have more than doubled, fueled by steady

growth in both resident and non-resident

$400,000,000 student enrollment, generous donor support,

$200,000,000 and prudent fiscal discipline. In addition, both

$0 managed investment pools generated significant

2012 2021 . .
gains during fiscal year 2021.

Non-Endowment - Combined Endowments Other Investments
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY
COMBINED ENDOWMENTS GROWTH
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ASSET ALLOCATION

The non-endowment pool has three components. Tier I
operating cash represents the University’s working capital and
is invested in short-term cash equivalents, with a target
balance of two to six months of average cash needs. Tier II
core cash represents short-term reserves along with funds set
aside by the Board of Trustees for special initiatives. Tier II
is invested in U.S. Treasury securities with maturities
generally under two years. Tier 111 long-term capital consists
of longer-term reserves. As the size of this pool has grown,
this portion of the pool has adopted an investment profile
similar to the PIF endowment, except for the exclusion of less
liquid asset classes. At fiscal year-end, it was invested ina mix
of global public equity, various types of fixed income
securities, and absolute return hedged strategies.

Cash flow generation was positive for the year despite
continued challenges resulting from the pandemic. Federal
and state relief funds, along with reduced operating expenses,
offset sharply lower operating revenues. Tier 1I consisted of
$1877 million in the baseline allocation and $53.2 million in
the special initiatives fund. Rebalancing actions taken during
the year included $20 million transferred from operating cash

MIAMI UNIVERSITY NON-ENDOWMENT
ASSET ALLOCATION HISTORY

$900,000,000
$800,000,000
$700,000,000
$600,000,000
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$400,000,000
$300,000,000
$200,000,000
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY NON-ENDOWMENT
ASSET ALLOCATION
JUNE 30, 2021

Tier | Operating Cash,
9%

Tier Il Long-term

) Tier 1l Core Cash,
Capital, 63%

28% j

to core cash, $5.6 million drawn from Tier IT special initiatives
to operating cash, $8o million reallocated from Tier III to Tier
11 to reduce portfolio risk, and $10 million transferred from
operating cash to Tier III.

The PIF’s strategic allocation policy considers not just asset
exposure, but also the sources of risk and the interaction
among the various assets and strategies. Under the investment
policy adopted by the Foundation Board of Directors at the
end of fiscal year 2018 and implemented during fiscal year
2019, this pool’s primary strategic allocation categories are
public equity, consisting of exposures to U.S., non-U.S., and
global equity strategies; alternatives, consisting of private
equity and absolute return hedged strategies; real assets,
comprised of timber and real estate; fixed income, consisting
of U.S. Treasury securities and public active credit strategies;
and opportunistic, consisting primarily of private credit
strategies. Each category has a long-term strategic target
weight and SIG has discretion to make tactical shifts within
approved ranges. While SIG manages a portion of the fixed
income allocation in-house, it also deploys capital with
approximately 88 sub-managers.

During the year, considerable effort and discussion was devoted
to an asset allocation study conducted by SIG in light of historic
lows for interest rates, the corresponding reduction in expected
returns, and the increase in expected volatility for fixed income
strategies. At the end of the fiscal year, the Foundation Board
adopted an updated long-term target asset allocation policy.

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
CHANGE IN ASSET ALLOCATION

2020 2021
Public Equity 51.8% 48.9%
Alternatives 23.4% 24.6%
Real Assets 7.1% 6.9%
Fixed Income 9.9% 1.9%
Opportunistic 4.5% 4.1%
](;raas;é:ccruals, & Pending 33% 3.6%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
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POOLED INVESTMENT FUND
INVESTMENT POLICY TARGET ALLOCATION, RANGES, & BENCHMARKS
Long-Term Long-Term
Asset Category Policy Policy Ranges Benchmark Indicies
Allocation - +

Equities 43% -10% +10%

U.S. Equities 19% -10% +10% Russell 3000 Index

Developed Non-U.S. Equities 12% -10% +10% MSCI World ex-U.S. Investible Market Index

Emerging Market Equities 12% -10% +10% MSCI Emerging Markets Index
Alternatives (Net) 37% -12% +10%

Private Equities 25% -10% +5% Custom Private Equity Index

Hedge Funds (Net) 12% -12% +10% HFRX Equal Weighted Strategies Index

Hedge Funds (Gross) 19% -19% +5%
Portable Alpha Overlay -7% -7% +10%

Real Assets 8% -8% +10%

Real Estate 3% -3% +5% NCREIF Fund Index Open End Diversified Core

Equity Index

Timber 0% -0% +6% Thomson Reuters Cambridge Timber index

Commodities 2% -2% +6% S&P GSCI Total Return Index

TIPS 3% -3% +6% Bloomberg Barclays I-10 Year U.S. TIPS Ind
Fixed Income 12% -10% +10%

U.S. Investment Grade Bonds 12% -10% +10% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index

U.S. High Yield Bonds 0% -0% +10% BofA Merrill Lynch High Yield Cash Pay Ind

Non-U.S. Fixed Income 0% -0% +10%
Opportunistic 0% -0% +10%
Cash 0% -0% +20%
TOTAL 100%

The intention is to increase the target private equity allocation
from 20 to 25 percent, with most of the increase coming from
the fixed income allocation. This transition will take a few years
to be implemented, and public equity will continue to be
clevated in the interim. At fiscal year-end, public equity related
strategies remained the largest exposure at almost 49 percent,
down slightly from last year’s level.

Liquidity measures how quickly the exposure to a particular
asset manager can be redeemed and turned into cash,
Approximately 60 percent of the portfolio could be converted
to cash within a month, while over three quarters of the
portfolio could be redeemed within a quarter.

INVESTMENT RETURNS

The unprecedented stimulus that helped make the pandemic
induced recession of 2020 the steepest but shortest recession
on record propelled global capital markets to new highs
throughout the fiscal year. U.S. equity markets were positive
innine of the twelve months of the fiscal year ending June 30,
including each of the last five months. Global equity prices,
up over 39 percent as measured by the MSCI All Country World
Index (ACWT), were driven by a sharp rebound in economic
activity, relaxed pandemic influenced social and business
restrictions, the rollout of a vaccination, and a corresponding
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recovery of corporate earnings. Bond markets struggled in the
second half of the fiscal year as concerns over inflation,
growing deficits, and anticipated tapering of bond purchases
by central banks put pressure on historically low interest rates.
These risks arc likely to persist for the foreseeable future.

The combined Tier 1T and Tier III portions of the University’s
non-endowment pool posted a gain 0£18.8 percent for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021, up considerably from a return of 1.4
percent earned inthe previous year. The non-endowment return
was carried by the long-term capital portion, up 28.6 percent
and driven by global public equity investments. Annualized
performance for the trailing ten years was 4.1 percent, providing
annualized added return over the 9o-day Treasury bill during
that period of over three and one-half percentage points.

The PIF enjoyed an estimated return of +31.2 percent, the
highest return in ar least the last thirty years (please note the
FY2021returnisincomplete, since we do not yet have returns
for all private capital investments which have a significant
reporting delay). This result was a significant turnaround from
the 0.0 percent gain posted in the previous year. Strong global
public equity returns of nearly 46 percent enabled PIF to
outperform its portfolio custom benchmark for the year by
about 2.7 percentage points. PIF’s estimated annualized
performance for the trailing ten years was 6.8 percent.

December 9, 2021
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The combined endowment distribution for Fiscal Year 2021
was almost $19.8 million, the most ever distributed in one
year and nearly $2 million more than the previous year.
Over the last ten years, the cumulative distributions have
totaled close to $179 million and have provided an important
source of funding to help make a Miami education more
affordable for our students and to help offset reductions in
state support. The following chart shows the proportion of
programs supported by the 2021 distributions.
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PROGRAM SUPPORT

Endowments provide a lastinglegacy for Miami because their
principalis invested in perpetuity and an annual distribution PROFESSORSHIPS,
from earnings is made to support a variety of activities of the RESEARCH, ACADEMIC
University. The spending policies of the University and S8
Foundation are intended to achieve a balance between the
need to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment
principal in perpetuity and the need to utilize current
distribution of endowment earnings. Fulfilling these dual
objectives is often referred to as achieving “intergenerational

SCHOLARSHIPS
49%

equity,” in which no generation of students and faculty is
advantaged in relation to other generations.

The endowment spending policies for both the University and
Foundation, adopted by the Boards in fiscal year 2017,
distribute four percent of the average of the previous twelve
quarterly market values as of March 31st of each fiscal year.
The policies are intended to provide consistent, predictable,
and sustainable annual distributions, while maintaining
intergenerational equity and preserving the purchasing power
of the endowed principal.

ANNUAL UNIVERSITY & FOUNDATION ENDOWMENT
ACTUAL EARNINGS DISTRIBUTIONS

Though the broader economy has rebounded, higher
education continues to face many challenges. Issues
impacting the operating environment such as unfavorable
demographic trends, stagnant state support, staffing
difficulties, and increasing sensitivity to tuition cost are
expected to persist. Miami’s students, faculty, and staff
appreciate the generous support from our alumni and friends
that has helped to strengthen the institution’s position as
we confront these obstacles. This backing, combined with
the continued innovative leadership of our boards and
administration, will guide the thriving path forward.

$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000 I
$5,000,000
$0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
UNIVERSITY ENDOWMENT B FOUNDATION
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RSM

RSMUSLLP
Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors

Miami University Foundation and
Mr. Keith Faber

Auditor of the State of Ohio

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Miami University Foundation, which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, the related statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Miami University Foundation as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING

RSMUS LLPis the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax and consulting firms. Visit rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and
RSM International
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Miami University Foundation’s 2020 financial statements, and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 13, 2020.
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

RPSm vs LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
October 5, 2021

Attachment A Overall Page 114 of 258 Attachment Page 107 of 125



Attachment A

Attachment A

Independent Auditor

December 9, 2021

RSM US LLP
Miami University Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2020)
2021 2020

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55,223,052 $ 52,370,458
Pledges receivable, net 18,854,458 26,153,262
Other receivables, primarily investment related 10,320,304 14,890,158
Investments 682,108,589 505,528,979
Cash value of life insurance 1,879,981 2,082,859
Real estate investments - 30,000

Total assets 768,386,384 $ 601,055,716
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 18,654,028 $ 16,253,392
Assets held for other entities 282,419,394 223,847,779
Deferred revenue 1,106,188 1,515,820
Obligations under split-interest agreements 4,608,948 3,926,994

Total liabilities 306,688,558 245,543,985
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 4,925,473 3,803,299
With donor restrictions 456,772,353 351,708,432

Total net assets 461,697,826 355,511,731

Total liabilities and net assets 768,386,384 $ 601,055,716
See notes to financial statements.

3
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Miami University Foundation

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2020)

Independent Auditor
RSM US LLP

December 9, 2021

Revenues and other additions:
Contributions
Investment income:
Dividend and interest income, net
Net realized and unrealized gains
Net investment income

Change in value of split-interest agreements
Net assets released from restrictions due to

satisfaction of donor restrictions
Total revenues and other additions

Expenses and other deductions:
Distributions to Miami University (Note 6)
Other expenses
Administrative expenses (Note 6)
Total expenses and other deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Attachment A

Without Donor With Donor 2021 2020
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
$ 72,729 $ 26,063,238 $ 26,135,967 $ 17,467,408
15,575 1,297,881 1,313,456 1,930,167
1,165,680 94,311,136 95,476,816 420,081
1,181,255 95,609,017 96,790,272 2,350,248
- 2,476,444 2,476,444 (615,570)
19,084,778 (19,084,778) - -
20,338,762 105,063,921 125,402,683 19,202,086
15,883,574 - 15,883,574 15,559,285
433,242 - 433,242 397,182
2,899,772 - 2,899,772 2,716,226
19,216,588 - 19,216,588 18,672,693
1,122,174 105,063,921 106,186,095 529,393
3,803,299 351,708,432 355,511,731 354,982,338
$ 4925473 $ 456772353 $ 461,697,826 $ 355,511,731
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Miami University Foundation

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2020)

2021

December 9, 2021

2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Payments to Miami University, net

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Assets held for other entities
Proceeds from real estate sale
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Dividend and interest income, restricted
Interest utilized for payment of split-interest obligations
Payments on split-interest obligations
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning

Ending

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash
used in operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash used in operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Net change in value of split-interest agreements
Dividends and interest income, net
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments

Net cash used in operating activities

See notes to financial statements.
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$ (17,593,489)

$ (19,199,786)

133,071,075 103,707,112
(140,195,729) (99,126,741)
(7,469,849) (3,195,067)
305,315 -
(14,289,188) 1,385,304
33,927,694 20,125,409
1,339,915 2,127,267
375,713 408,053
(908,051) (745,100)
34,735,271 21,915,629
2,852,594 4,101,147
52,370,458 48,269,311

$ 655223,062 §$ 52,370,458

$ 106,186,095 $ 529,393
1,623,099 (527,093)
(26,135,967) (17,467,408)
(2,476,444) 615,570
(1,313,456) (1,930,167)
(95,476,816) (420,081)

$ (17,593,489)

$ (19,199,786)
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization

Miami University Foundation (the Foundation) was organized on June 4, 1948 for the principal purpose of
fostering the educational and research activities of Miami University. The Foundation is governed by a
Board of Directors (the Board). In furtherance of its principal purpose, the Foundation is to be known as
the primary fundraiser, manager and steward of donated funds to Miami University. The Foundation
aspires to be a model of performance, accountability, stewardship and commitment to excellence. The
income earned on the Foundation's investments is periodically transferred to Miami University to further
its educational and research activities.

The Foundation Board is comprised of at least fifteen directors that are elected by the Board and eight
directors that are appointed by Miami University. At least two-thirds of the elected directors are required to
be alumni or former students of Miami University.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial statement presentation: The financial statements of the Foundation are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP)
as more explicitly described in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Caodification (ASC).

Net asset classification: Net assets comprise resources over which the Foundation has discretionary
control for use in carrying out the financial and operational objectives of the Foundation and for purposes
specified by donors. Activities of the Foundation are accounted for in the following net asset types:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets whose use has not been limited by donors for
any period of time or specified purpose.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions include gifts and grants for
which donor imposed restrictions have not been met (primarily future capital projects or gifts for
educational purposes), earnings from long term investments which are donor restricted, and time
restricted trust activity. Net assets with donor restrictions also include gifts which generally require, by
donor restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity. The donors generally permit the use of a
portion of the income earned to be utilized for specific purposes based on their restrictions.

Accounting estimates: In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management
has made, where necessary, estimates and judgments based on currently available information that
affect certain amounts reflected in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of cash in banks, money
market accounts, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio and STAR Plus) that
include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash, with an original maturity of three
months or less. The carrying amounts of these items are a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Approximately $452,000 of cash and cash equivalents was covered by federal depository insurance;
$23.9 million was covered by collateral held by third-party trustees pursuant to paragraph 135.181 of the
Ohio Revised Code in collateral pools securing all public funds on deposit with specific depository
institutions; and the remainder was invested in money market funds that invest substantially all of its
assets in U.S. Treasury securities and repurchase agreements. The Foundation maintains active
relationships with multiple cash equivalent accounts to reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any
single institution.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments: The Foundation records its investments at fair value using the following methods and
assumptions:

Investments that are market traded are recorded at fair value based primarily on quoted market prices, as
established by the major securities markets.

The value of holdings of non-publicly traded funds that do not have a readily determined market value are
based on the funds’ estimated net asset value as supplied by the investment manager. The values are
reviewed and evaluated by Foundation management. Market prices are not available for certain
investments. These investments are carried at estimated fair value provided by the funds’ management.
Some valuations are determined as of June 30, while the remaining valuations are determined based on
March 31 or December 31 information when June 30 information is not yet available and adjusted by
cash receipts, cash disbursements, and securities distributions through June 30. The Foundation believes
that the carrying amounts are reascnable estimates of fair value as of year-end. Because these
investments are not readily marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may
differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed. Such
differences could be material. The amount of gain or loss associated with these investments is reflected
in the accompanying financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

The issuing insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the life insurance policies
annually. Investments in real estate are recorded at appraised value at the date of donation.

All donor-restricted endowment investments and board-designated endowments are managed in a
unitized investment pool (Pooled Funds), unless donor-restricted endowment gift agreements require that
they be held separately. For the Pooled Funds, the fair value of the investments is determined at the end
of each month and the incremental fair value increase or decrease is allocated to the individual fund
accounts based on the number of shares the fund owns at the beginning of the month.

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases and sales of investments are
recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment transactions occurring on or before June 30, which settle after
such date, are recorded as receivables or payables. Net dividend and interest income as well as
gains/losses are allocated based on the number of shares owned.

Split-interest agreements: The Foundation’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of
charitable gift annuities, pooled income funds and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which the
Foundation serves as trustee. Assets are invested and payments are made to donors and/or other
beneficiaries in accordance with the respective agreements. Assets held for these agreements are
included in investments.

Contribution revenue for charitable gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts is recognized at the
dates the agreements and trusts are established, net of the liabilities for the present value of estimated
future payments to be made to the donors and/or other beneficiaries. For pooled income funds,
contribution revenue is recognized upon establishment of the agreement at the fair value of the estimated
future receipts, discounted for the estimated time period until culmination of the agreement. Annually the
Foundation records the change in value 'of split-interest agreements according to the fair value of the
assets that are associated with each trust and recalculates the liability for the present value of the
estimated future payments to be made to the donors and/or other beneficiaries.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contributions and allowance for uncollectible pledges: The Foundation recognizes contributions as
revenue with a corresponding pledge receivable in the period in which the pledge (promise to give) is
received. Management estimates an allowance for uncollectable pledges of approximately $1,114,000 as
of June 30, 2021. The estimate is based on management's review of delinquent accounts and an
assessment of the Foundation's historical evidence of collections.

Income taxes: The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization as defined under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is generally exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the Code, except on unrelated business income. The Foundation has evaluated its tax
positions at June 30 with respect to accounting for uncertainties in income taxes and has determined that
there was no material impact to the Foundation’s financial statements. The ASC provides related
guidance on measurement, classification, interest and penalties and disclosure as well as prescribing a
threshold of more-likely-than-not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The Foundation is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no
audits for any tax periods in progress. As of June 30, 2021, the Foundation has no uncertain tax
positions.

Recent accounting pronouncements adopted: In August 2018, the FASB issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework—
Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. ASU 2018-13 removes, modifies
and adds certain disclosures requirements on fair value required by Topic 820. The Foundation adopted
this ASU in the accompanying financial statements. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material
impact on the Foundation’s financial statements.

Subsequent events: The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or
disclosure through October 5, 2021, the date of the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3. Pledges Receivable, Net

At June 30, 2021, contributors to the Foundation have made unconditional pledges totaling $21,055,657
with one pledge accounting for over 47% of that total. Net pledges receivable have been discounted using
interest rates to a net present value of $19,968,071 at June 30, 2021. Discount rates ranged from 0.6% to
3.40%. The methodology for calculating an allowance for uncollectible pledges is based upon
management'’s analysis of the aging of payment schedules for all outstanding pledges. At June 30, 2021,
net pledges are due as follows:

Unconditional pledges expected to be collected:

Within one year $ 6,074,837
Between two and five years 13,055,860
In more than five years 1,924,960
Pledges receivable 21,055,657
Less discount on pledges (1,087,586)
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges (1,113,613)
Pledges receivable, net $ 18,854,458

The Foundation had also been notified of revocable pledges, bequests, and other indications of intentions
to give. These potential contributions are not permitted to be recorded as they are deemed intentions to
give and not promises to give.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 4. Investments
Investments held by the Foundation as of June 30, 2021 were:

Fair Value
Investment Description
Pooled Investment Fund (PIF):
Strategic Investment Management, LLC funds $ 483,316,556
Various private capital investments 117,592,930
Government bonds 56,750,484
Hedge funds 7,880,083
Exchange traded funds 414,567
Other 933,204
Split-interest funds:
Charitable remainder trusts 12,583,400
Charitable gift annuities 2,063,456
Pooled income funds 573,909
Total $ 682,108,589

The PIF portfolio’s fair value, excluding cash, was $665,954,620 at June 30, 2021. The Foundation
maintains a diversified investment portfolio for the PIF intended to reduce market risk, credit risk, and
interest rate risk with a strategy designed to take advantage of market inefficiencies. During 2019,
management of the PIF was delegated by the Board to an external investment firm, Strategic Investment
Management, LLC. Fees for Strategic Investment Management, LLC are paid by Miami University and
funded by the administrative fee that the Foundation pays the University. The external investment firm
has discretion to manage the PIF within the framework of the investment policy statement. Additionally,
the external investment firm has implemented a combination of internally and externally managed
investment vehicles, including separate accounts, limited partnerships, and commingled funds. The
Foundation's investment portfolio includes publicly traded securities and the underlying holdings for
certain non-publicly traded funds also include publicly traded securities. As a result, a significant downturn
in the securities markets could adversely affect the market value of Foundation assets. As of June 30,
2021, the Foundation has made commitments to limited partnerships of approximately $99 million that
have not yet been funded, some of which management expects may not be called by the partnerships
due to the life-cycle of the respective partnerships.

Included in the Foundation’s PIF are assets held for the Miami University Endowment, Miami University
Paper Science & Engineering Foundation and a donor gift held for the benefit of three other Ohio
universities. The assets held for other entities are maintained as separate funds in the financial system of
the Foundation and receive a proportional share of the PIF’s activity. The Foundation owns the assets in
the PIF; the other entities have a financial interest in the PIF but do not own any of the underlying assets.
The Foundation has recorded a liability equal to the fair value for the assets held for other entities.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 4. Investments (Continued)
Assets held for other entities as of June 30, 2021 were:

Miami University
Paper Science &

Miami University Engineering
Endowment Foundation Other Total
Assets held for other entities at June 30, 2020 $ 223,103,509 $ 594,191 $ 150,079 $ 223,847,779
New investments 2,160,724 - - 2,160,724
Eamings distribution (7,531,122) - - (7,531,122)
Dividend and interest income, net of administrative (1,240,155) (3,133) (850) (1,244,138)
Net unrealized and realized gains 65,006,758 171,902 43,441 65,222,101
Value as of June 30, 2021 281,499,714 762,960 192,670 282,455,344
Distribution payable (included in accounts
payable and other liabilities) - (30,000) (5,950) (35,950)
Assets held for other entities at June 30, 2021 $ 281,499,714 § 732,960 $ 186,720 $ 282,419,394
Note 5. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

The Foundation uses fair value measurements to record the fair value of certain assets and liabilities and
to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how the Foundation values all other
assets and liabilities refer to Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded on the Statement of Financial Position are categorized based on the inputs and
valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices that are available in active markets as of the report date. The quoted market
prices are from those securities traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange,
NASDAQ or an active over-the-counter markets.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the report date.

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable including the Foundation’s own assumptions in determining the
fair value of investments or liabilities.

If the inputs used to measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the
instrument. Liabilities associated with the split-interest funds represent the present value of the expected
payments to the beneficiaries over the terms of the agreements.

The Foundation assesses the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and transfers
between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in circumstances that caused

the transfer in accordance with the Foundation’s accounting policy regarding the recognition of transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for the balances of the assets and liabilities of the
Foundation measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment assets:
Exchange traded funds $ 414,567 $ - $ - $ 414,567
Govemment bonds - 56,750,484 - 56,750,484
Other 734,257 24,197 174,750 933,204
Split-interest funds:
Charitable remainder trusts 12,583,400 - - 12,583,400
Charitable gift annuities 2,063,456 - - 2,063,456
Pooled income funds 573,909 - - 573,909
$ 16,369,589 $56,774,681 $ 174,750 73,319,020
Funds reported at fair value based on net asset value: @
Non-publicly traded funds:
Strategic U.S. Equity Trust $ 103,985,212
Strategic Global Equity Trust 52,438,815
Strategic Developed Markets ex-US Equity Trust 71,827,758
Strategic Emerging Markets Equity Trust 71,693,422
Strategic Active Credit Trust 35,389,724
Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Portfolio 147,981,625
Hedge funds 7,880,083
Various private capital investments 117,592,930
Total non-publicly traded funds reported at fair value based on net asset value 608,789,569
Total investment assets $ 682,108,589

Investment liabilities:
Split-interest funds:

Charitable remainder trusts $ - $ - $ 2,754,825 $ 2,754,825
Charitable gift annuities - - 1,847,584 1,847,584
Pooled income funds - - 6,539 6,539

Total investment liabilities $ - $ - $ 4,608,948 $ 4,608,948

@ In accordance with ASC Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at net asset value
per share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the
amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Continued)

The following table sets forth the significant terms of the agreements with non-publicy traded funds
reported at fair value based on net asset value at June 30, 2021:

Redemption
Frequency Redemption
Unfunded (if Currently Notice
Fair Value Commitments Eligible) Period
Strategic Investment Management, LLC funds
Strategic U.S. Equity Trugt @ $ 103,985,212 § - monthly 30 days
Strategic Global Equity Trust ® 52,438,815 - monthly 30 days
Strategic Developed Markets ex-US Equity Trugt © 71,827,758 - monthly 30 days
Strategic Emerging Markets Equity Trust @ 71,693,422 - monthly 30 days
Strategic Active Credit Trust © 35,389,724 - monthly 30 days
Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Portfolio © 147,981,625 - monthly 30 days
Hedge funds @ 7,880,083 - various 90 days
Various private capital investments ®
Private equity 52,330,928 67,484,000 illiquid not applicable
Private debt 23,878,455 17,937,000 illiquid not applicable
Private natural resources 17,332,378 6,533,000 itliquid not applicable
Private real estate 23,950,169 6,578,000 itliquid not applicable
Total $ 608,789,569 $98,532,000

@ This fund generally invests in long positions in domestic publicly traded equity securities as well as
futures and options in such securities and certain stock indices.

®  This fund generally invests in long positions in global publicly traded equity securities as well as
futures and options on such securities and certain stock indices.

©  This fund generally invests in long positions in publicly traded equity securities focusing in developed
economies outside of the United States including Western Europe and Asia, as well as futures and
options in such securities and certain stock indices.

©@  This fund generally invests in long positions in a diversified equity portfolio of publicly traded
securities focusing in markets outside of the United States and Western Europe, including Asia and
Latin America as well as Eastern Europe, Africa and the less developed Mediterranean economies.

©  This fund invests primarily in long-only investments in publicly traded bonds and other debt securities
generally with below investment grade credit ratings as well as futures and options on such securities
and certain bond indices.

®  This fund generally invests in hedge funds that invest in both long and short positions in publicly
traded equity and debt securities on a global basis. Most debt securities are sub-investment grade
and may be hard to price due to thin trading volumes. The various strategies collectively target a
market neutral position.

@  This class includes primarily investments in hedge funds that invest in both long and short positions in
publicly traded equity and debt securities on a global basis. Most debt securities are sub-investment
grade and may be hard to price due to thin trading volumes. The fair values of the investments in this
class have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. One (1)
investment, valued at $2.7 million, is considered to be a segregated asset by the manager. The
segregated asset contains impaired assets that have been separated from the manager’s fund and
are expected to be gradually monetized. Proceeds will be returned upon monetization, but the timing
is uncertain.

M  This class includes primarily investments in limited partnerships. These funds are illiquid that, in
general, do not offer access to redemptions during the life of the partnership. Capital is periodically
called, invested, and then returned over time. Typically, these partnerships have a life exceeding ten
years and may take up to twenty years before they have fully returned called capital.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6. Endowment

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as adopted by the State of Ohio,
provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and expenditure of donor-restricted
endowment funds held by charitable organizations. The Foundation’s interpretation of its fiduciary
responsibilities for donor-restricted endowments under UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence of
any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to
produce maximum total return without assuming inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing
these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that
provides the best total return over very long time periods.

UPMIFA specifies that unless stated otherwise in the gift agreement, donor-restricted assets in an
endowment fund are restricted assets until appropriated for expenditure by the institution. Barring the
existence of specific donor instruction, the Foundation’s policy is to classify as net assets with donor
restrictions the historical value of donor-restricted endowment funds, which includes (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c)
changes to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument.
Also included in net assets with donor restrictions is accumulated appreciation on donor restricted
endowment funds which are available for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by UPMIFA, and deficiencies associated with funds where the value of the fund has
fallen below the original value of the gift.

The Foundation’s endowment consists of 2,028 separate accounts established since its inception. The
following presents a summary of changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets, July 1, 2020 $ 3803299 $ 311,216,263 $ 315,019,562
Contributions 72,729 30,440,202 30,512,931
Dividend and interest income, net
of investment expense 15,575 1,276,608 1,292,183
Realized and unrealized gains 1,165,680 94,289,331 95,455,011
Net assets released from restrictions
and other changes 15,686,385 (15,205,576) 480,809
Distributions to Miami University (12,918,423) - (12,918,423)
Administrative expenses (2,899,772) - (2,899,772)
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2021 $ 4925473 $ 422,016,828 $ 426,942,301
13
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6. Endowment (Continued)
Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2021:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Donor-restricted endowment:
Historical gift value $ - $ 276,685,401 $ 276,685,401
Appreciation - 145,331,427 145,331,427
Board-designated endowment 4,925,473 - 4,925,473
Total $ 4925473 $ 422,016,828 $ 426,942,301

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may fall
below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration; deficiencies of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. There were no
deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2021.

The Foundation employs a total return policy which defines the total amount of dividends, interest and
realized gains to be distributed from the endowment. The endowment spending distribution policy
approved by the Board distributes four percent of the average of the previous twelve quarterly market
values as of March 31%t of each fiscal year. This policy is intended to provide consistency, predictability,
and sustainability of the annual distributions, while maintaining intergenerational equity to preserve the
purchasing power of the endowed principal.

Actual endowment return earned in excess of distributions under this policy is reinvested as part of the
Foundation’s endowment. For years where actual endowment return is less than distributions under the
policy, the shortfall is covered by realized returns from prior years. Donor restricted accounts with
insufficient accumulated earnings do not make a full current year distribution. Appropriation for
expenditure of funds under the spending policy occurs on June 30 of each year.

The total calculated endowment spending amount in 2021 was $22,320,675 which includes $7,531,122 of
earnings distributions to assets held for other entities as described in Note 4. Some individual
endowments are reinvesting all endowment earnings. As a result, $11,941,479 was distributed to Miami
University from Foundation endowments. In addition to current year endowment distributions, $3,942,095
of non-endowed funds were distributed to Miami University in satisfaction of donor restrictions. The
following summarizes the programs supported by the current year’s distribution:

Spending Rate Donor Total
and Special Stipulated Distributions to
Miami University Program Supported Distribution Distribution Miami University
Scholarships and fellow ships $ 6,221,460 $ 114,207 $ 6,335,667
Academic support 4,486,096 831,745 5,317,841
Student services/athletics 404,881 38,623 443,504
Campus improvements 94,893 1,499,955 1,594,848
Other institutional support 734,149 1,457,565 2,191,714

Total distributions to Miami University _$ 11,941,479  § 3,942,095 § 15,883,574
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6. Endowment (Continued)

Miami University incurs certain expenses related to development and investment related expenses
relative to endowment management as well as fundraising efforts for the benefit of the Foundation. Miami
University is reimbursed for its expenses in the form of a maximum administrative fee of 1.0% calculated
against the previous fiscal year's arch 315t value of the Foundation investment pool. The administrative
fee is funded from current and accumulated earnings from all funds holding shares in the Foundation
investment pool, including the assets held for other entities; funds with insufficient accumulated earnings
are not charged thereby reducing the maximum administrative fee payable. A total of $2,899,772 was
reimbursed to Miami University in 2021 for the Foundation endowment'’s share of the calculated fee.

Note 7. Classification of Net Assets

Resources of the Foundation are classified for reporting purposes into net asset classes based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions and state law. The following summarizes the Miami
University programs to be supported by the net assets of the Foundation at June 30, 2021:

Without Donor With Donor

Miami University Program Supported Restrictions Restrictions Total
Scholarships and fellowships $ 1,311,440 $208,973,798 $210,285,238
Academic support 163,637,429 163,637,429
Student senices/athletics 13,210,933 13,210,933
Campus improvements - 6,664,338 6,664,338
Institutional support and other 3,614,033 64,285,855 67,899,888
Total net assets $ 4,925473 $456,772,353  $461,697,826

Note 8. Functional Expenses
Expenses classified by functional classification for the year ended June 30, 2021, are summarized as
follows:

Program Management Total

Services and General  Fundraising Expenses
Distributions to Miami University $ 15,883,574 $ - $ - $ 15,883,574
Other expenses - 433,242 - 433,242
Administrative expenses - 1,855,854 1,043,918 2,899,772

$ 15883574 $ 2,289,096 $ 1043918 $ 19,216,588

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses required allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated are administrative expenses, which are allocated
on the basis of estimates of time and effort.
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Miami University Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 9. Availability and Liquidity

The calculation below represents financial assets available and without donor restrictions for general
expenditures within one year of June 30, 2021:

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 55,223,052
Pledge receivable, net 18,854,458
Other receivables, primarily investment related 10,320,304
Investments 682,108,589
Cash value of life insurance 1,879,981

Total financial assets 768,386,384

Less amounts not available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year:
Contractual or donor restrictions:

Donor restricted endowment (422,016,828)
Donor restricted by time or purpose (34,755,525)
Assets held for other entities (282,419,394)
Board designated endowment (4,925,473)

Total financial assets and available resources
available within one year $ 24,269,164

The Foundation’s investment portfolio seeks to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the ongoing
distribution requirements of the PIF, to meet capital calls, to rebalance the portfolio and capture tactical
opportunities. The source of monies for such liquidity needs will be based on rebalancing and cost
considerations.

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity of financial assets required to meet its annual operating needs
and other contractual commitments while also striving to maximize the return on investment of its funds
not required for annual operations.

Note 10. Pandemic

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a
“Public Health Emergency of International Concern” and on March 11, 2020, declared it to be a
pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include
restrictions on travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places
and businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had, and are expected to continue
to have, an adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries. The extent to
which the coronavirus impacts the Foundation’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows
will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, but include new
information which may emerge concerning the severity of the coronavirus and actions taken to contain
the coronavirus or its impact, among others. To date, the Foundation has experienced significant
fluctuations in the fair value of its investment portfolio. The concentration of revenue from investments
which are a significant source of support for the Foundation’s activities make it reasonably possible that
the Foundation is vulnerable to additional investment volatility risk.
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Miami University Foundation
Schedule of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Balance Endowment Market Transfers Intrafund Balance
July 1, 2020 Contributions Income Adjustment, Net To Miami Transfers Other June 30, 2021

Pooled endowment funds $ 314,351,365 $ 30,507,505 § 1,283,724 $ 92,385,123 § (12,904,008) $ 507,418 § - $ 426,131,126
Non-pooled endowment funds 668,197 5,425 8,460 170,116 (14,414) (26,609) - 811,175

Total endowment funds 315,019,562 30,512,930 1,292,184 92,555,239 (12,918,423) 480,809 - 426,942,301
Expendable funds - donor restricted for capital projects 3,115,664 1,107,666 1,051 (112) (1,498,706) - - 2,725,563
Expendable and board discretionary funds-non capital 1,615,122 1,195,891 516 1) (1,460,445) 312,673 (433,242) 1,130,444
Accumulated cash value insurance 2,082,859 12,683 - 96,585 - (312,146) - 1,879,981
Other investment funds 219,247 291,662 19,720 (74,597) (6,000) (325,285) - 124,747
Net split-interest funds 7,247,257 313,939 (15) - - (156,051) 2,484,032 9,889,162
Pledgesreceivable 26,153,262 (7,298,804) - - - - - 18,854,458
Interest in trusts held by others 158,758 - - - - - (7.588) 151,170

Total net assets $ 355,511,731 $ 26,135,967 $ 1,313,456 $ 92,677,044 § (15,883,574) $ - $2,043,202 $ 461,697,826

Attachment A

Detail of Market Adjustment, Net

Net Market
Unrealized and  Administrative Adjustment,
Realized Gains Expense Net
$ 95,476,816 $ 2,899,772 $ 92,577,044
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Miami University Foundation

Schedule of Investments
June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2020)

December 9, 2021

Description
Pooled Funds
Strategic Investment Management, LLC Funds (a)
Strategic Active Credit Trust
Strategic Developed Markets ex-US Equity Trust
Strategic Emerging Market Equity Trust
Strategic Global Equity Trust
Strategic SPC Alpha Segregated Portfolio
Strategic U.S. Equity Trust
Total Strategic Investment Management, LLC Funds

Intemational Public Equities
iShares Core MSCI EAFE ETF (b)
iShares Core MSCI Emerging Markets ETF (b)
iShares Russell 3000 ETF (b)
Total International Public Equities

Domestic Public Debt (c)
Strategic Investment Group (U.S. Treasuries - Govemment Bonds)
Total Domestic Public Debt

Hedge Funds (a)
Fir Tree Partners
GoldenTree Asset Management
Hildene Capital Management
Total Hedge Funds

Various Private Capital Investments (a)
Asia Research & Capital Management Limited (ARCM) - Debt
Bayview Fund Management, LLC - Debt
Commonfund (7 Funds) - Various
Falcon Investment Advisors - Debt
GEM Realty Securities - Real Estate
Goldman Sachs (4 funds) - Various
Hamilton Lane Advisors (2 funds) - Equities
Huron Capital Partners - Equities
Maranon Capital, LP - Debt
Metropolitan - Real Estate
Penn Square Capital Group (2 funds) - Real Estate
Pomona Capital - Equities
Rockand Capital LLC - Natural Resources
Strategic Private Equity V - Equities
Summit Partners - Equities
Domain Timber Advisers (2 funds) - Natural Resources
Venture Investment Associates - Natural Resources
Westport Capital Partners (2 funds) - Real Estate
Yukon Partners - Debt
Total private investments
Total pooled funds

(Continued)
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2021 2020
Fair Value Fair Value

35,389,724 20,701,320
71,827,758 50,857,175
71,693,422 61,131,503
52,438,815 41,514,015
147,981,625 95,132,158
103,985,212 86,531,721
483,316,556 355,867,892
413,227 3,730,262
1,340 952
- 2,970,990
414,567 6,702,204
56,750,484 25,120,120
56,750,484 25,120,120
- 66,580
2,772,261 2,087,707

5,107,822 -
7,880,083 2,154,287
3,234,911 1,473,354

1,387,956 -
5,020,008 4,281,153
5,897,150 5,827,597
10,704,584 11,026,534
4,093,453 4,561,837
2,292,186 2,850,289
2,157,020 2,199,832
7,630,108 9,196,912
410,030 458,277
938,396 1,206,501
164,338 189,172
3,701,070 2,164,162
34,373,909 13,826,436
10,774,988 6,872,626
3,159,506 3,792,174
4,989,292 4,261,178
11,897,159 22,115,820
4,766,866 6,558,812
117,592,930 102,862,666
665,954,620 492,707,169
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(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2020)

December 9, 2021

Description
Separately Invested Funds

Limited Partnerships, Non-Public Equities (a) and Separately held mutual funds (d)

Stone Ridge (d)
Student Managed Investment Funds (c)
Student Venture Funds

United States Treasury Inflation Protections Securities (c)

Total limited partnerships, non-public equities and separately held mutual funds

Total separately invested funds

SplitInterest Funds
PNC Bank (c)
Domestic public equities
Intemational public equities
Domestic public debt
Global public debt
Total split-interest funds

Grand total

(@) Commingled and non-publicly traded funds
(b) Exchange Traded Fund

(c) Publicly traded securities managed in a separate account

(d) Mutual Funds

Attachment A
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2021 2020
Fair Value Fair Value

$ 2,425 % 26,567
734,257 274,396
174,750 214,250
21,772 21,297
933,204 536,510
933,204 536,510
7,223,363 5,656,355
2,845,059 1,641,402
4,514,745 4,506,267
637,598 481,276
15,220,765 12,285,300

$ 682,108,589

$ 505,528,979
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ROUDEBUSH HALL Roowm 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN

(513) 529-3911 FAX
www.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

TUITION AND FEE ORDINANCE
Professional MBA Program
ORDINANCE 02022-01

WHEREAS, Miami University is committed to providing a quality and affordable education and
services to its graduate students; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Miami University annually adopts tuition (instructional and
general fees) and an out-of-state surcharge for graduate students on all campuses; and

WHEREAS, the University offers graduate program with unique costs and market conditions;
and

WHEREAS, after evaluating the competitive position of the Miami PMBA program in the greater
Cincinnati market, the Farmer School of Business recommends that tuition remain at $1,050; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: that the Board of Trustees approves the
recommendation to maintain the current PMBA tuition of $1,050 per credit hour for the 2022-23 student
cohort.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill I
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN

(513) 529-3911 FAX
www.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

TUITION AND FEE ORDINANCE
Farmer School of Business Fee
ORDINANCE 02022-02

WHEREAS, Section 381.160 (A)(2) of HB 110 places legislative restrictions on how much
undergraduate tuition and special purpose fees may be increased; and

WHEREAS, increases in or the creation of new special purpose fees must be approved by the
Chancellor in addition to being adopted by the University’s Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Farmer School of Business program fee of $110 per credit hour has not been
increased since the fall of 2016; and

WHEREAS, the fee is necessary to cover the cost of exceptionally high business faculty salaries
and enhanced support functions and student experiences; and

WHEREAS, the cost of these essential academic services continue to rise while Ohio’s
appropriation for instruction remains over $3 million less for fiscal year 2022 than what the Oxford
Campus was appropriated and received 21 years earlier in fiscal year 2001; and

WHEREAS, the increase in the Farmer School of Business fee will not apply to existing
students due to the Miami tuition promise and will only be assessed for fist-time students beginning in
the 2022-23 academic year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: the Miami University Board of Trustees approves
the increase in the Farmer School of Business program fee from $110 to $125 per credit hour effective
for new students beginning in the 2022-23 academic year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the proposed increase in this fee is subject to the approval
of the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: the Board of Trustees of Miami University recommends to

the Chancellor that the fee be subject to the percentage change in tuition allowed under Ohio law
commencing with the new 2023-24 student cohort.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill 1T
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN

(513) 529-3911 FAX

Approved by the Board of Trustees WWW.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
December 10, 2021

- Finance and Audit
e

TUITION AND FEE ORDINANCE
Mental Health Fee

T O. Pickerill I ORDINANCE 02022-03
Secretary to the Board of Trustees

WHEREAS, Section 381.160 (A)(2) of HB 110 prohibits the creation of new special purpose
fees unless authorized by the Chancellor of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS, Miami University previously eliminated its health center fee in order to reduce the
cost of tuition; and

WHEREAS, the mental health of students has been a growing concern on university campuses
for the past decade and has been a specific concern of Miami University’s Association of Student
Government; and

WHEREAS, the post pandemic environment is leading to a sharp growth in the number of
students requiring services and the complexity of the services needed; and

WHEREAS, Miami University has through its own financial resources expanded the services
available for students on the Oxford Campus but demand for these services continues to exceed the
available services on campus and the limited number of service providers in the Oxford community
further restricts student access to these essential services; and

WHEREAS, Vice President Jayne Brownell and her staff have developed a plan for expanding
services over the next four to five years to reduce the gap between the services needed and their
availability to students; and

WHEREAS, the expansion of these services will require a substantial increase in the spending
on these services that can only be met through a new mental health fee given the absence today of any
health fee paid by Miami students; and

WHEREAS, a fee of $50 per semester for a student taking 12 or more credit hours is proposed
to begin in fall 2022 that will only be applied to students enrolling for the first-time given Miami’s
tuition promise program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: the Miami University Board of Trustees approves
the creation of a new mental health fee in the amount identified above to be assessed to all new first-
time students beginning with the fall 2022 entering cohort; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: the proposed new fee is dependent on the approval of the
Chancellor of Higher Education and will not be implemented absent the Chancellor’s approval.
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Fee proposal to support student
mental health and well-being

Prevention On-going treatment Response

and support
Health education, HAWKSs, Counseling staff, disability Care managers in SCS and
programming, and accommodation DOS, SIV confidential
communication coordinators, HOPE line, advocate

fee waivers
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Mental health has been a growing concern on college campuses for over a decade, but it has
been talked about much more widely and with more urgency in recent years with the isolation
and uncertainty of the COVID-19 pandemic, renewed and intensified conversations across the
country about diversity, equity and inclusion, and more visibility and action around sexual and
interpersonal violence, among other issues. The American Psychological Association declared a
“National Mental Health Crisis” in January of 2021, and their survey conducted later in the year
shows that conditions are not improving for mental health nationally. The JED Foundation
(2020) reports that 63% of college students say their emotional health is worse than before the
COVID-19 pandemic and 56% of students are significantly concerned with their ability to care
for their mental health. The predominant ways the distress and mental health concerns are
presenting are anxiety (82%), depression (63%), trouble concentrating (62%), and difficulty
coping with stress in healthy ways (60%) and 1 in 5 students have had suicidal thoughts in the
past month (JED Foundation, 2020). There is a new awareness in our culture that emotional
health and well-being are important, and even when not rising to the level of a clinical diagnosis,
seeking out help during times of distress has become normalized for our students.

Miami has invested in additional staffing in the Student Counseling Service (SCS) since 2014.
However, even with that expansion we are not meeting the current level of need of our student
population. As a residential campus made up of a traditionally-aged student body, many of
whom had the resources to access these types of services before arriving at Miami, our
students are more likely to expect and use mental health services than on campuses with older
or commuter students. Our rural campus adds another challenge since our students have
limited access to private providers in the surrounding community. All of those factors put a strain
on our system. Further, mental health and emotional well-being is not only addressed through
formal psychological counseling. There are elements of prevention, ongoing treatment and
support, and response that work together to form a network of mental health support for our
student community. Those other pieces of our system are all strained as well, and require new
resources to adequately meet the range of student needs now and in the future.

Prevention:

As we think about prevention resources, health education is the primary strategy we can
employ. In Miami’s Office of Student Wellness, we offer educational programs provided through
online modules (e.g. AlcoholEdu, Sexual Assault Prevention for Universities), through direct
active and passive programming (e.g. public health campaigns), and through the use of our
HAWKS peer educators. Due to limited resources, the current focus of that work is primarily on
alcohol and other drugs and on sexual and interpersonal violence prevention. Expanding our
professional and peer education team would allow them to focus on topics related to mental
health, emotional well-being, suicide prevention, and student safety.

Ongoing treatment and support:
Many students need personal, individualized support while at Miami outside of times of crisis.
This may be a short term need, an ongoing but manageable psychological condition, or a
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disability diagnosis that requires accommodations to be successful at Miami. The majority of
these needs are provided by SCS and by the Miller Center for Student Disability Services.

Student Counseling Service:

The last 10 years has seen a 13.7% increase in the total number of all clinical services
(individual and group counseling, workshops, substance use assessments, psychiatric
appointments, drop-in consultations, and mental health screenings) and a 60% increase in
demand for individual counseling services provided at SCS. This is despite a temporary
decrease in demand during COVID-19 while students were studying remotely.

SCS utilization
13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21
Individual counseling

appointments 5551 5699 6592 7325 7922 8616 7631 9137
Unduplicated
students served NA 1142* 1948* 2002* 2087* 2032 1849 1189

*includes psychiatry appointments

By adding five additional counseling staff since 2014, we were successful in reducing the wait
time for an initial consultation appointment to about one or two business days. However at busy
times of the year, students’ next appointment beyond that initial consultation could be as long as
two weeks. This year, with increased student demand, we are currently seeing up to a 10 day
wait time for that first, initial consultation appointment, which is concerning, and up to a 4 week
wait for a first follow-up therapy appointment for individual counseling. Additional full-time
clinical staff would allow us to keep those wait times low or eliminate them completely.

Miller Center for Student Disability Services:

Psychological disabilities, including AD/HD, and medical disabilities have become the top two
disability categories served by the Miller Center. Anxiety related disorders are the fastest
growing subgroup among the psychological disabilities category. Due to the unpredictable
nature of psychological and medical disabilities, students have a higher need for ongoing case
management services, and often need both academic and personal accommodations to
succeed.

The number of students with disabilities at Miami University is increasing on a continuous basis.
Currently, the Miller Center is serving 2282 students (fall 2021), a 32% increase compared to
fall 2018. That number represents 12% of the Oxford student body.

In terms of staffing, the most recent 2018 Association on Higher Education and Disability
(AHEAD) benchmarking survey indicated a national average staffing ratio of 150:1 for
institutions with 10,000-19,000 students. Those institutions report an average of 752 registered
students and 5 staff members providing direct services to students. We have 4 staff members
providing direct services, with nearly three times the number of registered students, or a ratio of
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570:1. Increasing the number of accommodation coordinators would enhance the support for
this growing population.

Response:

Response to student crises involves several parts of campus (e.g. Residence Life, MUPD, SCS,
and others) with ongoing and complex needs often occurring in the days and weeks after the
immediate crisis has passed.

There are also students whose situations build and escalate over time, requiring staff to actively
follow up with these students, ideally to prevent a crisis point from occurring. We're including
those situations under response since they require focused staff time to respond to a report
(usually to the CARE team) and to outreach to a student and offer support. These cases might
get funneled to SCS or other resources for ongoing care, or can be case managed for long
periods of time.

The CARE team saw a significant increase in cases (36%) during the first 10 weeks of the term
this year, through the end of October. Further,17% of all reports include suicidality/ideation. The
increase in suicidality and psychological distress have contributed to a 24% increase in medical
withdrawals as compared to the same date in fall 2019 (a traditional year). We anticipate this
number will continue to rise, as our peak period for medical withdrawals will come later in the
semester. In recent non-COVID years, more than 300 students requested a medical leave each

year.

Through October 31 2019 2021 Year over year increase
CARE/Students of Concern Cases (SOC) 169 229 36%

Care cases related to suicidal ideation/attempt 18 39 117%

Medical Withdrawals 74 92 24%

As we look to future needs regarding response, it would be very helpful to have a new role, a
Care Manager. This person would likely have a social work or similar background, and could
serve multiple needs. In the DOS office, they could:

e OQutreach to students identified by the Care team and connect them to campus
resources.

e Follow up with students who have been hospitalized for a mental health crisis to aid their
initial support and transition back to campus, working with SCS as appropriate.
Assist the Dean of Students office with medical withdrawal processes, as appropriate.
Assist the Title IX coordinator in assisting students who have experienced sexual or
interpersonal violence to arrange requested campus accommodations.

In SCS, in addition to providing direct clinical service, they could:
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e Assist students who need care beyond the scope of Student Counseling Services to find
off-campus services for longer-term or more specialized care or to manage more serious
mental health challenges.

e Follow up with students who have been hospitalized for a mental health crisis to provide
ongoing support.

e Follow up with students returning from a medical leave of absence who had
psychological or substance use issues to help them with a successful reentry into the
Miami community.

In order to have the financial resources to increase our capacity for assisting students with their
mental health and emotional well-being while at Miami, we propose a new student fee that
would be deployed in the ways described in the plan below. The fee would apply to all
undergraduate and graduate students enrolled on the Oxford campus who will have any
physical presence on campus, and would be prorated for part-time students.

These fees exist at many other colleges and universities around the country. Currently, all of the
existing staff resources referenced in this memo (counseling, health education/wellness, Miller
Center, Dean of Students) are funded through E&G resources; no student fees contribute to
these staff salaries. At many other institutions, student counseling staff in particular is at least
partially funded by student fees, either in a fee for service model or by a blanket student fee. For
a sample of fees at other schools, please Appendix A at the end of this document.
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Mental Health Support fee proposal

Based on 4250 students per class $100 ($50 per term)
Year 1 $425,000
Year 2 $850,000
Year 3 $1,275,000
Year 4 $1,700,000

Below is a description of the roles that would be added each year. A detailed budget is available
here, organized by year and by category of support (prevention, ongoing treatment and support,
and response).

Year One:

Care manager: This 12-month position would initially be shared by the DOS and SCS

Two mental health counselors (10 month)

Disability accommodations coordinator

Health education coordinator: This position would manage the scheduling, management,

and compliance with all of our health education requirements for students, as well as

work with our HAWKSs peer educators.

e Health educator: This position would focus on prevention efforts related to mental health,
including suicide prevention.

Year Two:

e Four psychology doctoral interns

e Disability accommodations coordinator

e Care manager (10 month): We would change the responsibilities of one of the two
people with this role so one would be in SCS full time and one in the DOS office full time.
This would allow the SCS care manager to provide clinical services as needed, which for
licensing reasons could not take place in the DOS office.
Graduate assistant for DOS office
Employee an additional 10 HAWKSs peer educators to focus on mental health issues.
Health educator: This position would focus on multiple issues related to student well-
being, such as mental health, healthy relationships, and alcohol and other drugs

Year Three:
e Two mental health counselors (12 month)
e Graduate assistant for Student Wellness
e Graduate assistant for health and wellness communications (social media, websites,
publications, marketing materials, etc.)
e Confidential advocate for sexual and interpersonal violence (SIV): This role has been
provided by Women Helping Women, but their resources vary so there have been years

5
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that no one was available to students, and it is an important part of a care network for
these students. This would offer stability in that role.

Health education programming funds

Programming and training funds for HAWKS

Office and training/professional development expenses for additional staff

Year Four:

e New technology solutions are being introduced to allow more access to mental health
support 24 hours a day. In a few years that market will be more developed and it will
make sense to adopt some form of virtual mental health support.

e Permanent funding for HOPE 24/7 crisis line: these gift monies that support this line will
be exhausted.

e Permanent funding to hire per diem counselors in SCS during peak times of year: the gift
monies that allow us to use this practice will be exhausted by this date.

e Making sure our services are accessible to all students is a priority. We currently have a
gift account that supports copays and fee waivers for low income students, but that fund
will be exhausted by this date. This would provide permanent funding.

e Any remaining funds would be used for new well-being needs/initiatives that may arise in
the next four years, and to support future salary increases for fee-funded staff.

References

American Psychological Association. (2021a). The national mental health crisis.
https://www.apa.org/news/press/releases/stress/2021/october-decision-making.

American Psychological Association. (2021b). Stress and decision making during the pandemic.
https://www.apa.org/news/press/releases/stress/2021/october-decision-making.

JED Foundation. (2020). Survey of college student mental health in 2020.
https://www.jedfoundation.org/news-views/survey-of-college-student-mental-health-in-
2020/.
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Appendix A: Sampling of mental health related fees at other institutions

IUC Universities

e Kent State University: “Student Recreation and Wellness Fee” - Counseling &
Psychological Services (CAPS) - enrolled students are eligible for 6 covered therapy
sessions each academic year which are paid for by student fees: $55/semester

e Ohio University: “Wellbeing Fee” - a university discount program that helps reduce
patient costs for select services through Counseling and Psychological Services (CPS).”
$45/semester https://www.ohio.edu/student-affairs/wellbeing

e Shawnee State University: “Student Health and Wellness Fee” Personal counseling
appointments, workshops, crisis/emergency: $25/semester

e Wright State University: “Counseling and Wellness Services Fee” - an optional
$20/semester fee that allows students to receive mental health services (counseling,
psychological assessment and psychiatric services) and Life Coaching Services at CWS
at no cost. Students may choose to waive the fee and continue to utilize the counseling
and wellness services, but at a cost of $20 per session for mental health, psychological
assessment, psychiatric and/or life coaching services.” https://www.wright.edu/student-
affairs/health-and-wellness/counseling-and-wellness/counseling-and-wellness-services-
fees

Other Public Universities

e University of Buffalo: “Health fee” - Supported services include health care, health
promotion, mental health counseling, and accessibility resources.
http://www.buffalo.edu/studentaccounts/tuition-and-fees/broad-based-
fees/comprehensive-fee/comprehensive-fee-components/health.html $219.50/semester

e University of Utah: “Student Mental Health Fee” - A $15/semester fee that is shared
across the Center for Student Wellness, the Center for Disability and Access, the
Women’s Resource Center and the University Counseling Center.

e Indiana University: “Health Fee” - Covers routine medical office visits, over-the-counter
medications, two counseling sessions per semester, wellness services and health
coaching. $124.99/semester

e University of Arkansas: Student Health Fee” - The fee addresses important concerns for

the entire campus community, including communicable disease, sexual health, mental
health, and substance abuse. $7.25/credit hour
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e San Diego State University: “Health & Wellness Fee” - Mental health resources
$55/semester

e University of Connecticut: “Health & Wellness Fee” - offsets the costs for medical and
mental health services, as well as health promotion and wellness activities. $290/year

e West Virginia University: “Mental Health Fee” - Provides funding for additional therapists
and counselors at Counseling Center. $24/semester

Private Universities

e Brown University: “Health Services Fee” - Access to care for all students on campus,
including medical services, health promotion, and counseling services. $503/semester

e Clemson University: “Student Health Fee” - Provides medical, counseling &
psychological, and health promotion services. $182/semester

e Columbia University: “Health & Related Services Fee” - Gives students access to
services available at Health Promotion, Counseling, Medical, Disability, and Sexual
Violence Response. $623/semester

e Syracuse University: “Health & Wellness Fee” - Provides services for counseling,
healthcare, and community wellness. $391/semester

e Tufts University: “Health and Wellness Fee” - Unlimited visits to health services,
counseling services, and programming pertaining to health promotion and prevention.
$958/year https://students.tufts.edu/health-and-wellness/your-health-and-wellness-fee

e Tulane University: “Campus Health Fee” - supports the operations of Campus Health,
which offers Tulane students comprehensive medical, mental health, and health
promotion services. $345/semester
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Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness Facility

Project Cost: $96,000,000 Cost of Work: $79,360,260
Completion Date/% Comp: August 2023/44% Project Delivery Method: Design-Build
Contingency/Balance: $3,182,750/97%
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Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness Facility
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Dodds Hall Renovation

Project Cost: $17,660,000
Completion Date/% Comp: August 2022/30%
Contingency/Balance: $560,215/100%

Attachment C

Capital Projects and Resolutions

Cost of Work: $15,240,514
Project Delivery Method: Design-Build
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Dodds Hall Renovation
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Rléthcg'rredCM . MCVey Data SC|ence Buﬁﬁliaﬁ’gects and Resolutions

Project Cost: $58,000,000 Cost of Work: $46,806,125
Project Delivery Method: Design-Build

Completion Date/% Comp: January 2024/0%
Contingency/Balance: $3,607,459/100%
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Attachment C

University Hall — Hamilton Campus

Project Cost: $10,000,000 Cost of Work: $7,620,050
Completion Date/% Comp: January 2022/95% Project Delivery Method: Design Build

Contingency/Balance: $731,387/75%
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University Hall — Hamilton Campus
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Questions?
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Central Campus
Hot Water Conversion

MIAMI UNIVERSITY
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Attachment C

Financial and Operating Fundamentals

KEY METRICS

PRIMARY

SECONDARY

Capital Projects and Resolutions

QUANTITATIVE PERFORMANCE METRICS

Cost of Utility Service

December 9, 2021

Annual energy and utility expenses. Includes fuel purchases, purchased electricity, utility-related labor, non-fuel

operations and maintenance, water, depreciation and debt service.

Required Capital

Energy and utility funding requirements in addition to annual budget allocation. For example, replacing end-of-life

equipment, adding equipment to maintain or respond to reliability or regulatory standards, etc.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
Emissions

Scope 1 and 2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions from purchased fuels and utilities.

Energy and Water Use Intensity

Total kKBTUs per year / Building GSF. Campus EUI

% Renewable Energy

Reliability

Percent of Campus BTUs generated by renewable sources.

Safety

Environmental Compliance

QUALITATIVE CONSIDERATIONS

Operational Flexibility

Resiliency

Design Standards

Indoor Air Quality

Q BRAILSFORD & DUNLAVEY /

Attachment C

NET ZERO STUDY

Overall Page 158 of 258

Attachment Page 14 of 45



Attachment C

Financial and Operating Fundamentals

Capital Projects and Resolutions

FINANCIAL MODELING ASSUMPTIONS

ASSUMPTION

ASSUMED
VALUE

December 9, 2021

CARBON PRICING ASSUMPTIONS

NOTES/QUESTIONS

The financial analysis will assume a

$15 per cost of $15 / MTCO2e increasing at

el O MTCO2e 5% / year based on a compliance

offset pricing model.

The financial analysis will assume a
Social Cost of $51 per cost of $51 / MTCO2e increasing at

5% / year based on review of
Carbon MTCO2e ; .

internal prices adopted by peer

institutions.

The analysis will assume no cost for
Carbon Tax NA a state or federal tax. Include in

sensitivity analysis.

ASSUMED
ASSUMPTION VALUE NOTES/QUESTIONS

Forecast Period 30 years 2021 through 2050

Represents the cost of capital.
Discount Rate 4.5% Used fo_r all present_value

calculations in the discounted cash

flow (DCF) model.

The capital escalation rate is used
Capital 3.50 to project what the forecasted cost
Escalation Rate ’ will be when dollars are spentin a

year that is later than 2020

Starting assumptions will be based
Commodity Price NG: 3.3% on EIA forecasts for this region.
Escalation Rates Elec: 1.6% Assumptions will be tested using a

sensitivity analysis.

All forecasted spending that is not a
General Inflation capital or commodity cost is

2.5% escalated from 2020 dollars to the

Rate o .

year it is spent using the general

inflation rate.

Q BRAILSFORD & DUNLAVEY /

Attachment C
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Reference Material:

 Interagency Working Group on Social Cost of Greenhouse Gases, United States
Government, February 2021, https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2021/02/TechnicalSupportDocument_SocialCostofCarbonMethaneN

itrousOxide.pdf

* Internal Carbon Pricing in Higher Education Toolkit, Second Nature,
https://secondnature.org/climate-action-quidance/carbon-pricing/

» Carbon pricing approaches for climate decisions in U.S. higher education: Proxy
carbon prices for deep decarbonization, https://doi.org/10.1525/elementa.443.
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Life-cycle Cost Comparison

. . % of Avg Levelized Cost
Net CAPEX | Net Commodity Costs Net O&M CashFlows | Avg. GHG Impact Forecasted GHG | of GHG Abatement

Smillions $millions Smillions Smillions MTCDE fyr Y% of MTCDE S$IMTCDE
Energy Efficiency
SEM $5.74 $-10.07 $0.00 $-4.33 -3,510 -4.5% §-74.47
Infrastructure Changes
UMP 2026 $44.63 $-26.99 §-25.40 $-1.76 -10,636 13.6% §-46.61
Short-term $1.10 §-7.30 §-3.14 $-9.34 -2,873 <3.7% §-228.74
Long-term $9.89 §-243 $0.02 §748 -952 1.2% §611.28
2040 NCP Expansion $10.73 §-1.38 §-1.68 §7.68 -661 -0.8% $1110.47
Biofuel
100% Carbon Neutral Fuel 30.00 §2.07 $0.00 $2.07 -8,667 A1.4% $59.14
Viewable online at: https://cap.foveaservices.com/cap/miami-ohio#solutions-list
*O BRAILSFORD & DUNLAVEY / NET ZERO STUDY -
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Scenario Comparison
CAPEX DETAIL

Geothermal Long Term Expansion

2022 Central 2024 2025 Western

CampusHW  Bachelor/Shideler ~ Geothermal 2025 NCP 2026 Hughes HW 2027 DHW 2040 Building 2040 NCP 2040 6 MW
Description Conversion Conversion Phase Il Conversion Conversion 2026 UMP Conversions  Conversions 130F expansion Engine Generator
Sub Construction Cost S 16,657,458 S 567,723 $ 3,709,151 $ 30,948,795 $ 4,331,053 § 12,120,868 $ 857,297 $ 3,418,330 $ 9,469,050 $ 2,600,250
Construction Contingency@ 5% S 520,310 $ 28,386 S 185,458 S 1,547,440 S 216,553 $ 606,043 S 42,865 S 170916 S 473,453 S 130,013
Design & Estimate Contingency@ 5% S 256,931 S 28,386 S 185,458 S 1,547,440 S 216,553 $ 606,043 S 42,865 S 170,916 S 473,453 S 130,013
General Conditions & General Requirements@ 7% S 472,115 ' $ 39,741 S 259,641 S 2,166,416 S 303,174 S 848,461 S 60,011 $ 239,283 662,834 S 182,018
Builder's Risk Insurance and Bonds@ 1% S 144,041 S 5677 S 37,092 $ 309,488 S 43311 S 121,209 S 8573 § 34,183 9,691 $ 26,003
Corporate Activity Tax @ 0.26% S 1,476 S 9,644 $ 80,467 $ 11,261 S 31,514 S 2,229 S 8,888 S 24,620 S 6,761
General Liability Insurance @ 0.74% S 38,108 S 4201 $ 27,448 S 229,021 $ 32,050 $ 89,694 S 6,344 S 252% S 70,071 S 19,242
CMFees@ 3.0% S 643,103 S 16,873 S 110,239 S 919,825 $ 128,723 $ 360,243 S 25,480 $ 101,59 S 281,428 S 77,282
Construction Total S 18,732,066 S 692,464 S 4524129 § 37,748,891 $ 5282675 S 14,784,075 S 1,045,663 S 4,169,408 S 11,549,598 $ 3,171,579
Design Fees@ 5% S 900,000 $ 34,623 S 226,206 $ 1,887,445 $ 264,134 S 739,204 S 52,283 $ 208,470 S 577,480 S 158,579
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment S 20,000 S - S - S - y - S - S - S 3,250,000
Testing and Inspections@ 0.5% S 3,462 S 2,621 S 188,744 S 26,413 S 73,920 S 5228 $ 20,847 S 57,748 S 15,858
LEED Certification - Not Req'd $ -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 $ -8 -8
Information Technology S 5000 $ - S S - S - S - S -8 - S - S
Owner Financing S - S $ - S -8 -8 -8 - |$ -8 -
Owner Management Fees - 1% $ 192,934 $ - S -8 -8 - S - S -8 -8 -8 -
Owner Contingency @ 5% S 650,000 $ 34623 $ 226,206 $ 1,887,445 S 264,134 S 739,204 S 52,283 $ 208,470 S 577,480 $ 158,579
Total Project Cost - 2021 Costs S 20,500,000 $ 765173 $ 4,999,162 S 41,712,524 $ 583735 S 16,336,403 $ 1,155,457 S 4,607,196 S 12,762,305 $ 6,754,595

0 BRAILSFORD & DUNLAVEY / NET ZERO STUDY [
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Questions?
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UNIVERSITY
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Cole Service Building
Oxford, Ohio 45056-3609
(513) 529-7000

(513) 529-1732 Fax
www.pfd.muohio.edu

Status of Capital Projects Executive Summary
December 10, 2021

1. Projects completed:

Four major projects were completed since the last report. The Fire Alarm Monitoring Upgrade and the IT Fiber Distribution
Improvement projects were both important infrastructure upgrades. The projects improved the reliability of critical systems on
campus. The Center for Performing Arts (CPA) roof replacement project faced some challenges due to supply chain issues, but
was finally completed. Finally, the South Chiller Plant Conversion Phase 2 brought Nellie Craig Walker Hall and Hanna House
onto our new, efficient central utilities. The project also brought chilled water and heating hot water to the new Clinical Health
Sciences and Wellness facility. This project was part of our Utility Master Plan and our continued effort in achieving our
sustainability initiatives. Collectively, 16% of the project revenues will be returned upon closure of the projects. Eight projects
under $500,000 were completed since the last report.

2. Projects added:
No major projects and seven projects under $500,000 were added since the last report.

3. Projects in progress:

The Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness facility is really beginning to take shape. The entire steel structure and the roof
trusses on the southern wing are now complete. Framing on the exterior walls is underway and allowing portions of the building
to be enclosed. All major HVAC units have arrived and are installed in the lower level. The Dodds Hall Renovation is making
good progress. Inside the building, the elevator shaft has been installed and partition and ceiling framing is nearly complete.
The fan coil units are being installed in the rooms. On the exterior of the building, windows are now being installed and the roof
repairs and trim painting have been completed. Work has just begun on the Richard M. McVey Data Science Building.
Earthwork and site utilities are the first activities on the site. Finally, the University Hall Renovation has made great progress
and is completing early. Furniture move-in on the final phase of this project is occurring in the middle of December. Occupants
will move into the space in early January 2022, well in advance of the spring semester.

Respectfully submitted,

Cody J. Powell, PE
Associate Vice President —
Facilities Planning & Operations
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December 10, 2021
Page 2
Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report

Number of Projects Value

Under Construction 4 $181,660,000
In Design 4 $54,150,000
In Planning 5 $94,280,000
Projects Under $500,000 4 $13,420,248

$343,510,248

New Projects Over $500,000

Projects Completed Since Last Report

Fire Alarm Monitoring Upgrade $1,400,000
IT Fiber Distribution Improvement $750,000
Oxford Campus — CPA Roof Replacement $1,342,413
South Chiller Plant Conversion, Phase 2 $4,000,000
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December 10, 2021
Page 3
Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

(Under Contract)
Projects Requiring Board of Trustees Approval

1. Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness Facility: (BOT Feb ‘20)
Heflin
A Programming Committee comprised of faculty, administration and Physical Facilities staff was convened
in January 2019 to determine the program of the facility. The team worked with the Criteria AE firm of
Moody Nolan and Perkins and Will to develop the Program of Requirements, assist in site selection analysis,
and provide the Conceptual and Schematic Design.

The Student and Employee Health Services and Student Counseling clinics and the Student Wellness
organization are included in the health sciences facility, along with the Speech Pathology and Audiology
clinic and academic program, Nursing, and the new Physician Associate program. The Clinical Health
Sciences and Wellness facility site is to be built on the existing footprint of the health and counseling center
and adjacent parking lot. This location required relocating the clinic operations to Harris Hall while the new
facility is under construction. The project’s $96,000,000 budget includes the $6,200,000 Harris Hall
renovation budget which was previously approved by the Board of Trustees. Some of the program spaces
include simulation and skills labs, a standardized patient clinic, speech and audiology research labs, gross
anatomy and health innovation labs, as well as classrooms and faculty/staff offices.

Structural steel, air handler equipment installation, and slab on metal deck concrete pours are complete. Roof
truss, bar joist exterior wall framing, mechanical, electrical and plumbing installation are in process. Roofing
installation begins in December. The construction will progress south to north allowing dried in area work
to continue. Final truss installation will complete in early February 2022. Construction will progress through
March 2023 with the PA program starting classes in May 2023. All other program groups will commence
operation for the 2023 Fall Semester.

Under Construction
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Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness Facility (continued):
Delivery Method: Design-Build
Project Cost Funding Source

Design and Administration | $6,689,810 Local $74,790,000

Cost of Work $79,360,260 State 21,210,000

Contingency $3,282,750

Owner Costs $6,667,180

Total | $96,000.000 Total $96,000,000

Contingency Balance: $3,182,750
Construction Complete: 44%
Project Completion: Summer 2023

2. Dodds Hall Renovation: (BOT Dec "19)
Morris
This project will renovate Dodds Residence Hall at the northeast corner of the South Quad as a continuation
of the 2010 Long Range Housing Master Plan. This will be the last of the South Quad halls to be renovated.
Dodds Hall will receive an upgrade very similar to what was completed at Porter Hall — mechanical systems,
energy efficiency, finishes and accessibility. The design includes improvements in the heating, cooling,
plumbing and life safety systems, as well as the building envelope. The renovation extends the life of the
facility.

Roof repairs, elevator shaft installation, partition and ceiling framing, and third floor windows are largely
complete. Fan coil units and second floor windows are being installed. Drywall installation is in process.
Underground plumbing is complete. On the exterior of the building, painting of the roof trim is complete.
Inside the building, metal studs are being installed. Windows were delivered late due to supply chain delays.

Under Construction
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Dodds Hall Renovation (continued):
Delivery Method: Design-Build
Project Cost Funding Source

Design and Administration $874,271 Local $17,660,000

Cost of Work $15,240,514

Contingency $560,215

Owner Costs $985,000

Total $17,660,000 Total $17,660,000

Contingency Balance: $560,215
Construction Complete: 30%
Project Completion: August 2022

3. Richard M. McVey Data Science Building: (BOT Sep ’21)
Porchowsky
This project is performing programming related to innovation, multidisciplinary project-based work, and
instilling a sense of leadership and entrepreneurship in our students. A Programming Committee with
representation from areas of STEM, data science, entrepreneurship, Interactive Media, and design thinking
was convened in January 2019. The University hired a Criteria AE firm to develop the program of
requirements, assist in potential site selection, and provide conceptual and schematic design services.

As a national leader in education for the digital arts, statistical analytics and technological research, and to
further research and discoveries in these disciplines, the committee has envisioned a new building to house
a collection of departments that will promote cross-disciplinary research while creating a venue for
instruction, innovation and collaborations with industry partners.

The McVey Data Science Building is designed as an 89,000 GSF building and will include faculty and
student project spaces, consulting spaces, classrooms, and computer labs. There are also certain unique
spaces within the building such as the Cyber Security Lab, the Robotics/Maker Lab, the XR Stage, the UX
Focus Group Room, and the VR Track Space.

The design development phase has been completed and the Design Build team is working on the construction
documents which will be complete by February 2022. The first GMP has been executed and includes
earthwork, site utilities, foundations, waterproofing and the pre-purchase of structural steel and elevators.
Subsequent GMPs will be received over the next several months and is expected to be finalized by late
February. On-site activities have begun and contractors are continuing to mobilize.

Under Construction
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Richard M. McVey Data Science Building (continued):
Delivery Method: Design-Build
Project Cost Fundin Source

Design and Administration $5,536,416 2020A Bond $30,000,000
Cost of Work $46,806,125 Gift $20,000,000
Contingency $3,607,459 Local $8,000,000
Owner Costs $2,050,000

Total $58,000,000 Total $58,000,000

Contingency Balance: $3,607,459
Construction Complete: 0%
Project Completion: January 2024

University Hall Renovation: (BOT Feb *20)

Heflin

This project will renovate University Hall to provide students and faculty a state-of-the-art educational
facility with high fidelity simulation and skills laboratory spaces, flexible and technologically-integrated
classrooms and study spaces, as well as the necessary administrative and faculty support spaces need to
support the program.

The renovation of University Hall will focus on three primary priorities--building infrastructure upgrades
and deferred maintenance, interior renovations and improvements, and exterior enhancement.

Phase Il construction is substantially complete. Punchlist work is being completed. Furniture move-in will
occur December 13-23. Occupants will move into the space in early January 2022, with all areas

completed in time for the 2022 Spring Semester. The adjacent asphalt parking lot will be resurfaced in the
summer of 2022.

Under Construction
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University Hall Renovation (continued):
Delivery Method: Design-Build
Project Cost Funding Source

Design and Administration $720,764 2020A Bond $638,587

Cost of Work $7,620,050 Local $9,361,413

Contingency $981,437

Owner Costs $677,749

Total | $10,000,000 Total $10,000,000

Contingency Balance: $731,387

Construction Complete: 95%

Project Completion: January 2022

Under Construction
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UNDER CONSTRUCTION

(Under Contract)
Projects Between $500,000 and $2,500,000

No Projects This Report

Under Construction
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IN DESIGN
(Pre-Contract)

1. Central Campus Hot Water Conversion:

Van Winkle

As part of the Campus Utility Master Plan, the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion Project will convert
a large portion of the central quadrangle of campus from steam to hot water. This project includes the creation
of a new satellite campus heating plant to be located in the basement of Upham Hall. Hot water piping will
be extended from this new satellite campus heating plant to the buildings in central area of campus. The
project will also create redundant connections to the existing distribution piping from the South Chiller Plant.
The cross connection between the two plants will improve robustness and reliability for both the South Chiller
Plant and the new Central Campus Utility Plant. A small amount of the new hot water piping will be located
in the existing tunnel systems with the remainder to be direct buried. Hot water connection and conversion
of Ogden is occurring under another project, as that building is being renovated. Hot water connection and
conversion to Williams, Bonham House, Warfield, MacMillan, Kreger, Irvin, Alumni, Bishop, McGuffey,
Hall Auditorium, King Library, Harrison and Upham will occur as part of this project. Steam supply is being
maintained to the new Central Campus Utility Plant located in Upham Hall for Hot Water production. In the
future, the steam supply is planned to be replaced with Hot Water from a future hot water generation plant.

This project is a key step in the Utility Master Plan to meet strategic energy reduction and campus
sustainability goals of decommissioning coal-fired steam systems. The scope of the project includes direct
buried hot water piping, direct buried chilled water piping and converting the buildings named above from
steam heating to hot water heating. The change from steam to hot water will improve both the efficiency and
reliability of heating the central portion of the campus.

The project is in the Construction Document phase. Design work and reviews are on-going. This project is
expected to begin construction in spring 2022 with construction being completed in fall 2023. The
Construction Manager has begun working with design-assist contractors to finalize the budget. The GMP has
not yet been negotiated, but estimated pricing is increasing dramatically for both labor and materials
compared to original estimates.

Delivery Method: Construction Manager at Risk

Proposed Budget: $20,500,000 Funding Source
(revised since last report: $14,500,000) Local $20,500,000
Desired Start: March 2022 Total $20,500,000

Desired Completion: December 2023

In Design
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2. Ogden Residence Hall / Bell Tower Place Dining Renovation:
Morris
This project will renovate Ogden Residence Hall and Bell Tower Place Dining Hall, both within the same
building. This is a continuation of the 2010 Long Range Housing Master Plan. Ogden Hall will receive an
upgrade in the mechanical systems, fire suppression, energy efficiency, finishes, interior renovations and
accessibility. The design includes improvements in the heating, cooling, plumbing, electrical, life safety
systems, as well as the building envelope. The renovation extends the life of the facility.

The existing dining facility will be remodeled to provide a contemporary and modernized experience to meet
the needs and expectations of the students. It will feature flexible food offering stations that may easily be
converted without replacing equipment. The renovated facility will be operated as a buffet-style venue and
feature expanded and unique menus, visible food prep areas, and will create an environment that has the same
quality that is present in the newer dining facilities.

The Design Development phase is underway. Construction will begin in the summer of 2022 with substantial
completion in the summer of 2023. The dining hall will be offline for the entire construction period.

Delivery Method: Design-Build

Proposed Budget: $31,000,000 Funding Source
Desired Start: June 2022 Local $31,000,000
Desired Completion: August 2023 Total $31'0001000

3. SCP Free Cooling Improvement 2021:

Van Winkle

This project will add a “free cooling’ system to the South Chiller Plant (SCP) to provide winter time cooling
capacity for the buildings that require year-round cooling from the SCP. The free cooling system will consist
of a water-to-water heat exchanger between the existing chilled water plant loop and an exterior glycol loop
that will be sized to accommodate the plant’s cooing load when the Outdoor Air Temperature drops below
32 F, and the chillers are no longer able to run. The project will increase the efficiency and capacity of the
chilled water system when the Outdoor Air Temperature drops below freezing. This is increasingly important
as the new Clinical Health Sciences building will have a cooling load all year long due to the nature of some
of the spaces and equipment planned to be in the building.

The design for this project has been put on hold. Recently implemented control strategy changes at the South
Chiller Plant have allowed for the existing Heat Recovery Chillers to operate down to ambient temperatures
not previously thought achievable with the current system setup, and with an increased winter time cooling
load. The plant operations will be closely monitored this upcoming winter, and a determination will be made
if the existing equipment will be capable of providing the necessary winter cooling loads at the new Clinical
Health Science building or if any free cooling equipment will be required to meet those loads, and if so, what
the appropriate size of the free cooling equipment should be.

In Design
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SCP Free Cooling Improvement 2021 (continued):
Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor
Proposed Budget: $650,000 Funding Source
Desired Start: TBD Local $650,000
Desired Completion: May 2023 Total $650,000

4. South Quad Tunnel Top, Phase 2:

Morris

The utilities around Miami’s campus utilize tunnels in many areas. These tunnels allow for easier
maintenance and upgrade of the utility distribution systems. The tunnels across campus vary greatly in age
and condition. The tunnel tops are being updated in phases with a new, more efficient top design. The
tunnels in the South Quad are circa 1960. This project will replace the tunnel tops on the east side of the
quadrangle from Center Drive to Harris Hall’s breezeway. The project will also repair portions of the pipe
insulation inside this tunnel. This project will complete the tunnel replacements in the South Quad area. Other
tunnel tops were recently completed in conjunction with the Porter Hall renovation.

Construction drawings are complete. The Design Builder is preparing to submit the Guaranteed Maximum
Price. Lowering of chilled water line in tunnel will commence in February to accommodate placement of
the new tunnel top.

Delivery Method: Design-Build

Proposed Budget: $2,000,000
Desired Start: February 2022
Desired Completion: June 2022

Funding Source
Local $2,000,000
Total $2,000,000

In Design
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IN PLANNING
(Pre-A&E)

1. Bachelor Hall Renovation:
Porchowsky
This project will provide for the renovation of Bachelor Hall. Built in 1979, this general academic building
contains over 180 offices and 22 classrooms. The facility has not had a major renovation since its opening.
Bachelor Hall currently houses the departments of Mathematics, Speech Pathology and Audiology, and
English, as well as the Humanities Center and the American Cultures and English (ACE) program for
international students. Speech Pathology and Audiology will be moving out of the building. This project
will identify new occupants for the building through a comprehensive look at the humanities programs and
alignment of departments within the College of Arts & Sciences across the campus. The project will
renovate the entire 112,418 GSF facility with new mechanical systems and upgraded fire suppression,
electrical and plumbing systems. The project will explore covering the existing open courtyard to increase
building efficiency and create much needed collaboration and updated instructional spaces.

The Criteria AE firm has been selected and is completing campus space planning services to help coordinate
the relocation of several academic departments and an evaluation of the utilization of instructional spaces on
campus. Once this portion of work is complete, the Criteria team will begin developing the program of
requirements for Bachelor Hall.

Proposed Budget: $62,000,000

(revised since last report: $48,000,000) Funding Source
Desired Start: TBD TBD $62,000,000
Desired Completion: TBD Total | $62,000,000

2. Center for Performing Arts — Gates-Abegglen Theater Renovation:
Morris
Named for former Miami faculty, Homer N. Abegglen (Director of Theater for 40 years until 1968) and
Arthur Loren Gates (Chairman of the Department of Speech for 35 years until 1940), the Gates-Abegglen
Theater is the center of the Theatre Department’s programs. The theater has not had a major renovation
since its original construction in 1969, as part of the Center for Performing Arts. The current design of the
theater is challenging for a variety of performance types due to its design and construction. This renovation
of the Theater will revise the stage and audience spaces enhancing the performance and viewing
experiences, as well as making the venue appropriate for a broader array of performance types including
musical, spoken word, visiting artist, lecture, dance, etc. The increase in variety will improve the theater’s
utilization by making it available to more departments for both performance and instruction.

The renovation will include reconstructing the audience seating, new forward stage, new lighting and curtain
systems and the control booth. The project will proceed through schematic design and create architectural
renderings for the division to raise the funds to complete the renovation.

In Planning
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Center for Performing Arts — Gates-Abeqglen Theater Renovation (continued):

Architect selection is complete and has begun programming/conceptual design. Following schematic design,
a fundraising phase will commence.

Proposed Budget: $8,000,000 Funding Source
Desired Start: TBD Local $8,000,000
Desired Completion: TBD Total | $8,000,000

3. College @ Elm:
Heflin
Building on Miami’s award-winning undergraduate programs, the College @ ElIm will provide space to give
students real world experience, access to external partners, and alternative teaching methods around business
startups and small-scale manufacturing. Its large volumes, easily accessible loading docks, industrial sized
elevator and community-adjacent location make it a prime candidate for a manufacturing innovation
incubator.

The College @ EIm has three tenants identified and contains space for future tenants. A key anchor tenant is
the Fischer Group. This is a group of interrelated companies with the capability to take a product from idea
to shelf, which offers students the opportunity to see a product through every phase of development. The
Fisher Group will have dedicated space for research and design, prototyping, manufacturing, and fulfillment.
A second tenant is Miami University. Miami’s College of Engineering, Business School, and Institute for
Entrepreneurship will lead the programming at the College @ EIm to provide space for student, faculty, and
staff to develop initiatives around product innovation. Miami is focusing on the theme of medical and
biomedical products to bring to market through university led research and partnerships that can take
advantage of the university’s resources. The third tenant is the City of Oxford. The city is committed to have
at least one staff at the College @ EIm to tie in local opportunities for collaboration and economic
development. Remaining space is available for other local and regional businesses.

The building is a concrete frame with large volumes of various sizes throughout. The envelope has significant
deferred maintenance that will need to be repaired and refurbished. The renovation will include new
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and fire protection systems. Office and instructional spaces would be fitted
out in alignment with contemporary business environments. Large portions of the facility will be furnished
with minimal elements and flexible features to accommodate turnover of tenants over time.

The project is in the Construction Document phase with a focus on early bid packages for long lead time
materials such as MEP systems, roofing, and windows.

Delivery Method: Design Build

Proposed Budget: $13,500,000 Funding Source
(revised since last report: $10,700,000) TBD $13,500,000
Desired Start: December 2021 Total | $13,500,000

Desired Completion: January 2023

In Planning
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4. King Library Renovation 2020:

Heflin

This project comprises interior renovations of the ground, first, and second floors of King Library. The lower
level will include reconfiguration and upgrades to the existing café including casework, finishes, furnishings,
and some food service equipment. The first floor will include reconfiguration and finish upgrades to existing
spaces including the lobby, access services, various offices, and restrooms. The project also includes the
creation of new distinct areas within the existing open stack space, including a maker space. The second floor
will be limited to minor alterations as required to accommodate shifting of existing services and programs
between floors.

The project will be designed via a master planning effort over the next 10 years. The estimated total
project budget is $10,000,000, designed to be split into two 5-year periods of $5,000,000 each. The goal
at initiation is to take the project to the schematic design phase. The library administration will then
proceed in fund raising to support the overall master plan goal.

Program verification commenced in September 2021. Schematic Design will be complete in late February
2022. Following schematic design, a fundraising phase will commence.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contracting

Proposed Budget: $10,000,000

(revised since last report: $3,700,000)
Desired Start: TBD
Desired Completion: TBD

Funding Source
Local $10,000,000
Total | $10,000,000

5. Laws Hall — Graduate and Undergraduate Dean Offices:

Burwinkel

The Provost’s office has added a position, the Dean of Undergraduate Students. The primary job of the
department of Undergraduate Education is to ensure Miami’s undergraduate students are as successful as
possible. The Graduate School anticipates dynamic changes as prompted by Miami RISE, which aims to
drive transformational change to guide Miami through unprecedented volatility in higher education. These
offices currently have space in Roudebush Hall and will move to Laws Hall. These offices will be serving
students directly. Laws Hall, an academic and administrative building in the heart of the campus, is more
accessible and inviting to students. The offices will be located in the currently underutilized area of the
former BEST Library circulation desk and the 3-d printing services area. The office suites will have a few
private offices, work spaces, and shared resources comprising approximately 3,000 net assignable square
feet.

The construction documents have been advertised and bids have been received from General Contractors.
Bids are being analyzed with an award no later than December 10. Mobilization is taking place later this
month with construction kicking off in the New Year.

Proposed Budget: $780,000 Funding Source

Desired Start; January 2022 Local $780,000

Desired Completion: May 2022 Total $780,000
In Planning
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COMPLETED PROJECTS

1. FEire Alarm Monitoring Upgrade:

Fellman

This project installed a new fire alarm monitoring system for all buildings on the Oxford Campus with
centrally-monitored fire alarm systems. The existing Keltron Multiplex Fire Alarm Monitoring system will
be obsolete and is scheduled to be phased out by the manufacturer on December 31, 2021. This new
monitoring system communicates using modern technology via Radio Frequency (RF) communication
methods. Fire Alarm signaling will be sent to workstations in the Cole Service Building Operations Center
and the University Police Department. The head-end equipment is housed in the Data Center at Hoyt Hall.
The new RF Keltron monitoring system allows for reliable and safe fire alarm monitoring on campus while
also transmitting maintenance needs from the building’s fire alarm system to the central station.

All buildings on the Oxford campus with a centrally-monitored fire alarm system have been converted to the
new RF monitoring system. The project is being finalized and will be closed completely once it is fully
commissioned.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Revenue Project Expense
Design and Administration $32,250 Design and Administration $42,250
Cost of Work $1,214,550 Cost of Work $1,039,385
Contingency $140,000 Contingency $0
Owner Costs $13,200 Owner Costs $13,200
Total $1,400,000 Total $1,094,835

Est. Contingency Balance Returned: $140,000

Est. Contingency Balance Returned, Percent of Total: 100%
Est. Bid Savings / VE Returned: $165,165

Est. Final Total: $305,165

2. IT Fiber Distribution Improvement:

Fellman

This project included improvements to the outside plant infrastructure and fiber backbone distribution system
for Miami University’s Oxford Campus, Hamilton Campus and Middletown Campus. Both existing and new
pathways were utilized to house new fiber optic cable. The new fiber optic cable provides a redundant fiber
backbone to select academic and administrative buildings. The reliability of the IT network to the selected
buildings is improved by the addition of the redundant fiber service to these buildings. The buildings
impacted on the Oxford Campus include the following: Alumni Hall, Dauch Indoor Sports Center, Yager
West, Bachelor, Boyd, CPA, Art Building, Hiestand, Harrison, Irvin, McGuffey, Main Steam Plant, Phillips,
Presser, Roudebush, and Shriver. All facilities at the Middletown and Hamilton Campuses were included
with this upgrade project.

Completed Projects
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Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Revenue

Design and Administration $60,000
Cost of Work $625,000
Contingency $65,000
Owner Costs $0

Total $750,000

Est. Contingency Balance Returned: $40,662

Est. Contingency Balance Returned, Percent of Total: 63%

Est. Bid Savings / VE Returned: $809

Est. Final Total: $41,471

Oxford Campus — CPA Roof Replacement:

Page 16
Project Expense
Design and Administration $49,500
Cost of Work $625,000
Contingency $24,338
Owner Costs $9,691
Total $708,529

Morris

This project replaced the remainder of the roof system on the Center for Performing Arts. Existing
masonry chimney was removed. Insulation shortages and resultant long lead times delayed material
delivery and have required a design change from poly-iso insulation to expanded polystyrene insulation.

Rainy summer/fall weather also extended project duration.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Revenue

Design and Administration $108,000
Cost of Work $930,000
Contingency $294,413
Owner Costs $10,000

Total $1,342,413

Est. Contingency Balance Returned: $277,413

Est. Contingency Balance Returned, Percent of Total: 94%

Est. Bid Savings / VE Returned: $42,500

Est. Final Total: $319,913

Project Expense
Design and Administration $114,000
Cost of Work $881,500
Contingency $17,000
Owner Costs $10,000
Total $1,022,500

Completed Projects
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4. South Chiller Plant Conversion, Phase 2: (BOT Feb *20)

Van Winkle

As part of the Campus Utility Master Plan, the South Quad Hot Water Conversion Phase 2 has extended
hydronic heating and cooling infrastructure from the recently completed South Quad Hot Water Conversion
project. The hydronic infrastructure installed under this project will serve the Nellie Craig Walker Hall
(CAB), the new Clinical Health Sciences and Wellness facility and Hanna House. The piping is sized to serve
future buildings in the area. The hydronic infrastructure is planned to eventually extend north across Spring
Street connecting to the Central Quad. This extension will occur in a future project under the Utility Master
Plan. The cross connection will improve robustness and reliability of the existing South Chiller Plant and the
future Central Campus Utility Plant.

Building conversions have been completed. Both Nellie Craig Walker and Hanna House are now served by
the South Chiller Plant.

Delivery Method: Construction Manager at Risk

Project Revenue Project Expense
Design and Administration $393,000 Design and Administration $336,285
Cost of Work $3,290,000 Cost of Work $3,120,000
Contingency $317,000 Contingency $30,000
Owner Costs $0 Owner Costs $0
Total $4,000,000 Total $3,486,285

Est. Contingency Balance Returned: $287,000

Est. Contingency Balance Returned, Percent of Total: 91%
Est. Bid Savings / VE Returned: $226,715

Est. Final Total: $513,715

Completed Projects
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Projects Between $50,000 and $500,000
Project Budget
Art Building — Emergency Generator Replacement 2020 ON HOLD $125,000
Advancement Services Building — new carpet $100,000
Bonham House — Interior Refresh $110,075
Boyd Hall — Fire Alarm Upgrade $105,000
Boyd Hall - Greenhouse LED Lighting 2021 $87,000
Cole Service Building — AH4 Upgrade 2020 $70,000
Dorsey Hall — Ventilation AHU Upgrade 2020 $210,000
Dorsey Hall — Ventilation DOAS Upgrade 2020 $418,000
E & G Buildings — LED Retrofits 2020 $350,000
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $165,000
Equestrian Center Erosion Control $5000,000
Farmer School of Business — Room 042 & 3061 renovation $200,000
Flower Hall — Ventilation AHU Upgrade 2020 $243,000
Goggin Ice Center — Arena Lighting Upgrade 2020 $480,000
Goggin Ice Center — Pad B Lighting Upgrade 2020 $220,000
Hahne Hall — Ventilation AHU Upgrade 2020 $245,000
Hahne Hall — Ventilation DOAS Upgrade 2020 $245,000
Heritage Commons — LED Conversion 2020 $85,000
Hueston Woods - Water Autosampler Improvement 2021 $90,149
Indoor Sports Center LED Conversion 2020 $290,000
Lewis Place — Ongoing projects $250,000
MacFarland Hall — Ventilation Upgrade 2020 $496,000
McBride Hall — Ventilation Upgrade 2020 $382,000
Millett Hall — Wayne Embry Statue $192,020
MUQO Campus Services Chimney repairs Symmes Hall $100,000
MUO Painting — Campus Services Exterior 2021 $200,000
MUO Painting — E&G Exterior 2021 $182,000
North Campus Garage Improvements $300,000
Peabody Hall — 100 Apartment Renovation 2021 $96,011
Peabody Hall - Honors Finishes Refresh 2021 $165,494
Phillips Hall - 212 Lab Exhaust Upgrade 2021 $150,000
Psychology Building - Animal Facility Floor 2021 $150,000
Recreation Sports Center - Dive Tower Cleaning and Painting 2021 $180,650
Residence Halls — Ventilation A/E Fees $290,000
Shriver Center - Technology Store 2021 $62,849
South Chiller Plant — Hot Water Filtration Upgrade 2021 $60,000
Steam Plant — Reverse Osmosis Water Addition 2021 $275,000
Tappan Hall — Exterior Upgrades 2020 ON HOLD $120,000
Thesken Hall - Robotics Reno $250,000
Utilities — Black Start Support 2021 $70,000
Utilities — Pad Switch Replacement 2020 $495,000
Western Dining Commons — Redundant Chiller Upgrade 2020 $115,000
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Projects Closed Between $50,000 and $500,000
Project Original Returned Funds
Budget
Armstrong Student Center — Smoothie Bar $242,397 $2,143
Flower Hall — Ventilation DOAS Upgrade 2020 $485,000 $38,881
Laws Hall - SLAM Renovation $94,555 $4376
Hahne Hall — Addition Ventilation Upgrade 2020 $330,000 $29,000
MUQO Campus Services Chimney Repairs (Morris, Havighurst, Symmes) $200,000 $111,792
Regional Book Depository — Chiller Boiler and Humidifier Upgrade 2020 $440,000 $70,889
Shideler Hall — 047 — Renovations to SHD246 and SHD047 $60,000 $18
Simpson Shade House Renovation 2019 $254,427 $192
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December 10, 2021
Page 20
Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report

Glossary of Terms

Construction Manager _at Risk (CMR) - is a delivery method which entails a commitment by the construction
manager to deliver the project within a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). The owner contracts the architectural and
engineering services to perform the design from concept through construction bid documents using the construction
manager as a consultant. The construction manager acts as the equivalent of a general contractor during the
construction phase. CMR arrangement eliminates a "Low Bid" construction project. This method will typically be
used on projects with high complexity and demanding completion schedules.

Contingency — includes both owner contingency and the D/B or CMR contingency where applicable.

Cost of the Work — is the cost of construction. This includes general condition fees, contractor overhead and profit,
D/B or CMR construction stage personnel.

Design & Administration — includes all professional services to support the work. This consists of base
Architect/Engineer (A/E) fees, A/E additional services, A/E reimbursables, non-error/omission A/E contingency fees,
geotechnical services, special inspection services partnering services, multi-vista photo documentation of projects,
D/B or CMR pre-construction services, third party estimator, and local administration fees.

Design Build (D/B) — is a project delivery method in which the design and construction services are contracted by a
single entity and delivered within a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). Design Build relies on a single point of
responsibility contract and is used to minimize risks for the project owner and to reduce the delivery schedule by
overlapping the design phase and construction phase of a project. This method will typically be used on projects with
less complexity and have demanding completion schedules.

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) - is the negotiated contract for construction services when using D/B or CMR.
The owner negotiates a reasonable maximum price for the project (or component of the project) to be delivered within
the prescribed schedule. The D/B firm or CMR is responsible for delivering the project within the agreed upon GMP.
This process eliminates bidding risks experienced by the owner, allows creative value engineering (VE) to manage
the budget, and permits portions of the work to begin far earlier than traditional bidding of the entire project.

Multiple Prime Contracting — is a project delivery method historically allowed by the State of Ohio. The owner
contracts the architectural and engineering services to perform the design from concept through construction bid
documents. The construction services are divided into various trade specialties — each bid as a separate contract
(general, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, sprinkler, etc.). The owner is responsible for managing the terms of each
contract and coordinating the work between the multiple contractors.

Owner _Costs — are costs directly borne by the owner to complete the project. This includes furniture, fixtures, and
equipment (FF&E), audio/visual (A/V), IT networking, percent for art (applicable on State funded projects exceeding
$4 million), printing and advertising expenses, and any special moving or start-up funds.

Preconstruction Services — are the development and design services provided by a D/B firm or CMR to the owner.
These services are typically performed for an identified cost prior to the negotiation of a GMP. These services are
included in “Design and Administration.”

Single Prime Contracting — is a project delivery method in which the owner contracts the architectural and
engineering services to perform the design from concept through construction bid documents. The construction
services are contracted separately, but through a single entity. Single Prime Contracting is beneficial on projects with
specialized construction requiring more owner oversight or control. This method will typically be used on projects
with high complexity and low schedule importance.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN
(513)529-3911 FAX
WWW.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

RESOLUTION R2022-16
Capital Improvement Plan and Funding

WHEREAS, each biennium Ohio’s public colleges and universities are asked to submit a six-
year Capital Improvements Request in accordance with capital funding guidelines provided by the
Ohio Office of Budget and Management and the Ohio Department of Higher Education; and

WHEREAS, the proposed capital improvement plan recommends renovation of Bachelor Hall
in the first and second biennium of the proposed six year plan; and

WHEREAS, the proposed capital improvement plan aligns with the criteria identified in the
previous biennium’s Ohio’s Higher Education Capital Funding Commission’s guiding principles, the
university’s current academic priorities, and existing facility condition needs;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the
2023-2028 Capital Improvements plan and 2023-2024 funding request; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Senior Vice President for Finance and Business
Services and Treasurer is hereby authorized to amend the 2023-2028 Capital Improvements Plan and
Funding Request as may be required to conform to the instructions when received from Ohio’s Higher
Education Capital Funding Commission and/or changes in the allocation distribution made by the Ohio
Office of Budget and Management and the Ohio Department of Higher Education or the Ohio General
Assembly.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill 1T
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Six-Year Capital Program Request
FY 2021 - FY 2026

Oxford Campus
Project Amount
FY 2023 - FY 2024
$22,311,930
Bachelor Hall Renovation
FY 2025 - FY 2026
Bachelor Hall Renovation $23,000,000
FY 2027 - FY 2028
Renovation and Adaptation of the Center for Performing Arts for New Academic
Programming $24,000,000
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056
(513) 529-6225 MAIN
(513) 529-3911 FAX
www.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

RESOLUTION R2022-17
College at Elm

WHEREAS, Miami University desires to enhance the regional economy
while also offering students the opportunity to gain real world experience through
partnerships with external entities focused on product and business development;
and

WHEREAS, the creation and development of these partnerships requires a
dedicated facility where faculty, students and university partners can collaborate
on ideas and in some instances manufacture the products generated by these ideas;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed site for these joint collaborations is the Elm
Street Building located at 20 S. Elm Street, which has not been in use for a
number of years; and

WHEREAS, Miami University has received $1,000,000 from the State of
Ohio, $1,500,000 from a Jobs Ohio grant, and local funds in the amount of
$11,000,000 for making the necessary improvements in the EIm Street building;
and

WHEREAS, the $13,500,000 budget includes a cost of work estimate of
approximately $10,500,000; and

WHEREAS, the receipt of the Guaranteed Maximum Price is planned for
December 2021; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined the best value for the University
would be to utilize the Design-Build method of project delivery;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees
hereby authorizes the Senior Vice President for Finance and Business Services
and Treasurer, to proceed with the award of contracts for the College @ Elm
project with a total project budget not to exceed $13,500,000.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill 1l
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Executive Summary
for the
College (@ Elm Renovation Project
December 10, 2021

Building on Miami’s award-winning undergraduate programs, the College @ Elm will provide
space to offer students real world experience, access to external partners, and alternative teaching
methods around business startups and small-scale manufacturing. Its large volumes, easily
accessible loading docks, industrial sized elevator and community-adjacent location make it a
prime candidate for a manufacturing innovation incubator.

The College @ Elm has three tenants identified. First, The Fischer Group will have dedicated space
for research and design, prototyping, manufacturing, and fulfillment. Second, Miami’s College of
Engineering, Business School, and Institute for Entrepreneurship will lead the programming at the
College @ Elm to provide space for students, faculty, and staff to develop initiatives around product
innovation. The third tenant is the City of Oxford, which is committed to have at least one staff at
the College @ Elm to tie in local opportunities for collaboration and economic development.
Remaining space is available for other local and regional businesses.

The building is a concrete frame with large volumes of various sizes throughout. The project will
correct significant deferred maintenance to the envelope, include new building and life safety
systems, and make the building accessible. Office and instructional spaces would be fitted out in
alignment with contemporary business environments with flexible collaboration areas throughout.
A large portion of the facility will accommodate turnover of tenants over time. A new entrance and
stair tower will be constructed at the southeast corner of the building.

The project is in the Construction Document phase with a focus on early bid packages for long lead
time materials such as MEP systems, roofing, and windows.

Funding for this project will be from local funds:

Project component: Budget: Funding Source:
Est. Design and Administration: $ 744,638 Local Funds
Est. Cost of Work: $11,370,000 Local Funds
Est. Owner’s Costs: $843,031 Local Funds
Est. Contingency: $ 542,331 Local Funds
Est. Total: $13,500,000
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN

(513) 529-3911 FAX
www.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

RESOLUTION R2022-18
Central Campus Hot Water Conversion

WHEREAS, the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion project will convert a
major portion of the central area of campus to simultaneous heating and cooling and
creates a hot water plant inside Upham Hall; and

WHEREAS, the project is the next phase of the Utility Master Plan and a
necessary step in fulfilling the University’s Sustainability Commitments and Goals; and

WHEREAS, this project is an essential step to decommissioning the current
steam plant and making a significant reduction in the cost of heating and cooling the
Oxford Campus while simultaneously further reducing the University’s carbon
footprint; and

WHEREAS, Miami University has identified local funds in the amount of
$20,500,000 for the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion project; and

WHEREAS, the $20,500,000 budget includes a cost of work estimate of
approximately $18,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the receipt of the first Guaranteed Maximum Price is planned for
December 2021; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined the Construction Manager at Risk delivery
method to be the best value for the University;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees hereby
authorizes the Senior Vice President for Finance and Business Services and Treasurer,
to proceed with the award of contracts for the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion
project with a total project budget not to exceed $20,500,000.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill 1l
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Business Session
Item 4d

December 10, 2021
Finance and Audit

Executive Summary
for the
Central Campus Hot Water Conversion
December 10, 2021

As part of the Campus Utility Master Plan, the Central Campus Hot Water Conversion Project will
convert a large portion of the central quadrangle of the campus from steam to low temperature heating
hot water. This project includes the creation of a new satellite campus heating plant to be located in the
basement of Upham Hall. Hot water piping will be extended from this new satellite campus heating plant
to the buildings in the central area of campus. The project will also create redundant connections to the
existing distribution piping from the South Chiller Plant (both heating hot water and chilled water). The
cross connection between the two plants will improve robustness and reliability for both the South Chiller
Plant and the new Central Campus Utility Plant. A small amount of the new hot water piping will be
located in the existing tunnel systems with the remainder to be direct buried. Hot water connection and
conversion of Ogden is occurring under another project, as that building is being renovated. Hot water
connection and conversion to Warfield, MacMillan, Kreger, Irvin, Alumni, Bishop, McGuffey, Hall
Auditorium, King Library, Harrison and Upham will occur as part of this project. Bonham House will be
converted from steam heat to a more residential style natural gas fired forced air system. Steam supply is
being maintained to the new Central Campus Utility Plant located in Upham Hall for hot water
production. In the future, the steam supply is planned to be replaced with higher temperature heating hot
water from the existing Central Steam Plant that will be converted to production of hot water.

This project is a key step in the Utility Master Plan to meet strategic energy reduction and campus
sustainability goals of decommissioning coal-fired steam systems. The scope of the project includes direct
buried hot water piping, direct buried chilled water piping and converting the buildings named above
from steam heating to hot water heating. The change from steam to hot water will improve efficiency,
reliability, and reduce the carbon footprint.

The project is in the Construction Document phase. Design work and reviews are on-going. The
Construction Manager at Risk (CMR) has been selected for this project. This project is expected to begin

construction in spring 2022 with construction being completed in fall 2023.

Funding for this project will be from local funds:

Project component: Budget: Funding Source:
Est. Design and Administration: $1,075,000 Local Funds
Est. Cost of Work: $18,000,000 Local Funds
Est. Owner’s Costs: $210,000 Local Funds
Est. Contingency: $1.215.000 Local Funds
Est. Total: $20,500,000
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2021 Ohio Efficiency Report

* Final year of reporting on Taskforce on Affordability &
Efficiency
e Exceeded Savings to Students goal by $11.3M
e $9.8 from Financial Advising
* Exceeded Institutional Savings goal by $102.6M

* Procurement (+$13M) Operations (+$17.5M) and Productivity
(+572.2M)

* New Resource Generation $15.6M below goal
e Other revenue/retention
* Exceeded Savings Redeployed to Students goal by $103.7

e Student Aid (+$23.7M), COVID Relief Financial Relief (+$61.7M), and
STEM Facilities (+$18.1M)

e Other areas of Reporting — COVID Impact, Regional
Compacts, Textbook Affordability, and Online Delivery.
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Questions?

MIAMI
UNIVERSITY
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Efficiency Report Bdecenbpr %2021

ROUDEBUSH HALL Room 212
OXFORD, OHIO 45056

(513) 529-6225 MAIN

(513) 529-3911 FAX
www.MIAMIOH.EDU

December 10, 2021

RESOLUTION R2022-19 Finance and Audit
State of Ohio Efficiency Report

WHEREAS, Executive Order 2015-01K established the Ohio Task Force on
Affordability and Efficiency in Higher Education (Ohio Task Force) to review and
recommend ways in which state-sponsored institutions can be more efficient, offering an
education of equal or higher quality while decreasing their costs; and

WHEREAS, Section 3333.95 of the Ohio Revised Code requires all boards of
trustees of Ohio’s state institutions of higher education to complete an efficiency review
based on the report and recommendations of the Ohio Task Force and to make a report to
the Chancellor of Higher Education the institution’s progress toward the implementation
of the recommendations and cost saving measures; and

WHEREAS, the report of the task force included two master recommendations
requiring the savings and new dollars from the efficiency review be employed to reduce
the cost of college for students or provide tangible benefits for the quality of students’
education and a five-year goal to be established for savings and new resources to be
achieved by fiscal year 2021; and

WHEREAS, Miami University has increased annual student scholarships by
$53.7 million exceeding its five-year goal for student scholarships by $23.7 million by
fiscal year 2021 and continues to progress with its efficiency actions consistent with the
objectives of the Ohio Task Force report; and

WHEREAS, Miami University’s progress on its efficiency goals were presented
to and discussed Miami’s Fiscal Priorities committee; and

WHEREAS, Miami envisions this action not only being important for the five
year period required by the report but is developing a process for performing program
reviews for non-academic programs to better ensure that the Ohio Task Force goals to
improve quality and efficiency be continued beyond 2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees of Miami
University accepts the FY 2021 efficiency report and update on progress towards the
University’s five year goal to increase student scholarships; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees directs the Senior
Vice President for Finance and Business Services to submit the accompanying report and
the related recommendations to the Chancellor of Higher Education by the legislated
deadline.

Approved by the Board of Trustees
December 10, 2021

T. O. Pickerill 11
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Attachment E Investment Subcommittee Minutes December 9, 2021

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MIAMI UNIVERSITY
Minutes of the Investment Subcommittee Meeting
104 Roudebush Hall, Oxford, Ohio
December 8, 2021

The meeting of the Investment Subcommittee was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by
Subcommittee Chair National Trustee Biff Bowman. The meeting was held in 104 Roudebush
Hall on the Oxford campus. Along with Chair Bowman, Subcommittee member, Trustee David
Budig, was also present.

In addition to the Subcommittee members, Trustee Mary Schell was present, as were Senior
Vice President David Creamer, and Secretary to the Board of Trustees Ted Pickerill, from the
President’s Executive Cabinet. Representatives from the outside CIO, Strategic Investment Group
(SIG), included; Markus Krygier, and Rick Behler, who were present, as were Associate Treasurer
and Miami Foundation CFO Bruce Guiot, and Director of Investments Tim Viezer, who provided
updates to the Subcommittee. Additional members of SIG joined by telephone, as did
Subcommittee member, National Trustee Mark Sullivan who did not vote or join in any
deliberations.

Following a motion by Trustee Budig and a second by National Trustee Bowman, the
minutes from the prior meeting were unanimously approved by voice vote, with all voting in
favor and none opposed.

The Committee reviewed the capital stack comprised of the endowment pool, the
University’s non-endowment investments, and its operating cash.

e Operating cash flow so far for FY22 through October 31*' is ahead of this time last year
and 1s tracking to forecast.

e Miami plans to reallocate some cash to the long-term portion of the non-endowment as
the final reallocation to complete a shift endorsed by the Subcommittee in the spring.

e The endowment/Pooled Investment Fund (PIF) was valued at $722 million as of October
31

e It was noted the decrease in Tier II was a scheduled draw to fund Boldly Creative.

The Committee reviewed FY22 first quarter investment performance for both the non-
endowment and endowment.

e Returns have had a slow start to the fiscal year after the significant results from FY21.

e Non-endowment’s Tier III was down about 0.4% for the quarter, though October results
brought the FY to date return to +1.6%.

e The endowment/PIF was down about 1% for the quarter (still collecting some private
capital figures for June quarter), and about +1% through October.
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Attachment E Investment Subcommittee Minutes December 9, 2021

SIG reviewed their strategy for investing in the real assets asset class, which includes real
estate, Treasury Inflation Protection Securities (TIPS), and commodities. This asset class is
intended to provide some inflation protection in the portfolio. They also provided an update on
their expectations for inflation and how these views impact portfolio positioning. Fixed income
duration is underweighted and hedge fund exposure is overweighted.

Next, Bruce Guiot provided a retirement plan update. Assets in the Alternative
Retirement Plan and the 403(b) supplemental plan totaled over $564 million as of September
300,

Finally, he provided a brief update on plans to refinance the University’s Series 2012
bonds. Planning is underway and pricing is anticipated for mid-late January.

With no more business to come before the Subcommittee, Trustee Budig moved and
National Trustee Bowman seconded a motion to adjourn which was unanimously approved by
voice vote, with all voting in favor and none opposed, and the meeting adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

ey ———

Theodore O. Pickerill 1T
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Attachment F

Cash and Investments

REPORT ON CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Finance and Audit Committee
Miami University
December 8, 2021

Non-Endowment Fund

December 9, 2021

For the quarter ending September 30, 2021, the non-endowment’s estimated net-of-fees return
excluding Operating Cash was -0.3%. Tier II Baseline Core Cash and Special Initiatives Fund
returns were both 0.0%, while Tier III’s return was -0.4%. Public equities, the largest allocation
in Tier III, fell -1.4% for the quarter. Real assets, which amounted to 10.5% of Tier III, rose

+2.3%.

At September 30", Operating Cash was about $148.0 million, up from $73.9 million at the end of

June.

In August, an annual draw from the Special Projects fund of about $4.4 million was

transferred to Operating Cash. Operating Cash earned an approximate 7 bps (annualized) yield on
the average balance for the quarter, in addition to a significant portion receiving earnings credit
against bank fees.

Current Funds (Millions) Portfolio
Operating Cash (Tier I):
Short-term Investments* $148,032,530 15.9%
Core Cash (Tier II):
Short-Term Bonds $187,650,554 20.2%
Special Initiatives $41,381,991 4.5%
Total Core Cash (Tier II): $229,032,545 24.7%
Long-Term Capital (Tier III):
Equity Investments $289,033,613 31.1%
Debt Investments $113,363,346 12.2%
Hedge Funds $80,837,282 8.7%
Real Assets $57,588,888 6.2%
Other** $673,489 0.1%
Cash $9.776,932 1.1%
Total Long-Term Capital (Tier III) $551,273,550 59.4%
Total Current Fund Investments $928,338,625 100.0%

*Not included in performance report. Includes Cintrifuse Syndicate Fund II.

(Continued on next page)
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Attachment F Cash and Investments December 9, 2021

REPORT ON CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Finance and Audit Committee
Miami University
December 8, 2021

Endowment Pooled Investment Fund

The endowment’s returns were -0.9% for the quarter ending September 30", This figure excludes
updated values for private capital, which report on a significant lag. The endowment’s return was
pulled down by public equity’s -2.1% return for the quarter, while real assets’ +1.6% return
partially offset the decline.

The Miami University Foundation Investment Committee met via teleconference on September
21% to review performance, the fixed income portfolio, the inflation outlook, cash donations, and
the “three lever model” of endowment growth. The Committee also discussed DEI with respect
to SIG and their submanagers.

Bond Project Funds

The University drew approximately $4.0 million for construction expenses during the quarter. As
of September 30, 2021, the balance remaining in the Series 2020 Bond Project Fund was
$90,182,379.

Attachments
Non-endowment Performance Summary as of 9/30/2021
MUF Performance Summary as of 9/30/2021
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Attachment F Cash and Investments December 9, 2021

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY Miami University

Rates of Return (%)

Market  Strategic Fiscal Calendar Since
Asset Class Value Portfolio 1 3 Year To Year To 1 3 5 10 Policy Since Inception
Benchmark ($ mill) (%) Month Month Date Date Year Year Year Year Inception Inception Date

Miami University Long-Term Capital Tier Ill 550.600 : : . ] I : : 30-Jun-02

Miami University Long-Term Capital Tier lll ,,
(Net of Sub-Mgr and Strategic Fees) T e
Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark
Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark (Net of Fees,
Miami University - Baseline Tier Il 5
(Net of Sub-Mgr Fees) 187.651 100.0% : d 4 : b d . g - . 30-Jun-02

Miami University - Baseline '_I'ier 1l 187.651

Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark . . . . . .
Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark (Net of Fees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 1.6
Miami University Special Initiatives Fund

Miami University Special Initiatives Fund
(Net of Sub-Mgr and Strategic Fees)
Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark

100.0%

Miami University Core Cash
Net of Sub-Mgr Fees 229.033 : : g - - g . : - ; 30-Jun-02

Miami University Core Cash

(Net of Sub-Mgr and Strategic Fees) 229.033

Total Miami University Clien_t Group 779.633 . . : ' X . I 30-Jun-02

® A registered service mark of Strategic Investment Management, LLC. Copyright 2021, Strategic Investment Management, LLC. All Rights Reserved.

Printed: 10/21/2021 Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Page 1 of 11
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Attachment F Cash and Investments December 9, 2021

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY Miami University Long-Term Capital Tier lll

Rates of Return (%)

Market Fiscal Calendar Since

Asset Class Value Portfolio 1 3 Year To Year To 1 3 5 10 Policy Since Inception
Benchmark ($ mill) (%) Month Month Date Date Year Year Year Year Inception Inception Date

U.S. Equity 101.404 18.4% (4.2) (0.1) (0.1) 17.4 36.2 15.0 - - 23.8 14.7  31-Aug-18
U.S. Equity Policy Benchmark (4.5) (0.1) (0.1) 15.0 31.9 16.5 - - 24.4 15.2

Non-U.S. Equity 146.749 26.7% (2.7) (2.4) (2.4) 10.1 31.6 10.1 - - 16.5 9.7 31-Aug-18
Non-U.S. Equity Policy Benchmark (3.3) (3.0) (3.0) 5.8 24.1 7.9 - - 14.0 7.6

Global Equity 40.881 7.4% (4.0) (1.6) (1.6) 11.3 30.0 - - - - 14.8  30-Apr-19
Global Equity Benchmark (4.1) (0.4) (0.4) 12.4 28.8 - - - - 15.9

Total Equity 289.034 52.5% (3.4) (1.4) (1.4) 12.9 33.0 121 - - 19.5 11.8  31-Aug-18

Hedge Funds (Net Exposure) 80.837 14.7% 0.7 0.2 0.2 6.1 13.0 5.7 6.0 5.6 71 41 30-Jun-02
Hedge Funds Policy Benchmark (0.3) (0.5) (0.5) 2.9 7.6 3.9 7.2 8.9 5.1 6.9

Total Alternatives 80.837 14.7% - - - - - - - - - - 30-Jun-02

Real Estate - IRR 9.782 1.8% - 0.0 0.0 4.8 6.3 - - - - 4.2 28-Jun-19
Real Estate Policy Benchmark - IRR - 0.0 0.0 5.6 6.8 - - - - 3.7

Commodities 16.939 3.1% 6.0 4.8 4.8 36.6 56.7 - - - - 31 31-Jan-19
Commodities Policy Benchmark 6.0 5.2 5.2 38.3 58.3 - - - - 5.0

TIPS 30.868 5.6% (0.3) 1.7 1.7 3.6 4.7 - - - - 5.9 30-Jan-19
TIPS Policy Benchmark (0.4) 1.7 1.7 4.1 5.7 - - - - 7.0

Total Real Assets 57.589 10.5% 1.7 23 .23 13.6 19.5 - - - - 5.9 30-Jan-19

U.S. Fixed Income 113.363 20.6% (0.5) 0.6 0.6 1.8 4.2 5.6 - - 5.9 5.5 30-Jun-18
U.S. Fixed Income Policy Benchmark (0.8) 0.1 0.1 (0.9) 0.3 5.4 - - 5.7 5.4

Total Fixed Income 113.363 20.6% (0.5) 06 0.6 1.8 4.2 5.6 4.4 4.3 5.9 4.9 30-Jun-02

Total Cash, Accruals, and Pending Trades 9.777 1.8% 0.1 . 0.2 0.2 0.7 1.0 1.0 - - 1.0 1.0 27-Aug-18

Miami University Long-Term Capital Tier Il

550.600 : . b d b d g 30-Jun-02

Miami University Long-Term Capital Tier lll

550.600 100.0% : 31-Dec-18

Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark
Total Portfolio Policy Benchmark (Net of Fees)

Cintrifuse Syndicate Fund I, LLC 0.336
TOTAL 550.936 30-Jun-02

® A registered service mark of Strategic Investment Management, LLC. Copyright 2021, Strategic Investment Management, LLC. All Rights Reserved.

Printed: 10/21/2021 Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Page 2 of 11
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Attachment F Cash and Investments December 9, 2021

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY Miami University Pooled Investment Fund

Rates of Return (%)

Market Total Fiscal Calendar Since

Asset Class Value Portfolio 1 3 Year To Year To 1 3 5 10 Policy Since Inception
Benchmark ($ mill) (%) Month Month Date Date Year Year Year Year Inception Inception Date

U.S. Equity 159.066 22.5% (4.2) 0.1 0.1 17.7 36.7 14.4 - - 14.4 14.7 24-Jul-18
U.S. Equity Policy Benchmark (4.5) (0.1) (0.1) 15.0 31.9 16.0 - - 16.0 16.2

Non-U.S. Equity 167.052 23.6% (3.1) (4.1) (4.1) 7.6 28.4 10.1 - - 10.1 9.1 30-Jun-18
Non-U.S. Equity Policy Benchmark (3.5) (4.3) (4.3) 4.0 22.7 8.4 - - 8.4 7.6

Global Equity 59.142 8.4% (4.0) (1.6) (1.6) 11.3 30.0 11.9 - - 11.9 123  30-Jun-18
Global Equity Benchmark (4.1) (0.4) (0.4) 12.4 28.8 12.8 - - 12.8 13.2

Total Equity 385.261 54.4% 3.7) (2.1) (2.1) 12.0 31.8 12.0 13.0 10.7 12.0 7.2 31-Dec-96

Private Equity - IRR 87.152 12.3% - - - - 36.0 13.3 11.6 8.3 13.3 8.4 30-Sep-95
Private Equity Policy Benchmark - IRR - - - - 44.3 22.9 20.2 16.2 22.9 13.4

Hedge Funds (Net Exposure) 100.638 14.2% 0.7 0.4 0.4 6.5 13.6 5.4 - - 5.4 5.3 30-Jun-18
Hedge Funds Policy Benchmark (0.3) (0.5) (0.5) 2.9 7.6 3.3 - - 3.3 3.3

Total Alternatives 187.790  26.5% - - - o\ - - - - - - 30-Jun-18

Timber 2.818 0.4% - 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.9 (0.2) - - (0.2) 1.0 30-Jun-18
Timber Policy Benchmark - 0.0 0.0 1.2 4.4 1.3 - - 1.3 2.3

Real Estate - IRR 18.420 2.6% - - - - 7.8 8.0 8.2 7.8 8.0 4.8 31-May-06
Real Estate Policy Benchmark - IRR - - - - 6.1 3.3 6.3 8.5 3.3 6.1

Commodities 11.104 1.6% 6.6 5.5 5.5 - - - - - - 38.5 13-Jan-21
Commodities Policy Benchmark 6.0 5.2 5.2 - - - - - - 31.0

TIPS 23.999 3.4% (0.3) 1.7 1.7 - - - - - - 3.5 25-Jan-21
TIPS Policy Benchmark (0.4) 1.7 ¢ 1.7 - - - - - - 3.5

Total Real Assets 56.340 8.0% 11 16 1.6 11.0 13.7 8.9 - - 8.9 9.1 30-Jun-18

U.S. Fixed Income 38.355 5.4% (0.4) 0.4 0.4 2.2 4.3 4.5 - - 4.5 4.3 30-Jun-18
U.S. Fixed Income Policy Benchmark (0.9) 0.0 0.0 (1.1) 0.2 5.5 - - 5.5 5.2

Total Fixed Income 38.355 5.4% 0.4y 0.4 0.4 2.2 4.3 4.5 - - 4.5 4.5 30-Sep-18

Opportunistic - IRR 30.088 4.3% - - - - 15.5 7.7 7.9 7.3 7.7 - 28-Feb-01
Opportunistic Policy Benchmark - IRR O\ - - - - 12.7 6.4 7.6 10.0 6.4 -

Total Opportunistic - IRR 30.088 4.3% - - - - 15.5 7.7 7.9 7.3 7.7 - 28-Feb-01

Total Cash, Accruals, and Pending Trades 9.983 1.4% 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.7 1.0 1.0 - - 1.0 1.0 30-Jun-18

Miami University Pooled Investment Fund

(Net of Sub-Mgr Fees) 707.817

Miami University Pooled Investment Fund

(Net of Sub-Mgr and Strategic Fees) T
Total Combined Portfolio Policy Benchmark (2.4) (1.1) (1.1) 8.5 20.2 10.2 9.7 8.4 10.2 7.1
;’gteasl)Combmed Portfolio Policy Benchmark (Net of (2.4) (1.1) (1.1) 8.3 20.0 10.0 B ) 10.0 B
® A registered service mark of Strategic Investment Management, LLC. Copyright 2021, Strategic Investment Management, LLC. All Rights Reserved.
Printed: 10/21/2021 Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Page 1 of 9
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Internal Audit
Attachment G Terry Moore, interim CAO December 9, 2021

To: Finance and Audit Committee
From: Terry Moore, Interim Chief Audit Officer
Subject: Internal Audit & Consulting Services - Reporting Update

Date: November 12, 2021

Since last reported in September 2021, there is one new high-risk open audit issue. This issue arose
from the outsourced vulnerability assessment, and management is in process of addressing the
identified vulnerabilities. The other two high-risk issues arose from the 2020 Audit of Residency
Reclassification and the 2020 Audit of University Purchasing Cards. Progress is being made on each
issue and IACS will continue to follow up during the year. The attached summary provides more

information.
Audit Issue Status
Open audit Open audit
issues issues
Risk Level ~ 09/02/2021 Added Closed 11/12/2021
2 1 0 3
Attachment
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Attachment G

Line  Audit Name And Date Date Date Risk Division
Opened Due Level

1 178.1 - Audit of 06/03/2020 06/30/2021 Enrollment Mgt
Residency & SS
Reclassification - 6/2020

2 160.1 - Audit of 12/02/2020 08/31/2021 Finance &
University Purchasing Business
Cards - 12/2020 Services

3 207.1- Outsourced 09/08/2021 08/01/2022 IT Services

Vulnerability
Assessment - 9/2021

Attachment G

Internal Audit
Terry Moore, interim CAO

Open Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation

IACS recommends One Stop Services implement procedures for
reclassifying non-resident students as Ohio residents for tuition
purposes in accordance with Ohio Administrative Code 3333-1-10
section (F)(4). Due to the significant financial impact, additional
procedures should be added to require secondary, higher level
review and approval prior to reclassifying a student as a resident
in Banner.

Strengthen oversight of material P-Card expenditures and address
areas of noncompliance.

a. To strengthen internal control and monitor compliance with the
University's P-Card Policy and Travel Policy, IACS recommends
centralized review and approval of both 1) Business P-Card reports
that should capture expenses other than travel and 2) Travel and
Expense reports. A minimum dollar threshold should be
established to ensure efforts are focused on material transaction
amounts. Historical expense report data should be analyzed to
determine the threshold amount. If desired, random sampling
may be done on amounts below the threshold.

b. As a preventive control, IACS recommends controlling
purchases of specific commodities where possible by restricting
the related Merchant Category Codes (MCC). If the MCC cannot
be restricted as a preventive control, an information campaign
should be executed to communicate correct purchasing methods
for commodity specific and on-campus purchases. Items that are
not permitted on P-Cards should be communicated as a reminder.

CBTS finalized written reports of their findings from internal and
external penetration tests assessment in September 2021. The
reports identified a number of weaknesses and vulnerabilities that
could expose the University to risk of compromise. Vulnerabilities
were categorized as high, medium, or low and specific
recommendations made to address the identified risks. IACS
recommends IT Services Security, Compliance, and Risk
Management take appropriate actions to address CBTS's
recommendations and resolve the identified vulnerabilities.

Overall Page 233 of 258

Responsible
Person

Jerrad Harrison,
Assistant
Director of One
Stop Services

Irena Chushak,
Director of
Payroll and
Payables

John Virden,
Asst VP for
Security,
Compliance and
Risk Mgt and
CIsO

December 9, 2021

Management Response and Status
and Percentage of Completion

IACS completed a follow-up audit 7/2021. Beginning with the Fall
2021 semester, One Stop Services implemented procedures for
reclassifying non-resident students in accordance with Ohio
Administrative Code 3333-1-10 section (F)(4), including requiring
secondary, higher level review and approval. Given the recent
implementation, this issue remains open and IACS will continue to
follow up.

In a 10/2021 status update, management reported that the FBS IT
team has assigned a Sr. Technology Product Manager to the project
to modify the workflow of reports in the Chrome River system to
enable Accounts Payable to review both types of expense reports. In
addition, Accounts Payable has refined their interim process by using
the Emburse reporting functionality built into the Chrome River
system to select a more targeted sample of Business P-Card reports
to review monthly. This issue remains open, and IACS will continue to
follow up.

Management concurred stating, "IT Services agrees with the
recommendation given and will review, assess, and prioritize
mitigation implementation addressing CBTS findings following a
information security risk matrix. Actions will be completed by August
1st, 2022."

=
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Enroliment Update
Attachment H VP Shock December 9, 2021

Application Deadline Changes

e Fall 2019: Miami introduced Early Action | (Nov. 1) and Il (Dec. 1) deadlines.
o Honors College deadline was Nov.1

e Fall 2021: Due to COVID, Miami had one early action deadline of Dec. 1

e Fall 2022: Miami reintroduced Early Action | and Early Action Il
o Honors College deadline of Dec. 1

e Thus, we expect applications to build to December 1

Attachment H
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Enroliment Update
Attachment H VP Shock December 9, 2021

Fall 2022 Applications

Residency

2019 2020 2021 2022 A 2020 to 2022 A 2021 to 2022

Non-Resident 10,352(10,924 | 8,428 (10,602 -2.9% 25.8%
Domestic Non-Resident | 9,678 (10,148 7,948 | 9,783 -3.6% 23.1%
International 674 776 480 819 5.5% 70.6%

Ohio Resident 9,324 | 9,854 | 6,338 |11,228 13.9% 77.2%

Grand Total 19,676 (20,778 (14,766 (21,830 5.1% 47.8%

Data as of November 11

Attachment H
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Enroliment Update
Attachment H VP Shock

Fall 2022 Applications

Academic Division

December 9, 2021

A 2020 to 2022 A 2021 to 2022
CAS 7,855 | 8,513 | 5,881 | 8,392 -1.4% 42.7%
FSB 5,567 | 5,721 | 4,321 | 6,411 12.1% 48.4%
CEC 2,730 | 2,706 | 1,686 | 2,705 0.0% 60.4%
EHS 1,789 | 1,776 | 1,472 | 2,059 15.9% 39.9%
CCA 845 | 1,044 | 642 | 1,116 6.9% 73.8%
CLAAS 890 (1,018 | 764 | 1,147 12.7% 50.1%
Grand Total 19,676|20,778|14,766|21,830 5.1% 47.8%

Data as of November 11

Attachment H
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Enroliment Update
Attachment H VP Shock December 9, 2021

Fall 2022 Applications

Selected States

2019 2020 2021 2022 A 2020to 2022 A 2021 to 2022

Ohio 9,324 | 9,854 | 6,338 |11,228 13.9% 77.2%
lllinois 2,690 | 2,777 | 2,208 | 2,690 -3.1% 21.8%
Indiana 873 883 825 998 13.0% 21.0%
Michigan 821 771 733 862 11.8% 17.6%
Pennsylvania 443 512 359 491 -4.1% 36.8%
Kentucky 356 383 292 365 -4.7% 25.0%
West Virginia 14 14 10 19 35.7% 90.0%
Subtotal 14,521{15,194|10,765 (16,653 9.6% 54.7%

Due to deadline changes last year, we are monitoring application trends compared to Fall 2020 until
December 1. Students are applying to institutions closer to home this year. Applications are up in Ohio
and most contiguous states, with declines on both coasts and slightly in Chicago.

Data as of November 11
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Attachment H

Enroliment Update
VP Shock

Fall 2022 Applications

West and East Coasts

December 9, 2021

2019 2020 2021 2022 A 2020to 2022 A 2021 to 2022
Maryland 313 375 255 315 -16.0% 23.5%
California 382 428 241 299 -30.1% 24.1%
Connecticut 383 472 258 286 -39.4% 10.9%
New Jersey 380 361 256 284 -21.3% 10.9%
Massachusetts 336 321 219 281 -12.5% 28.3%
Virginia 227 278 167 217 -21.9% 29.9%
Subtotal 2,021 | 2,235 | 1,396 | 1,682 -24.7% 20.5%

Attachment H

Data as of November 11

Overall Page 239 of 258

Attachment Page 6 of 8




Enroliment Update
Attachment H VP Shock

Fall 2022 Applications

Top Countries

2019 2020 2021 2022 A 2020 to 2022 A 2021 to 2022

Vietnam 118 255 135 126 -50.6% -6.7%
India 60 64 46 113 76.6% 145.7%
China 365 251 61 71 -711.7% 16.4%
Bangladesh 3 9 12 68 655.6% 466.7%
Nigeria 10 30 35 55 83.3% 57.1%
Ghana 6 14 13 31 121.4% 138.5%
Brazil 2 2 10 25 1150.0% 150.0%
Pakistan 4 10 14 23 130.0% 64.3%
Uzbekistan 1 3 21 -- 600.0%
Nepal 7 10 15 21 110.0% 40.0%

Data as of November 11

Attachment H
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Attachment H

Enroliment Update

VP Shock

Fall 2022 Applications

Demographic Factors

Attachment H

2019 2020 2021 2022
Applications 19,676 | 20,778 | 14,766 | 21,830
GPA 3.84 3.87 3.87 3.94
Curriculum Strength 14.6 14.7 14.3 14.5
% Non-Resident 52.6% | 52.6% | 57.1% | 48.5%
% Student of Color 17.2% | 17.4% | 15.7% | 18.2%
% First Generation 14.0% | 14.0% | 12.1% | 17.5%

Data as of November 11
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Lean Update

December 9, 2021

MU-Lean Project Status Totals Completed Projects
Division | Active | Completed | Future Total Cost Avoidance | Cost Reduction Revenue Generated Total
Finance and Business Services 113 1687 11 1811 $52,558,255 $32,970,404 $9,840,946 $95,369,605
President 3 9 0 12 $530,371 $233,500 $1,015 $764,886
Advancement 6 30 0 36 $167,203 $226,290 $4,223,000 $4,616,493
Enrollment 7 47 0 54 $508,854 $37,323 $37,705 $583,882
Student Life 5 4 0 9 $53,434 S0 $0 $53,434
Information Technology Services 1 17 0 18 $437,033 S0 $4,180 $441,213
Academic Affairs 4 30 0 34 $2,455,098 S0 $402,116 $2,857,214
Lean Project Total - MU [ 139 [ 1824 [ 11 1,974 $56,710,248 $33,467,517 $14,508,962 $104,686,727
* no longer track Procurement realized as a separate category
MU-Lean Project Changes since 09-01-21 report Newly Completed Projects since 09-01-21 report

Newly Newly Newly New New New New
Division Active | Completed | Future New Total | Cost Avoidance | Cost Reduction Revenue Generated Total
Finance and Business Services* 8 21 0 29 $113,328 $635,177 $131,370 $879,875
President 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Advancement 0 0 0 0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Enrollment -1 1 0 0 SO SO S0 S0
Student Life 0 0 0 0 S0 S0 SO S0
Information Technology Services 0 0 0 0 $0 S0 S0 S0
Academic Affairs 0 0 0 0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Lean Project Total - MU | 7 | 22 | o 29 $113,328 $635,177 $131,370 $879,875
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ement Update
Attachment J SVPH rbert December 9, 2021

D) I

Advancement Report
Tom Herbert, J.D.

Senior Vice President, University Advancement
President, Miami University Foundation

-
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) )Topics for Toda M

e $1B Campaign Progress

e FY’'22 Results to Date

 Foundation Strategic Plan
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

)H$1B Campaign Progress

As of November 19, 2021
Attachment J Overall Page 245 of 258 Attachment Page 3 of 16



Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

> $1B Campaign Totals by Initiative

Initiative FR Total
to Date

Scholarships $193.5M
o e oty doveopmeny  $1814M
Capital Projects $68.4M
Unrestricted - University $13.0M
Unrestricted - Colleges $13.1M
Undesignated $12.8M
Technology and Equipment $1.4M As of November 19, 2021
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Attachment J

Advancement Update
SVP Herbert

December 9, 2021

Gifts Pledges Total Present Value
Bequests 182,357,041.14 182,357,041.14 98,369,215.25
Cash
cash, checks, credit cards, EFT 74,301,387.12 128,843,429.54 203,144,816.66
stocks, securities 7,777,827.69 356,614.79 8,134,442.48
payroll deduction 374,815.29 269,499.91 644,315.20
matching gifts 1,681,777.44 - 1,681,777.44
realized bequests 14,989,411.53 - 14,989,411.53
other campaign commitments - 28,953,469.64 28,953,469.64
Planned Gifts
insurance premium 231,912.92 1,533,323.48 1,765,236.40
lead trusts 2,000.00 1,035,848.00 1,037,848.00
externally managed 242,806.04 4,580,000.00 4,822,806.04 3,219,060.00
charitable gift annuities 287,955.91 - 287,955.91 187,955.91
charitable remainder trusts 3,781,028.21 2,500,000.00 6,281,028.21 1,362,618.32
Grants 23,976,794.90 = 23,976,794.90
Gifts in Kind 5,561,808.73 = 5,561,808.73
Real Estate - - -
Membership Dues 16,860.22 - 16,860.22

SUB TOTAL

133,226,386.00

350,429,226.50

483,655,612.50

(manual adjustments/post 10-year pledges)

(141,800)

REPORTED TOTAL

$483,513,812.50

Includes CASE counting exceptions of $56,929,227 (11.8% of campaign total)

Attachment J
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) >Topics for Toda M

e $1B Campaign Progress

e FY’'22 Results to Date

 Foundation Strategic Plan
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

' )O>FY’22 Fundraising to Date

As of November 19, 2021
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Attachment J

> )FY’

Advancement Update
SVP Herbert

22 Fundraising

December 9, 2021

Gifts Pledges Total Present Value
Bequests 3,385,000.00 3,385,000.00 2,687,475.75
Cash
cash, checks, credit cards, EFT 5,458,953.67 2,766,626.38 8,225,580.05
stocks, securities 365,698.08 - 365,698.08
payroll deduction 18,907.12 12,095.00 31,002.12
matching gifts 104,770.41 - 104,770.41
realized bequests 1,207,519.95 - 1,207,519.95
other camp commitments - 8,320,000.00 8,320,000.00
Planned Gifts
insurance premium 983.50 - 983.50
lead trusts - - -
externally managed 18,011.50 - 18,011.50
charitable gift annuities - - -
charitable remainder trusts - - - -
Grants 1,484,548.93 - 1,484,548.93
Gifts in Kind 409,093.80 - 409,093.80
Real Estate - - -
Other - - -
SUB TOTAL 9,068,486.96 14,483,721.38 23,552,208.34
REPORTED TOTAL $ 23,552,208.34

Includes CASE counting exceptions of $8,330,000 (35.4% of FY total)

Attachment J
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) YFY’22 Cash Received to Date

As of November 19, 2021
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) >yTopics for Toda M

« $1B Campaign Progress
« FY’'22 Results to Date

e Foundation Strateqgic Plan
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

U
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

> Strategic Plan Progress Highlights

Support University fundraising efforts (G2-5)
» Helped raise money to support Emergency Needs Fund in response to
pandemic
* Foundation Board members took the lead — 100% participation

Provide support to new personnel to make them effective

fundraisers — especially new Deans (G2-7)
» Created alumni/donor visibility for new deans Beena Sukumaran and

Jenny Darroch, including:
= Avirtual LGS Town Hall event facilitated by Tom
= Kay Geiger introduced them to Women Leaders of Cincinnati; assisted by
Foundation Board Members

* Helped Deans grow their networks
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

> Strategic Plan Progress Highlights

Recruit Foundation Board members who will bring more diversity to
the Board (G3-4)

* Nichole Prescott '00: Assistant Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs, University
of Texas, Austin System

« Zain Hader ‘02: Vice President, Head of Treasury Capital Markets, Charles
Schwab & Co. Inc.

« Stephanie Byrd '81: CEO, Central & Southern Ohio Region, American Red
Cross
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) Strategic Plan Progress Highlights

Bring new board members more quickly up to speed (G3-5)
* New board members received orientation and mentors
 Added informal education sessions to maintain connections between board

meetings
 Two education sessions completed — Randi Thomas and Dr. David Creamer

Engage and enhance stakeholder relationships with the University,
not only as contributors of funds but also as contributors of time and
talent. (G3-3)

« Aggressive recruiting of new advisory board members across the institution has

begun
« Building foundation and pipeline for development of campaign volunteer boards
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

) Strateqgic Plan Progress Highlights

Expand demonstration of impact to potential and current donors
(G3-9)
» |Improved donor reports, and expanded stewardship ThankView videos

Ensure compliance with all laws, regulations, guidelines and best

practices (G4-5)

« Worked with foundation counsel and collaborated with other state universities
to ensure state auditor had an understanding of the impact of requiring open
meetings act compliance for state university foundations.

» Created compelling case and received agreement to exempt state university
foundations from open meetings regulation compliance.
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Advancement Update
Attachment J SVP Herbert December 9, 2021

> >Thank you!
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